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2018 2017 2016 2015

T-)\E “T+E ZEF i3
For the year ended 31 December RMB000 Change RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
HET-A=+-ALFE AT 28 ANREFT NREFT NREFT
Revenue WA 19,155,709 14.9% 16,306,375 13,647,737 10,574,854
Gross profit S 3,145,825 -4.8% 2,439,959 2,645,143 1,905,832
Profit for the year EERH 1,167,943 -21.0% 1174725 1,201,073 588,968
Profit attributable to shareholders R R 1,163,092 -24.0% 1,151,862 1,187,531 590,826
Eamings per share BREH
— Basic —EX RMBARH1.27 T -236% RMBARE126T RMBARH1.337 RMBARE0677
— Diluted —#% RMBARE 1277 -236% RMBAR®1267T RMBAEE133T RMBARMOGTT
2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-)\E “E-tE “EF “E-1F
As at 31 December RMB000 Change RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RtZA=1+-A NREFT £ ANREFT NREFT NREFT
Total assets BAE 18,770,015 12.8% 15,534,431 15,284,349 11,401,097
Non-current assets N EIE S 9,336,032 21.8% 7,813,552 7,142,656 5773867
Current assets RYEE 9,433,983 3.9% 7720879 8,141,693 5,627,230
Total liabiliies g% 11,933,193 9.6% 9,558,718 10,092,905 7,462,528
Current liabilities kIS 6,773,423 12.0% 6,420,730 7419,903 4,625,335
Non-current liabiities FRoaG 5,159,770 6.4% 3,137,988 2,673,002 2,837,193
Net current assets TREBEETE 2,660,560 -16.7% 1,300,149 721,790 1,001,895
Net assets BERE 6,836,822 18.5% 5,975,713 5,191,444 3,938,569
Equity attributable to shareholders R E{EIER 6,738,637 109% 5910127 5148721 391,155
For the year ended 31 December 2018 2017 2016 2015
BE+T-A=t—-HIEE —-N\E —T—+F ZE-RE —T-RF
Inventory turnover days FERERY 101 87 79 73
Trade and bill receivables KB 5 REEFA
turnover days FEXE 32 36 35 40
Trade and bill payables EHESREERE
turnover days IBEPN - 73 78 87 82
Current ratio BN = 14 1.2 1.1 12
Net debt to equity ratio (Note 1) BEFEEMER LR (Hit1) 0.88 0.68 0.80 048
Return on equity (Note 2) BRERE(fit2) 18% 21% 26% 16%

Note 1: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and  ff#1: BESFEFRENEEAENBRESLRRESEMIUAR
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders at BEIFIRITE R R IAR R E (LS E AL -
each year end.

Note 2: Based on each year's profit attributable to shareholders over the — fi72 - #5155 4 &0 R 50 FE (1 5 FIBR DA 3% B BU4F 5 4F 9] ] 4R 48

average of the equity attributable to shareholders at the beginning R fE(EHESR Y T HEEBE -
and ending of the financial year.
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

Xuzhou Texhong Intelligence Textile Company Limited
RMRILE A BB R AR

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is one of the largest
cotton textile manufacturers in the People’s Republic of China
(“China” or the “PRC”) and is a leading textile enterprise focusing
on manufacturing high value-added core-spun textile products. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
quality yarns, grey fabrics, garment fabrics as well as garments,
especially high value-added core-spun yarns. Since 1997, the
Group has grown rapidly and has over 5,000 customers in China
and overseas, with its sales network spanning across the PRC,
Vietnam, North America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh,
Japan and South Korea. With its sales headquarter established in
Shanghai, the Group has production bases in operation in the PRC,
Vietnam, Nicaragua and Turkey respectively, with major production
facilities comprising about 4.0 million spindles and 1,819 weaving
and knitting machines as of 31 December 2019.

HEBHN

K HEERBERAR (ARG EREKBAR
ooE [ANEE ) (BRDHRGE : 2678) 2P EARILMNE
(THFRDEANBGHERREE 2 — EE2PHE
EHEMNERNSSEREENE - AEBHE
DEKARENHEEEYG - BF - mRFRE -
LHEIAEEASHMENBLY®R - A— Lt
Fh REEEBZERELRE  BHAHE1B5,0001EE
RINEF - HEPRBERTER - #E - 463 - BUM -
B tHHE  Znf - BARES - "EFU HF
A RHRE - B B E+EHGE
BITHHEEEN BE _E—hLhE+_A=+—
A TBELEXRMEIEALN40EBD45 21,8196
BT ST AR A o
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Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock Code on the:
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2678)
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X £33
(BEBBRFTRHS : 2678)
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Hong Tianzhu X o
Chairman */Z \}

On behalf of the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”), | am AAZRREARARNEFTS([EFE])  MAMAR
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year FRIBREZIAEBEBEE-—"FT—HLhF+=-A=+—8
ended 31 December 2019 to the shareholders of the Company. IEFEMEFEE -
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Since the Sino-US trade negotiation came to a standstill in May
2019, the US has threatened to impose additional tariffs on all
Chinese-made goods and China has also taken retaliatory action to
raise tariffs on US goods. Although the two parties finally orally
confirmed the progress of the negotiation in December and signed
the phase one agreement in January 2020, tariffs imposed by the
US on some Chinese goods was still higher than that before May
2019, and there was no sign of reduction of tariffs before the
conclusion of the second phase trade deal. Such actions of the US
has had an adverse impact on the textile market in China in 2019.
Confidence of brand operators and enterprises in the industrial
chain were substantially eroded. Apart from those factories with
exclusive product development that is hardly replaceable, almost
every company in the textile industry in China experienced rapid
declines in operating revenue and profits, or even suffered losses.

Amidst market adversity, the Group adjusted its product mix based
on more than 20 years of industry experience in respond to
changes in dynamic market demand, with the premise of
maximizing capacity utilization, and effectively reduced inventories
and ensured operating capacity of workers to avoid loss of skilled
workers, under the vicious cycle of falling prices of raw materials
and finished products. Despite a difficult operating environment and
the commencement of operation of 1 million new spindles in the
past two years, such strategy was still effective. Sales volume of
yarns reached nearly 750,000 tonnes, which was more than 30,000
tonnes higher than the original target of 720,000 tonnes of 2019.
Other business segments of the Group also recorded growth. The
Group’s turnover exceeded RMB20.0 billion and reached RMB22.0
billion, representing an increase of nearly 15% when compared with
last year. Helped by the integration with Winnitex Holdings Limited
and Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving Dyeing Printing Co., Ltd.
(collectively “Winnitex Group”), sales of woven dyed fabrics
produced by the Group for the year exceeded 100 million metres,
with revenue reaching RMB1.86 billion, which was a growth of
200% when compared with last year.

With the commitment of all staff members, the Group’s operating
revenue reached another record high since its establishment.
However, affected by the Sino-US trade friction, the gross profit
margin of yarns for the year fell sharply by 4.4 percentage points
from 17.9% last year to 13.5%. While gross profit margin of other
business segments effectively improved due to the Group’s
overseas layout and integration of industrial chain, yarn business
still accounted for nearly 76% of the Group’s total revenue, and
therefore, the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for
2019 was RMB884 million and the basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.97, representing a year-on-year decrease of 24%.

B-ZE-NFRLAPXEZHRAEE  XBEAEY
FrETESERmBUREIINER - PRGN E
MBETHHIERRESEY  BAET A%
TRPROBBIAXRANGER FEE_FT_TF—
AMBRTERRIBE - BXRMDAGELS P EER
B —E-NAFRAAMURIESOBER - 1RE
BRES —WAABNSERAFEBRREY - B
BHETHR - AFHHBEGETSEREAE
B mEEERNRERBTHCERELEELRE
ER PEISBITEARIFEEMRARRE LGS
B B A R B TIRASN - R R AR EfE—
FERTETERRARMNBELGZETE  EEHR
B -

EHRTSERER  ARERE - T2FROTE

AERERN AR R A(CRATER » 1RV R R K dn B
ERTEH TENRTRERRTERALERT  hiRE
TIANFIXBELRAART ERENKER
FASGBEMEINIZ 100 BY 2 EKRENBRT
BERARBDEAEREEER YRHEEL TN
FREREWEFEESHIBENETZA 758N -
AEEEMZEBRBOGHFFBIER  EEERER
AR 200BTTER AR 220187T - tLEFEM
HIT15% - MBABHMZ PN EEZZRBR A
AN TBXABMENRBRAR (G [BXERE])
MBS AFERERBACEAFEECBEBIE
K HEWRANZIARK1861ETT - L EFIBIMNMH

fi -

HAEEBERABHARAB I TEELABALE
BRI AR F S - EXHRPEEZERNTE -
E2EYREMNEREFN7.9% KB TH44EE D
B2 13.5% ° BARMEBRANENETZ RN EE
BIMERBIARERE - BEBFRIE - ERRYF
EBDAEEBRRRAEKILTE%  AEE_T—1
FEBRREEENA/ARKESAET  FREKRR
MAR0.97 7T - IWFTHK24% o
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Looking back at the Sino-US trade disputes over the past year,
even though China and the US had signed the phase one trade
agreement, the outlook for international trade is still clouded by
remaining uncertainties. Coupled with the plight brought about by
the outbreak of Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) across the
world in 2020, the global economy and consumer sentiment will
certainly be affected, and the operating environment will remain
difficult. In order to cope with the uncertainties caused by the
Sino-US trade friction, the Group will continue to pursue
internationalization as part of its business strategy and vertical
integration of the industrial chain to build yarn production bases
outside of China for direct access to overseas markets, and
continue the construction of three-in-one textile production bases in
Vietnam and Nicaragua. On the one hand, it will effectively reduce
or alleviate the impact of Sino-U.S. trade friction, and on the other
hand, through vertical integration of production of fabrics and even
garments, it will improve the overall profit margin and profit stability,
alleviating the impact of raw material price fluctuations.

In addition, the Group completed the reorganisation of the knitted
fabric management team in 2019 to improve efficiency and
strengthen business capabilities and make full use of domestic
production capacity to increase sales revenue and profits of knitted
fabrics in China, and has proceeded with the preparation work for
the application for construction of a large-scale knitted dyed fabric
production base in Vietnam. As for jeanswear business, the Group
completed relevant business reorganisation in 2019 and had been
focusing on the development of a profitable production base in
Vietnam in order to improve the profitability of the jeanswear
business.

After the rapid expansion in 2018 and 2019, the scale of production
capacity of the Group has reached another level. In 2020, our
capital expenditure is expected to be significantly reduced, we will
focus on making full use of existing production capacity to increase
profitability of the Group and the strategies of expansion of
overseas production capacity and integration of the industrial chain,
to enhance the profitability and financial stability of the Group,
reduce the gearing ratio, and strengthen the security of operations
under the unstable operating environment.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the
Board to all our shareholders for giving the Group their care and
support over the years.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

16 March 2020
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The Group is pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. During
the year, the Group’s revenue grew by 15% to RMB22.0 billion
when compared with last year. Profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company decreased by 24% to RMB884 million against last
year. Basic earnings per share also decreased to RMB0.97 from
RMB1.27 last year.

According to statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, the aggregate sales achieved by sizeable textile enterprises
amounted to RMB2,403.8 billion in 2019, representing a 1.8%
decrease year-on-year, with profit totaling RMB100.9 billion, down
by 10.9% year-on-year. Sizeable garment and apparel enterprises
recorded total sales in the amount of RMB1,601.0 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.4%, with net profit at
RMB87.28 billion, down by 9.8% year-on-year. In terms of
production volume, in 2019, 28.92 million tonnes of yarn, 45.7
billion metres of fabrics and 59.53 million tonnes of synthetic fibre
were produced. According to data from PRC Customs, in 2019,
US$120.2 billion worth of textile products were exported from
China, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.9% with the value
of garments at US$151.4 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 4.0%.

According to statistics from Vietnam Customs, the export volume of
yarn and staple fibre manufactured in Vietnam grew by 16.0% to
1.715 million tonnes in 2019, bringing in revenue of US$4,177
million, up 3.8% when compared with 2018. Garments exports
increased by 7.8% to US$32.850 billion.

In 2019, operating revenue of the Group hit another record high at
RMB22.0 billion, representing an increase of 15% when compared
with last year, mainly attributable to the growth in sales of yarn and
dyed fabrics. The Group derives sales revenue from the entire
industrial chain, including sales of yarns, grey fabrics, dyed fabrics
and garments. Revenue from sales of yarn continued to hit a record
high at RMB16.7 billion, representing an increase of 7.5% when
compared with last year. With the strong growth of midstream and
downstream businesses, the proportion of yarn sales in total
revenue declined from 81.2% last year to 76.0%. Midstream and
downstream businesses recorded sales revenue of RMB5.3 billion
in total, an increase of nearly 50% over 2018.

In the past two years, the Group expanded its yarn production by
adding a total of approximately 1 million spindles. Although the
market demand was affected by the Sino-US trade friction and the
production capacity decreased as a result of a change in the
product mix, total external sales of yarn for 2019 increased to
nearly 750,000 tonnes, exceeding the original target of 720,000
tonnes. As the Group adjusted its product mix to prioritise capacity
utilisation in times of market turmoil, the gross profit margin of yarn
declined from 17.9% last year to 13.5% this year.
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As for grey fabric, as expected at the beginning of 2019, with the
development of the Group’s own dyed fabric business, internal use
of grey fabrics produced by the Group increased, while external
sales volume decreased from approximately 96 million metres last
year to nearly 80 million metres this year. In line with its annual
target, and benefitting from the advantages of vertical integration,
the sales of grey fabric produced overseas achieved relatively good
results with the gross profit margin of grey fabrics increasing from
14.8% last year to 17.2% this year.

As for woven dyed fabric, the sales volume of products produced
by the Group reached 100 million metres, more than double from
the 42 million metres produced last year, which was mainly due to
the integration of Winnitex Group’s business. In the early stage of
integration, orders at the factory in Vietham were temporarily
affected, but in the second half of the year orders have gradually
returned to normal and with the expansion of production capacity,
the monthly production capacity has surpassed the single-month
output high of last year. As the sales volume of Winnitex Group has
also been slightly affected by the Sino-US trade friction, the sales of
self-produced woven dyed fabric of the Group were lower than the
annual target of 120 million metres. In addition, the trading volume
of woven fabrics also reached 38 million metres, representing an
increase of more than 50% from 24 million metres last year.
Following the introduction of Winnitex Group’s management model
and product development technology, the average gross profit
margin of the Group’s woven fabrics has reached a significant
increase to 16.6% this year.

As for knitted dyed fabric, the reorganisation of the management
team this year delivered its initial effect in the fourth quarter. Due to
unsatisfactory production volume and gross profit margin in the first
half of 2019, the annual sales volume of knitted dyed fabrics
produced by the Group was approximately 17,000 tonnes, less than
the target of 18,000 tonnes. The annual gross profit margin also
decreased, but with the successful business reorganisation, the
gross profit margin of knitted fabrics in the fourth quarter was higher
than the average level of last year.

The jeanswear business underwent another reform in the second
half of 2019. As a result, total sales volume was affected and failed
to meet the full-year target, but still improved from last year. After
the reform, the Group concentrated its operations on a production
base with an established earning base in Vietnam, which will play a
key role in improving the profitability of the business segment.
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Influenced by the performance of the yarn business, the overall
gross profit margin of the Group declined significantly from 16.4%
in 2018 to 13.6% this year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the
year was RMB884 million, and earnings per share were RMBO0.97,
both representing a decrease of approximately 24% when
compared with last year. With the business growth of the midstream
and downstream and the improvement of the profit level, the impact
on the Group’s performance by the fluctuation of profitability of yarn
will be gradually reduced, helping to maintain the profit stability of
the Group and improve overall profit.

As at the end of 2019, the Group’s major production facilities were
equipped with approximately 4 million spindles and more than 1,800
looms. Of all the spindles, 2.45 million were in the PRC and 1.47
million spindles were in Vietnam. After completion of the capacity
expansion plans for 2018 and 2019, the Group will focus on making
the best use of such capacity in 2020 in order to give play to its due
role and efficiency, with an effort to restore the desirable yarn
product mix, the increased production capacity of overseas
production bases of woven dyed fabrics and the reorganisation of
the knitted dyed fabrics business team, the profitability of the Group
is expected to be improved in 2020 along with the total sales
revenue recording remarkable growth.

At the same time, as capacity expansion was completed in the past
two years, capital expenditure will also be significantly reduced in
2020 and is expected to be down below RMB800 million, which will,
in turn, help to lower the debt ratio of the Group and strengthen its
financial security under adverse operating conditions. Inferred from
the current market conditions, excluding the sales volume of the
trading business, the Group targets to sell 830,000 tonnes of yarn,
60 million metres of grey fabric, 140 million metres of woven dyed
fabric, 25,000 tonnes of knitted dyed fabric and 14 million pairs of
jeans in 2020.

On 12 July 2019, the Group was again named among the “Fortune
500 Chinese Companies 2019”, and ranked third by the China
Cotton Textile Association among cotton textile enterprises in terms
of comprehensive competitiveness, a strong endorsement of its
continuously expanding business and proven business model. The
Group will continue to work tirelessly, exerting its best effort, to
bring long-term and sustainable returns to shareholders.
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The Group’s sales mainly comprises the sales of yarns, grey fabrics
and garment fabrics, as well as jeanswear. Yarns continued to be
the Group’s major product. With the commencement of operations
of our new production facilities, and the commitment of staff
members, the sales of yarns increased by about 7.5% in 2019 as
compared to that of 2018. Sales analyses of the Group by products
are shown below.

AEENHEETERAHED R B REFES
FIRE - WREBEXATEBENERER - ANAE
ERHENEERBRERERBABRNE N —_F
—NFEEYRBEERBR T~ \FERNT5% -
THRAEEERERNHEEDIN -

RMB million
AREEEBTT
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000 8,062.8 8,651.5
7,993.9 7,560.2
3,000
2,000
1,000
’ 150.0 208.1
o B 5605 I 649.1
2019 2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
—®B—H —f /\¢ —B—NEF —f /\$ —B—hE —2)\F —B—hE Z2)\F
Stretchable Other yarns Fabrics Jeans
core-spun yarns Hin4b 4z o REk 4148
BB
W e e W Spa W Jcreocos [ Sreoer [l fowen semen fobrics poie
BHRSOR E- Wby Hihik % Tt fag iR
Revenue
2018 change
—E-N\F TN
RMB’000
AREFIT
Stretchable core-spun yarns BHE NG 7,993,929 0.9%
Other yarns Hitngh iz 7,560,240 14.4%
Stretchable grey fabrics b7 Yl 649,110 -13.7%
Other grey fabrics HEmirfm 208,093 -27.9%
Woven garment fabrics B E R 1,122,412 140.1%
Knitted garment fabrics FrepmE 799,864 12.5%
Jeans Hi74E 822,061 19.6%
Total HEt 19,155,709 14.9%
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Sales (Continued)
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Sales volume
HE
2018
—T-0\¥
Stretchable core-spun yams B ABLHER (1,
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AREEIE) 329,954
Other yarns (Tonne/RMB per  Eft4b4 (1 /
tonne) AREEH) 330,438
Stretchable grey fabrics (Milion #H%&% (BEX,/
metres/RMB per metre) AREEK) 69.9
Other grey fabrics (Million EiEm(BER/
metres/ RMB per metre) ARBEX) 256
Woven garment fabrics (Million #&tE# (B EX,/
metres/RMB per metre) ARBEX) 66.4
Knitted Garment fabrics SHEEmR (W,
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AREEE) 16,753
Jeans (Million pairs/ HIE(EBR/
RMB per pair) AREBR) 155

The Chinese textile market is the Group’s major market, accounted
for 68.7% of our total sales of 2019. The percentage of Group’s
exports has experienced noticeable growth due to acquisition of
textile trading companies in North America in the second half of
2018, as well as integration of the original export operation of
Winnitex Group in 2019.

As at the date of this report, the Group has more than 5,000
customers. As the Group produces differentiated products, the
Group does not rely on orders from a particular customer. The ten
largest customers of the Group only accounted for 14.2% of the
total sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, gross profit of the Group
decreased from RMB3.15 billion to RMB2.99 billion, representing a
decrease of 4.8% as compared to that of 2018. The overall gross
profit margin also decreased by 2.8 percentage point to 13.6% as
compared to that of 2018. Although the gross profit margin of other
business segments effectively improved due to the Group’s
overseas layout and integration of industrial chain, the gross profit
margin of yarn business was affected by the Sino-US trade friction
and thus fell sharply, leading to a decrease in the overall gross
profit margin.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, cost of sales increased by
18.7% to RMB19.0 billion when compared to that of 2018 following
the growth of sales. Raw materials cost accounted for about 76.5%
of the total cost of sales of 2019. Cotton is our major raw materials.

The breakdown of our cost of sales is shown below:

Consumables
HIER

2.4%
Utilities
B0 RERE
6.4%

Depreciation
e
3.6%

Direct Labour
HEIH
10.0%

Raw Materials
AR

76.5%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s selling and
distribution costs amounted to RMB847.2 million, representing an
increase of 23.7% when compared to that of 2018. The increase
was attributable to the increase in transportation costs and salaries
of sales personnel due to increase in sales volume and expenses
of the newly acquired businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s general and
administrative expenses increased by 40.1% to RMB1,010 million
when compared to that of 2018, which represented 4.6% of the
Group’s sales. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
research and development expenditures and expenses of the newly
acquired businesses.

HEZZ-NAF+A=ZT—HILFE B#REE
BNNEE  HEXRAR - — \FEM187%E
ARBA90ETT - R-T—NLF 2R BI AL 43
ERARHT76.5%  MER/BRMINEZZREME

TR KB ER AL

w

Consumables
JHFE
1.9%

Utilities

5.8%
Depreciation
bk ]

3.7%
Direct Labour
HETR
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Raw Materials
RAR
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Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net cash generated from
operating activities amounted to RMB2,418.4 million, which
represents an significant increase comparing with 2018 mainly due
to the higher cash outflow of raw material purchase for new
production capacity in 2018. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB1,939.3 million, which was mainly used for the
payment of capital expenditures for capacity expansion and
acquisitions. During the year under review, net cash generated from
financing activities amounted to RMB297.1 million, which was
mainly used in financing for working capital.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank and cash balances
(including pledged bank deposits) amounted to RMB1,852.3 million
(as at 31 December 2018: RMB1,199.7 million). The Group’s
inventories decreased by RMB111.2 million to RMB5,100.1 million
and our trade and bills receivables decreased by RMB249.1 million
to RMB1,534.7 million (as at 31 December 2018: RMB5,211.3
million and RMB1,783.8 million respectively). The inventory
turnover days and trade and bills receivables turnover days were
98 days and 27 days respectively, compared to 101 days and 32
days in 2018. The increase of raw material procurement for new
production capacity in the second half of 2018 led to an increase in
the average inventory in 2018 so the inventory turnover days in
2018 were higher.

Trade and bills payables of the Group decreased by RMB486.8
million to RMB3,035.9 million as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31
December 2018: RMB3,522.7 million), the payable turnover days
was 62 days, compared to 73 days in 2018. Decrease in the
payable turnover days was mainly due to early settlement of part of
bills payable for purchase of raw materials in order to reduce the
overall liability level.

The total bank borrowings of the Group increased by RMB1,156.9
million to RMB8,284.6 million as at 31 December 2019. Current
bank borrowings increased by RMB1,107.1 million to RMB3,359.6
million while non-current bank borrowings increased by RMB49.82
million to RMB4,925.0 million. The increase in the proportion of
current bank borrowings was mainly due to the financing for
working capital for the Group’s new production capacity. Despite its
higher interest rate than current borrowings, the Group will continue
to maintain a considerable portion of long-term borrowings to
achieve a better debt portfolio.
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s financial ratios
were as follows:

Current ratio BN &
Debt to equity ratio’ ’E\TETETELHZT L
Net debt to equity ratio?

1 Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to shareholders

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total bank borrowings
amounted to RMB8,284.6 million, among which RMB1,522.0 million
(18.4%) was denominated in Renminbi, RMB1,329.1 million
(16.0%) was denominated in United States dollars (“US$” or “USD”)
and RMB5,433.5 million (65.6%) was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”). These bank borrowings borne interest
rates ranging from 2.1% to 4.9% per annum (2018: 2.0% to 5.0%).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has outstanding current bank
borrowings of RMB3,359.6 million (2018: RMB2,252.5 million).
Increase in current bank borrowings was mainly used for working
capital for the Group’s new production capacity.

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the Group has to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of RMB520.8 million
(2018: RMB877.4 million) were secured by the pledge of the
Group’s machinery and equipment with a net book amount of
approximately RMB709.5 million (2018: RMB834.9 million), pledged
bank deposits with a net book amount of RMB8.0 million (2018:
RMBG68.5 million) and inventories with a total amount of RMB66.58
million (2018: Nil). No bills receivable were secured as at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB97.5 million).

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam. Most of the
Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, US$ and HK$. Foreign exchange risk may arise from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings and raw
material procurement denominated in US$ or HK$. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and closely monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.
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To mitigate the depreciation risk of RMB, the Group has purchased
a suitable amount of currency option contracts and currency swap
contracts so that the currency exposure is hedged against. As at 31
December 2019, there was no unhedged foreign currency debt
exposure. The Group will continue to enter into the relevant
currency option and swap option contracts so that the currency
exposure arising from borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
can be minimized.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the capital expenditure of
the Group amounted to RMB2,101 million (2018: RMB2,003
million). It was mainly comprised of the investments in fixed assets
in the PRC, Vietnam, Americas and Turkey.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a gain
on the acquisition of subsidiaries of approximately RMB209.0 million
in relation to the acquisition of Winnitex Group which the completion
took place in April 2019. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 December 2018 for further details.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

As announced by the Company on 20 April 2016, by an agreement
dated 20 April 2016 (“2016 Facility Agreement”) entered into by,
among others, Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong
Galaxy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
and a syndicate of banks and financial institutions as lenders, the
lenders have agreed to grant a facility (“2016 Facility”) in the
aggregate principal amount of up to US$103,000,000 to finance the
development of Texhong Galaxy’s production plant in Haiha District,
Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam. The 2016 Facility shall be fully
repaid in April 2023 and is guaranteed by the Company.

The 2016 Facility Agreement contains a requirement that Mr. Hong
Tianzhu shall maintain, directly or indirectly, the status of the largest
individual shareholder of the Company and maintain the position of
chairman of the Group. A breach of such requirement will constitute
an event of default under the 2016 Facility Agreement, and as a
result, the 2016 Facility is liable to be declared immediately due
and payable. The occurrence of such circumstance may trigger the
cross default provisions of other banking/credit facilities available to
the Group and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities
may also be declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is in compliance
with the 2016 Facility Agreement.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of 41,108
employees (as at 31 December 2018: 38,076), of whom 21,682
employees were located in the sales headquarters and our
manufacturing plants in Mainland China. The remaining 19,426
employees were stationed in regions outside Mainland China
including Vietnam, Cambodia, Turkey, Nicaragua, North America,
Hong Kong and Macao. New employees were recruited to cater for
the Group’s business expansion during the year. The Group offers
a competitive remuneration package to its employees. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may also be granted to
eligible staff based on individual and Group’s performance. The
Group is committed to creating a learning and sharing culture in the
organisation. Strong emphasis is placed on the training and
development of individual staff and team building, as the Group’s
success is dependent on the contribution of all skilled and motivated
employees.

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable dividend payout
ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company, providing shareholders with an
equitable return. The Board has resolved to distribute a final
dividend of 15 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 19 May 2020 and will be payable on or about 2 June
2020, subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company on 8 May
2020. An interim dividend of 18 HK cents per share was paid by the
Company on 11 October 2019.

The following are the key risks that the Group considers to be of
great significance to the Group in its current status. These risks
may have adverse effect on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should it occur,
we have made a detail description and set down corresponding
control measures and mitigation plan to manage the risk.

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group will change
over time. The size, complexity and coverage of our business and
the changing environment in which the Group operates also mean
that the list cannot be an exhaustive list of all material risks that
could affect the Group.
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Risks description

2 B

Product concentration: The Group has
established its market position as a
manufacturer of high value-added core-spun
cotton textile products and core-spun cotton is
the major earning source of the Group. In the
event of any change in fashion trend,
customers may prefer other textile materials.
Competition in such market may also intensify
suddenly. If the Group fails to respond to the
change in an efficient and effective manner, the
profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.

Geographical concentration: The Mainland
China is the major market of the Group and,
thus, the Group is subject to the economic,
political and social condition and change in
domestic demand for the products of the Group
in China.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

+ Enhance customer communication with an
outstanding marketing team which thoroughly
and promptly understands the requirements of
customers.

+ Step up cooperation with raw material suppliers
and monitor the market trend of change in new
textile materials

+ Boost input for research and development team
and improve product functionality and develop
new products in response to market demands

+ Explore downstream industries and increase the
contribution of downstream products

+ Facilitate the development of import and export
business continuously to tap into overseas
markets

+ Promote diversified development in the industry
so as to survive under adverse macro-
environment, in view of the fact that the textile
industry is large in scale despite its
vulunerability to the economic and social
environment
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Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFE L FE{L

Causes of the trend:
Global outbreak of
COVID-19 may affect the
textile retail industry and
indirectly affect companies
in the up-stream and
mid-stream of the industrial
chain. As the Group’s
business is concentrated in
the textile industry, it is
difficult to completely avoid
the operational risks
brought about by such
circumstance.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk

Risks description level from last year

B 4 TEREEREREBREHEK ERATRLFRE
Cotton is the major production material of the Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton futures
Group and the fluctuation of cotton prices may and supply and demand balance and correlation ~ Unchanged
not align with fluctuation of end-product prices in the spot market and hedge risks mainly
at all times. In the event of intense fluctuation through measures like maintaining stable
of cotton prices, the gross profit margin of the procurement and inventory strategies
Group will be heavily affected. Diversify the development of the synthetic fiber
category and reduce the Group’s reliance on the
cotton category
RIERAEBTENEERY  WBEBBIK BORIREREHAUALRERHHOHT T
PEET - TRARERNERKETERY - ERAMY  TEURFETNRERTERE BE
WEREERBEIZKE  BEUREREMNEX TR A E
EREARTE EIMCEEmmERE  REAKRBHRY RE
KRR
Fluctuation of exchange rate may result in Foster communication with financial institutions
material losses on foreign currency and affect and market analysis institutions to interpret the Causes of the trend:
the raw material procurement costs and dynamics of financial market and make specific + Substantial part of the
financing costs of the Group. In the event of adjustments to financing structure exposure to foreign

intensified fluctuation of the exchange rate of
USD/RMB, the profitability of the Group may be
subject to material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing interest
rates of banks, liabilities at floating rates may
cause an increase in financing costs of the
Group.

EXREAREHEBAINIERL  FEAKE
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Increase loans in RMB to reduce the ratio of
loans in USD to directly mitigate risks

Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign
currencies, including foreign liabilities arising
from daily operation and financing, using foreign
exchange financial products, such as forward
contracts and options

Closely monitor various important economic
data published by the People’s Bank of China
and the Federal Reserve and keep abreast with
its interest rate policy

Obtain quotations for interest rate swap from
financial institutions regularly and utilize financial
instruments in a timely manner to switch from
floating to fixed interest rate

MAEREMBEEETSOMEBENER  BES
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currency liabilities has
been locked up

+ Structure of the
financings in various
currencies has been
optimized gradually

+  With the growth of dyed
fabrics business,
overseas sales
increased, which has
reduced foreign
exchange risk
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Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFE L FE{L

Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

Risks description

2 B

The Group is now in the stage of business
expansion with high financing needs. In the
event that the financial institutions which
provide the existing facilities cease to offer
such financing to the Group or banking facilities
on similar terms and the Group fails to obtain
alternatives, the Group may not have sufficient
funds for its commitment of capital projects and
may restrict or hinder the business operation of
the Group.

AEEBAENEBEREE  ARRORE
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Enhance the transparency of the Group’s
operation for banks’ understanding and maintain
good working relationship between the Group
and financial institutions

Monitor various financing indicators in real-time
and provide timely alerts to ensure compliance
in respect of various indicators

Diversify the portfolio of financial institutions and
financing products

Devise a reasonable spread for financing with
different terms to strike a balance between
financing costs and risks

SERBTHREEETRNBENENE - #E
IS ERE BB ERR
ERELRAREETR  REEE  BREEE
BTEX
BIRERENREERAANS T
AREETFHRNBE  REREXARBE
R\

22 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Cause of the trend:

+ Capital expenditure was
relatively high in 2019

* Amid international trade
disputes, operating
environment was
frequently affected and
the difficulty and cost of
borrowing increased
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Risks description

[ B i o

The Group focuses on producing a wide range
of products and does not rely on a particular
individual customer. The Group works with
more than 5,000 customers from an enormous
and widespread portfolio. As a result of the
unfavourable market environment and request
from part of the customers to extend credit
terms, the Group is facing a risk of the
receivables turning into bad debts.

REBNEESABENERSER - MRE
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREEREREBREHEK

+ Monitor and evaluate credit terms granted to
customers regularly

+ Monitor the collectability of receivables in
real-time and provide alerts and warnings for
amount overdue and customers with abnormal
business operation

+ Closely monitor market dynamics and operation
of customers to devise plan for customer visit
and collect the latest information of customers

+ Enhance customer reconciliation system

+ Adopt collectability of receivables as a criterion
of staff performance assessment to promote
staff members’ awareness of payment demand

+ Arrange export credit insurance for all overseas
customers with newly established relationship

© ERNESRAEESORE
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Changes of risk
level from last year

Rk FE EFE{

Causes of the trend:

Increasing business
volume and business
type lead to increasing
total receivables
Unfavorable operation
environment in the textile
industry spurs operation
risk for customers

Global outbreak of
COVID-19 may affect the
operation and cash flow
of brand customers,
chain supermarkets and
retailers
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Risks description

2 B

The Group offers a wide range of products and
its portfolio is ever-expanding, creating a huge
risk of product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not suffered any material losses
from product liability claim, there have been
individual claims from customers in respect of
product quality.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

Increase efforts on quality control and devise
improvement solutions for quality fluctuation
Control production process using state-of-the-
art measurement equipment and online quality
control system

Improve production technology training for staff
members and cultivate responsibility awareness
of plant production staff and management
members at each level

Actively reach out to customers for product
liability incidents and coordinate for resolution
and hold relevant staff accountable internally
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Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFE L FE{L

Causes of the trend:

* Increased product
portfolio

» More stringent
requirements on product
quality and differentiation
from customers
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Risks description
B 4

The operation presence of the Group covers
various countries and regions, including the
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam,
Cambodia, Turkey and North America. In the
course of tax planning and daily operation, we
are subject to the following tax risks:

+ Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax policies;

+ The interpretation of tax policies and the
legal conformity of tax preparation must be
confirmed by the tax administration
authority. In the course of such confirmation,
the enforcement of tax administration may
be different.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREEREREBREHEK

+ Engage financial officers familiar with local tax
policies and regulations to conduct tax audit and
handle tax examination of the government

+ Engage professional local tax consultation
institutions for consultations on tax compliance
advices, tax incentive policies and tax
preparation solutions

+ Liaise with local tax authority frequently to have
thorough understanding of change in tax
policies and policy interpretation, thereby
reducing risks of tax incompliance and
enforcement of tax administration
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Changes of risk
level from last year

Rk FE EFE{

Causes of the trend:

* Intensifying tax
regulations in different
countries

* Increasing international
coverage of operation
presence, resulting in
mounting overseas tax
risk
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Risks description

2 B

As a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the
Group must comply with the “Securities and
Futures Ordinance” and the “Listing Rules” of
the Stock Exchange as well as the laws and
regulations in places which the Group operates
in. As social and economic environment
evolves, many countries and relevant
authorities continue to promulgate laws and
rules to update economic matters, such as
corporate governance, foreign investment,
commerce, tax and trade. The introduction or
amendments of these laws and regulations
may adversely affect the business and
prospects of the Group.

AKEER—MRBEBAR S M ([HRPT])
EHRE - BAET(EF M E GRD)MEE R
FAC T AR B DA R 78 5% [ 48 & Pl R 3 R 182 %

ER o BELGRERENEL SENURA
BRESTEEMERNARER  BIMRE

GER ﬁﬁ&%%%%ﬂ$ﬁm£¢&ﬁW°
ELRRIARNFIERE T A e AL E
EHERARERAETE

Electricity consumption of the Group’s
production process is huge and electricity
shortage may adversely affect the operation of
production facilities of the Group.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFE L FE{L

Engage qualified legal advisors or consultation
institutions to review and provide advices on
relevant documents to ensure legal compliance
The company secretary is responsible for
offering advices to the board of directors and
board committees in respect of the latest legal,
regulatory and governance matters and
ensuring their awareness of such matters

Unchanged

CEEERNEAERRSAARBEEMEEX
%ﬁkﬁﬁﬁ BREWEEGRER
NRAMERENESEREZZEGHRENN
EE - BEREREERMER RBROMEER
ZE=EH

ﬁz‘i%ﬂ

Equip production factories subject to potential
electricity shortage with generators to minimize
the duration of electricity shortage

Conduct technological renovation on equipment
to reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek permit for
uninterrupted electricity supply

Unchanged
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk

Risks description level from last year

B 4 TEERRBRERER ERATRLFRE
The Group operates in a labour-intensive Commence effective performance-based unit
industry. While our new plant, with more count in recognition of the principle of ‘better Unchanged

advanced production facilities, has helped to
reduce our deployment of labour force to a
certain extent, our need in manpower remains
relatively high compared to some other
industrial segments. If we experience any
labour shortage or technical inadequacy of its
labour force, the efficiency in utilization of our
production facilities will be impaired, and our
profitability will be affected as a result.

The Group has been expanding its operation
abroad. The cultural difference between our
foreign and Chinese employees may bring risk
to the regular and normal operation of our
Company.

REBMBRITERSHBRELUTE  BAHT
BEHTERRENEERE £ ETREL
RETHET  BRMAELEMTE  HRETH
BREARD - EABTRIABLERED
EREHEERENBRERE  EMPEE
EEAMEED

AEBBIMIETEEA BB TREPERE
BINXLERAE/EENEEEETRKE

LA
i

0 O
ZoN

reward comes with greater contribution’
Expand the scope of staff training to create a
highly efficient and capable workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any
decisions related to employees and that any
issue which may arise will be promptly dealt
with

Address issue concerning the conditions of our
canteen and staff quarters, enhance the quality
of our employees’ livelihood, and improve our
backup supporting service

Train up and enhance the management
capability of our management staff, roll out skill
and capability reinforcement programme,
strengthen the sense of belonging and honour
of our staff

Improve staff retention through maintaining and
expanding our presence in the locality
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFE L FE{L

Risks description

2 B

The Group’s production process is subject to a .

wide range of the environmental protection
laws and regulations in various countries and

Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into
purchase agreements with suppliers which
guarantee the raw materials supplied are in

Causes of the trend:

Increase in number of

territories. The Group has not been subject to compliance with environmental protection dyeing factories and
any fines or penalties concerning standard (in particular dyestuff and chemicals) higher risk in
environmental pollution in the past. However, + Establish a factory internal check system and environmental
there can be no assurance that governments of procedure in compliance with product-wise governance

any countries and territories will not introduce
new laws and regulations to impose stricter
control on environmental pollution in the future.
Additionally, the risk faced by the Group may
also increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental protection
laws and regulations may require the Group to
incur substantial expenditure to upgrade its
existing environmental protection facilities and
the profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.

AEELERRAETEEINENREIRE

regular core environmental protection standard,
set up a highly regulated control system and
strictly implement it

Pay attention to news about development in
environmental regulations, cause new factories
to operate in strict compliance with any new
regulations and existing factories to transform
and upgrade their facilities in order to meet with
environmental protection standard.
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Governments of different
countries tighten its
control over
environmental protection,
which may affect the
production operation of
business enterprises
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner.
The Board comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code
Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the
reporting period, the Company had complied with the Code
Provisions.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors and its composition
is set out as follows:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Tang Daoping

Hui Tsz Wai

Ji Zhongliang

Tao Xiaoming

Cheng Longdi

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 52 to 55.
There was no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one-third of
the Board. At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
received from each of the INED an annual confirmation of his
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the
year, four Board meetings and one general meeting were held and
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the general
meeting is set out as follows:

EEETHERERE  ARIAEECBEBREIUAR
EERMBRE  UTEMHEEAEE Z2FRF
HAZAE - RNFA - ERTHREZEEZ R —ARR
REg SEZHREEERIBRERGZBERNA
T

Number of Number of
Board General
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
HES HE
BOTEES BITRR
BRRH RERH
Executive Directors: BITES:
Hong Tianzhu R

(Chairman) (F/E) 4/4 1/1
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and KoKFE (BIEEFRITEAES,)

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 0/1
Tang Daoping BT 4/4 0/1
Hui Tsz Wai HFTE 4/4 171
Ji Zhongliang HER 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES:

Cheng Longdi Y 4/4 01
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R ¥ MH, FCCA, FCPA

(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD 4/4 11

Tao Xiaoming Fa A 4/4 11

The Board is responsible for considering and decision making for
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, investment
plans, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, material contracts and transactions
as well as other significant policies and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days’
notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are
given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of a regular Board
meeting (and so far as practicable for other Board meetings). Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for
their comment before the same will be tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. Directors will be continuously updated on the major
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG
Code, the Company would arrange and fund suitable continuous
professional development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had
provided all the Directors with regular updates regarding the
Company’s performance as well as updates on latest amendments
and developments to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the Securities
Code”) regarding securities transactions by Directors and officers
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company first on his/her appointment and thereafter twice annually,
30 days and 60 days before the date of the Board meetings to
approve the Company’s interim result and annual result
respectively, with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the
securities and derivatives of the Company until after such results
have been published, and that all his dealings must be conducted
in accordance with the Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to notify Mr.
Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a Director (other than
himself/herself) designated by the Board for the specific purpose
(the “Designated Director”) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement from such Designated Director before dealing in
the securities and derivatives of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company, having
made specific enquiry on all the Directors, confirms that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Securities Code and the Model Code.
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Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is the vice chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Professor Cheng Longdi,
Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective date of appointment as an INED renewable
automatically for successive term of one year each commencing
from the next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the independent non-executive
Director or the Company expiring at the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter. The Company has paid an annual director’s fee
of HKD300,000 to Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, HKD150,000 to
Professor Cheng Longdi, and HKD180,000 to Professor Tao
Xiaoming for the year ended 31 December 2019. Save for the
above directors’ fees, none of the independent non-executive
Directors has received any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director.

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the company secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations
where appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board
meeting, as mentioned on page 29 in the section “The Board”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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The Company has established the Remuneration Committee since
November 2004, which currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi and
the chairman and an executive Director of the Company, namely
Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, this should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2019 to review and discuss the
existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors, the
remuneration packages of both the executive and non-executive
Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEEgRE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Hong Tianzhu AR
Tao Xiaoming b8 H BA
Cheng Longdi TR

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during
2019. The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and
key employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in April 2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 60 to
62 and note 17 to the financial statements.

The Audit Committee has been established since November 2004,
the current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng
Longdi. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee has been chaired by an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee has adopted terms of
reference, which are in line with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports before submission to the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

to discuss with the management the risk management and
internal control systems and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management'’s response.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Two
committee meetings were held in 2019 and the attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Tao Xiaoming b8 H A
Cheng Longdi TR

During the meetings held in 2019, the Audit Committee had
performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “2018 Final Audit”);

(i) reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in relation to
the 2018 Final Audit;

(i) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31
December 2018 and for the six months ended 30 June 2019;
and

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors.

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the establishment of
the Nomination Committee which became effective on 1 April 2012.
The current members of Nomination Committee comprises an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination Committee
is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination Committee has adopted
terms of reference which are in line with the code provisions of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(xi)

the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills, knowledge
and experience required from members of the Board;

the policy on the terms of employment of non-executive
Directors;

the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and other board committees of the
Company;

proposed changes to the structure, size and composition
of the Board;

candidates suitably qualified to become members of the
Board;

the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

the re-election by shareholders of the Company of any
Directors who are to retire by rotation having regard to
their performance and ability to continue to contribute to
the Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any independent
non-executive Director serving more than nine years
and to provide recommendation to the shareholders of
the Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent non-
executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board members;
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(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

@)

38

to give full consideration to the following in the discharge of its
duties as mentioned above or elsewhere in these terms of
reference:

(i)  succession planning of Directors;

(i)  leadership needs of the Group with a view of maintaining
or fostering the competitive edge of the Group over
others;

(i) changes in market environment and commercial needs
of the market in which the Group operates;

(iv) the skills and expertise required from members of the
Board;

(v) the Board’s policy concerning diversity of Board
members adopted from time to time; and

(vi) the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of a listed issuer;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered
into by any members of the Group with its director or
proposed director, which require the prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company at general meeting under rule
13.68 of the Listing Rules, to review and provide
recommendations to the shareholders of the Company (other
than shareholders who are directors with a material interest in
the relevant service contracts and their respective associates)
as to whether the terms of the service contracts are fair and
reasonable and whether such service contracts are in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure upon the appointment to the Board, non- executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
what is expected of them in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvement outside meetings of the
Board;

to conduct interviews with any Director upon their resignation
in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.
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The director nomination policy of Company aims to set out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company; ensure that the board (the “Board”) of directors of
the Company has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out
as follows:

. bringing an independent judgment and make constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant
Board Committees, if invited;

. devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit from
his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and
participation in the Board;

. scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance;

. ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she
serves to perform their powers and functions conferred on
them by the Board; and

. conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock
Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an INED with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

(a) Appointment of New Director
(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i)  If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then recommend to
the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting
(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules
and/or applicable laws and regulations.

(c) Re-election of INED at General Meeting
Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(iy the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected and
the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

(iv) how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the
structure, size and composition of the Board and this Policy and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
business needs, to comply with all applicable laws and regulations
from time to time and maintain good corporate governance practice.
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On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking
into account diversity including gender diversity. The Nomination
Committee will regularly review the measurable objectives to
ensure its effectiveness to achieve diversity on the Board. The
following measurable objectives have been set for implementing
the board diversity policy:

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

. ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors;
. inclusion of candidates for Board members with working

experience in other industries; and

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge
and skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved, 7 out of 8 members of the Board have overseas working
experience and 2 out of 8 members of the Board have accounting
or other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2019 to review the structure and
composition of the Board and the re-election of the retiring Directors
and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
Hong Tianzhu R
Tao Xiaoming b8 H BA
Cheng Longdi FEREAR
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate
to the Board for approval of an appointment.

42 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

EXZeR T =F/\ALBARBEFEIHESZ T
LB aE%&ﬁ‘JLJﬂZé%QﬁX%;ETKE’JE& &
FENERNRMBEAMRS  TERIZTE - 8
RUERZT - REZBENENEHAAERE - #
REMEREESZ LI - EHATEFTEZ T
BERMATSLA T ATt 2 B AR

. ERgnREEFREBEAREIN (PEEIN)
TERRE -

. JERER DRI RIMEEEE

. EEeNREEERBHRE!
BE R

EEEMITETIEE

. ETeMREESEAGETREEHNME R
fiiy o

MAFEHREH - LABFDEN  8REFTENEF
BTHARBITIIEEBRLSZREEERETH2E
BBEt A MERXER -

—REF -NRZT—Nh
AR EEENEBR
BB 2 EE RN

Number of committee
meeting attended/held
HE BTZEEER I

11
11
11
171

REZEGERM—EUETEIS 2 RBREF (12
#22F)) - ARJIARRRESREA ZERERE

BELEL - RERZBEERBEREBEFAEHZZ
SRR (MREEE BEAZRIRHFHEE) RE

%A%@&Lui/\ EATHOERE -



New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a Director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary to give the new Directors more detailed information on
the Group’s businesses and activities.

The Company has not set up any corporate governance committee.
Since April 2012, the Board has adopted written terms of reference
in compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of
the corporate governance and system of internal non-financial
controls of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose
relevant principles concerning corporate governance and to review
and determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance
and to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in
the Group.

During the year, the Board regularly reviews and monitors the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from finance department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019, the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Auditor’s
Report on pages 122 to 129.

Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will assist the
Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by identifying and
assessing all the risk exposure of the Group and setting down
corresponding control measures, with a view to attain the long-term
vision of the Group. We believe that effective risk management and
internal controls system will enhance shareholders’ value in the
long term. The risk faced by the Group directly relates to its control
measures and mitigation plan.
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ERELIRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BERZE (#)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) BEEBERAIBEE(E)
Framework (Continued) MR (E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls framework it - NEBMMEKRE IR & ASFESIERMNT
of our Group is as follows:

The Board Audit Committee

|

Risk Management and
Internal Controls Team
BB TR M P R EE 4N

Internal Audit

AR
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Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management and internal
control framework conforms to the internal controls framework of
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission) in the following five aspects:

Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization structure and
delegated powers necessary to perform different business
functions to management at different levels but it is subject to
the limit set by the Board. The Board meets regularly to
discuss and approve the business strategies and working
plans set by each operating units. The Group will report our
financial performance to the Board on monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very transparent
to employees. We hope to build up risk awareness and
internal controls responsibility in our corporate culture by
creating an internal organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness, integrity
and ethical values.

Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the risks that are
most relevant to the success of the Group based on the
possibility of occurrence and the impact on the financial result
of the risk). Risk management and internal controls team is
responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessment, as well as taking care of the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Meanwhile, it requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the bottom in
order to determine the major risks and the risk levels of the
Group.

Control Activities

The Group has policy and procedure in place for all business
functions, including authorization, approval and audit,
recommendation, performance review, asset protection and
division of duty, to ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.

Information and Communication

The risk management and internal controls team performs
risk assessment and prepare the Annual Report of Risk
Management on a semi-annual basis, which sets out the
identified risks and related control procedures. The report will
be submitted to the Board and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.
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Framework (Continued)

. Monitoring
The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by internal
review and circulating major control procedures to its
employees to maintain continuous monitoring of the internal
control procedures. Rectification will be made according to
findings of the control procedures in order to improve internal
monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team

Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been set up by
the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Tang Daoping (executive
Director and chief operation officer), Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (executive
Director) and Mr. Ji Zhongliang (executive Director), and members
including general manager and department head from each of our
operating units, and general managers and department head of
finance and human resources department of our subsidiaries. Mr.
Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director and chairman of the Group
and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, an executive Director and vice chairman
and chief executive officer of the Group act as advisors of the
working team.

Major Tasks
Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk management
and internal control team:

. The team shall formulate proposal and plan for building and
promotion of corporate culture in risk awareness and to lead
in providing risk management training.

. The team shall prepare and conduct annual and interim
reviews on risk profile and formulate mitigating measures.

. The team shall summarize and analyze the findings of the
review exercise, to advise any modification to the risk
management strategy, to lead and assist relevant
departments in formulating counter measures in addressing
any material risks.

. It shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its own risk
management function, to lead and mobilize the establishment
and modification of risk management and internal controls
system, to give guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting
up of risk management system.

. It shall prepare the Annual Report on Risk Management and
submit the same to our Audit Committee for review and
approval.

. It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the relevant risk

management and internal controls system and to oversee its
implementation, to give guidance and assist the subsidiaries
on setting up and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)
Major Tasks (Continued)

It shall be responsible for the organization, compiling of
minutes and oversight of implementation of relevant
resolutions concerning the risk management function in the
meetings of the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by implementing
the measures stipulated therein and to monitor the work rate
and efficiency of such implementation on an ongoing basis,
and advise on remedy in a timely manner.

It shall monitor the status and development of any risk events
and formulate and devise contingency plan in a timely
manner, to forthwith report or inform the Audit Committee on
such matters.

Work Accomplished in 2019

Our risk management and internal controls team held two meetings
in 2019, and reported twice to the Audit Committee and the Board
on the annual risk assessment and findings of internal controls
review. The team accomplished the following work in 2019:

1.

issued relevant documents on risk assessment and internal
controls within the Group to enhance its risk management
culture;

performed a general review on the major risk exposure of the
Group, especially in areas relating to raw material purchase,
foreign exchange and exchange rate, credit management and
taxation;

discussed the possible risk and impact on operating result
with department heads from each of our operating units;

reviewed and improved corresponding internal controls
measure;

prepared and submitted the annual report on risk assessment
and internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 19 to 28.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2019, our Board had reviewed
the representations made by the management in respect of risk
management and internal controls, and considered that our Group’s
risk management and internal controls system effective and
adequate. No significant areas of weaknesses and deficiency that
might have affected the financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group were identified. The
Board is of the view that the resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training and budget are adequate.
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Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)

The risk management and internal controls system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our
business objectives. Like all other systems, it could not entirely
eliminate the impact of all unforeseeable risks and events beyond
our control that might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that there was no significant
misrepresentation or deficiency as to the completeness and
effectiveness of our Group’s risk management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information
Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. hasincluded in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of non-public or inside information;

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the

implementation of the Continuous Disclosures Policy and
relevant trainings are also provided.
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During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is
set out as follows:

RER - B RENAR BN Z A& KRUKGE
BRTENEBA M NT

Paid/Payable

Services rendered to the Group EAEEREZRE e ENER
RMB’000
ARBFT
Annual audit service FREEZRE 3,850
Non-audit services (including consulting service B (REEREEMRE -
for transfer pricing and environmental, social and e RERMENERRSE R
governance report, agreed-upon procedures for AEBFEVHEER R
selected financial information of the Group, and MFEBERHEHBERF)
preliminary announcement of results) 416
Total: &t 4,266

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The chairman actively participated in the AGM held during the year
and personally chaired the meeting to answer any questions from
the shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed by the
chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An
AGM circular and AGM notice had been distributed to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the articles of
association of the Company and the Listing Rules, setting out
details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. The chairman explained the procedures for
conducting a poll at the beginning of the AGM, and answered any
questions from shareholders regarding voting by way of poll.
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The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”,
each a “Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) of the Company are prepared in
accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company:

1. One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings shall have the right, by written
notice (the “Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified
therein.

2. Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

3.  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such Requisition.

4.  If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of the deposit of such Requisition, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

1. Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.  Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of
the Company via email at the email address of the Company
at main@texhong.com.

3.  Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together

with their detailed contact information for the prompt response
from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/
her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed
contact information via email at the email address of the
Company at main@texhong.com.

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar
that the request is proper and in order and made by a
Shareholder, the Board will include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(i)  Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an
annual general meeting or a special resolution of the
Company;

(i)  Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in meeting other than an annual
general meeting or approval by way of a special
resolution of the Company.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
development. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders
are also welcome to enhance our transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 52, is an executive Director and chairman
of the Group. He is the founder of the Group. He is responsible for
the strategic development and strategic deployment, project
investment and decision-making for major issues, leadership and
policy decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of the
Group. He has over 20 years of experience in the textile industry.
Prior to establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a vice general
manager of & T & R & E B R A 7 (Jinjiang Yifeng Garment
Weaving Company Limited). Mr. Hong’s interest in the shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 53, is an executive Director, vice
Chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. He is
responsible for the strategy implementation, operational planning
and decision-making, decision-making for major issues and
organizational implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the 7 B %7 & T 22 ft (Nantong Textile Industry College) in
1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was an assistant
to the general manager of 8 @ % — 48 47 & ® (Nantong No. 2
Cotton Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu'’s interest in the Shares of the
Company is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 54, is an executive Director and chief
operation officer of the Group. He is responsible for the operation
management of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from & /M & &
& 18 K 2 (Xuzhou Radio and TV University) in 1996 majoring in
accounting and administrative management. Mr. Tang has over 30
years of experience in the textile industry. He was a workshop
manager of MEEE R4 4%M (Suining Cotton Textile Factory) prior to
joining the Group in 1998 as a vice general manager. Mr. Tang was
promoted and became a director of Jiangsu Century Texhong in
September 2002. Mr. Tang’s interest in the Shares of the Company
is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations” in this annual report.
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Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, aged 46, is an executive Director and company
secretary. He is responsible for the management of finance,
information system and treasury management of the Group. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of business administration (honours) degree. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a Certified Fraud Examiner. He has more
than 20 years working experience in finance related area. Prior to
first joining the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hui had been working
at one of the big four international accounting firms for about nine
years. Mr. Hui had been the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr.
Hui’s interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Ji Zhongliang, aged 56, is an executive Director. He is
responsible for the operations management of the Group’s garment
fabric and garment business segment. Mr. Ji graduated from
Jiangsu College of Engineering and Technology of the PRC ()T &
T2 B 2 #1722 8% ) (formerly known as Nantong Textile Industry
School (PB4 4T 2 E4%)) in July 1982. Prior to joining the Group
in August 2015, he had been the vice president of Black Peony
(Group) Co. Ltd. (& #t (& E)k 7 £ BB 2 7)) (stock code:
600510), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange from December 2011 to May 2015. He had been the
general manager of Changzhou K&J Import and Export Co., Ltd. (%
M LA OAFR A F), which is principally engaged in import and
export of cotton and fabrics in the PRC from October 1997 to May
2011, the general manger of Black Peony Group Import and Export
Co.,Ltd (2EH A EB#E L O AR A A) which is principally
engaged in import and export of textile, garments and daily
necessities in the PRC from May 2011 to December 2011, and the
chairman of the board of directors of Black Peony (HK) Limited,
which is principally engaged in manufacture of denim in the PRC
from December 2011 to May 2015. Mr. Ji has more than 30 years’
working experience in the textile industry. Mr. Ji is a director of
Texhong Dyeing and Printing Technology Limited, a indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014. Professor
Tao is an elected fellow of The Textile Institute, the American
Society of Mechanical Engineers, the Royal Academy of Arts and
Design and Commerce of the United Kingdom, and has been the
chair professor in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and
Clothing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University since April 2002.
She was elected as the world president of The Textile Institute for a
tenure of three years from May 2007. Professor Tao received a
bachelor’'s degree in textile engineering from China Textile
University (4 Bl47 45 AX28) (currently known as Donghua University
(BZEEKE2)) of the PRC in January 1982 and a doctorate degree in
textile physics from University of New South Wales in August 1987.
From September 1987 to September 1988 and from October 1990
to September 1994, she had been a scientist of the Commonwealth
Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From
October 1988 to January 1990, she had been a lecturer of Donghua
University. Professor Tao was the recipient of two prestigious
individual awards of the field: the honorary fellowship by The Textile
Institute in November 2010 and the founder award of the Fiber
Society of the United States in November 2013. With seven
academic monographs, over 800 research papers published and
over 30 patents granted, she has been internationally recognised in
particular for her pioneering work on smart textiles and clothing and
textile engineering such as low-twist yarns, solospun yarns and
fabric sensing technology which have been widely applied in the
textile industry.

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 November 2004.
Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in textile
engineering from Donghua University in 2002. He is currently a
professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles and a deputy director of
the Key Laboratory of Textile Science and Technology of Donghua
University. Professor Cheng is a member of the expert committee
of each of the following institutions: the China Cotton Textile
Association of New Technology (as a deputy director), the China
Knitting Industrial Association, the China Bast And Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the China Textile Machinery Association.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile Academy
(formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry). Professor
Cheng is currently an independent director of Jiangsu Lianfa Textile
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002394) which is a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and Hengli Petrochemical Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 600346) as well as Zhejiang Taihua New Material Co.,
Ltd (stock code: 603055) which are companies listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 66, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 21 November 2004. Mr.
Ting is an accountant in public practice and has more than 30
years’ experience in this field. Currently he is a partner and director
of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited respectively.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of six other
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely China SCE Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00046), Dongyue Group Limited (stock code:
00189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 00472),
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (stock code:
01666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 00698)
respectively. He is also a non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (stock code: 00116).

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and director
of our grey fabric production and management center. Mr. Sha
obtained his bachelor’s degree in textile from #8588 T 2 87 (Wuxi
Light Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 27 years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998,
he was a factory manager of one of the factories of B85 — #B4h 4%
% (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and
general manager of Taizhou business segment. Mr. Hu graduated
from #8582 K2 (Wuxi Professional University) in textile in 1984.
Mr. Hu has over 27 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of #&5 #E 4355 R A 7 (Wuxi Xieda
Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and
director of the yarn production and management center of the
Group. He is responsible for the yarn production of the Group. Mr.
Cao graduated from 4 & %7 & T 2 f7 (Nantong Textile Industry
College) with a bachelor’s degree in textile engineering in 1994. Mr.
Cao has over 22 years of experience in the textile industry. He
joined the Group in 2000, and served as the director of yarn
technology of the Group.
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIloD (Chairman)
Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),

ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)
Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),

ACA, FTIHK, FHKloD
Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Room 03, 37/F,
Cable TV Tower
9 Hoi Shing Road
Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Bank of China (Hong Kong)

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Crédit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
Agricultural Development Bank Of China

Citibank (China) Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Merchants Bank

Bank of China

BNP Paribas

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

Chiu & Partners

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
George Town, Grand Cayman
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The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 41 to the accompanying financial statements.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments. Business analysis
of sales, segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are
set out in note 5 to the accompanying financial statements.

The Group operates in six main geographical areas, the PRC,
Vietnam, Cambodia, Turkey, Nicaragua and North America.
Geographical analysis of sales, segment results, total assets, and
capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the accompanying
financial statements.

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance or position of the Company’s business, please refer to
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance of such rules and
regulations on the business. During the year ended 31 December
2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure
sustainable development of its business. The Group understands
that a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution in environmental protection. All employees are
encouraged to participate in environmental and social activities
which benefit the community as a whole.
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The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as
reducing pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency and
reducing material consumption. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Details of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Group are set out on pages 79 to 121 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 132 of this
annual report.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.15 per share in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 18 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
7 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 16 to the accompanying financial statements.

The Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2019 is
set out in note 39 to the accompanying financial statements.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting on 7 April 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. All directors, employees, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, persons or entities that provide
research, development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group, advisers or consultants
of the Group and any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement and growth of the
Group are eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 88,468,117 Shares, representing
10% of the Shares in issue on the Adoption Date and 9.67% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report respectively (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may renew the General
Scheme Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that each such
renewal may not exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in
issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-months period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being (the “Individual Limit”).

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than

10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of
options to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the
Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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Movements of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 are summarised
as follows and details of which are set out in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements:

List of
grantees

RRALE

Directors
iz
Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
FFERE

Total
it

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until ~ #/iZ -

Date of grant (Note)

Rt A ()

23 March 2015
Z2-RF=AzfER

23 March 2015
Z2-RF=Azf=R

23 March 2015
Z2-RF=AzfER

23 March 2015
ZZ-RF=AzfER

23 March 2015
ZZ-RF=AzfER
23 March 2015
ZZ-RF=AzfER
28 December 2015
Z2-1FtZAZTNR

28 December 2015
Z2-1FtZAZTNR

28 December 2015
Z2-REtCACTR

28 December 2015
ZE-IFTAZTNE

28 December 2015
Z3-IFTAZTNE

Exercise period

e

January 2016 to 22 March 2025

1 January 201 7!0 22 March 2025
“E-t5-A-BE

“FZRESACTIA

1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025
\#-F-B%
S e

1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025
NE-R-B%
F=A=12A

1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025

Zf t5- ﬁ RE
St 2 o =

January 201910 27 December 2025
Z5-hE-f-HE

3 B

January 2020 10 27 December 2025
—f-BE

FtZA=ttA

1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025

the commencement of the exercise period.
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Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of grant
ZEEL
REHZER
LG

HKS

B

827

821

821

821

821

821

5.84

5.84

5.84

5.84

5.84

Number of share options
EREYR
Outstanding
Exercise asat
price per 1 January
share 2019
R-B-1E
-A-8
SRORE 34
HKS
o
8.70 670,000
8.70 670,000
8.70 660,000
2,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
5170 300,000
5170 300,000
4,500,000
6,500,000

REZEZ

Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
during during during during

the year the year the year the year
RERRE PEATE REREX RERTE

T AFT-AST-ALFE
OB A1 )58 11 2 B A 2 5
B & BTSRRI 17 ¢

PZBMEMNT

RIERE
FEH

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2019
R-B-1E
t2h=+-A
Rt

670,000

670,000

660,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

4,500,000

6,500,000

R FEARREAMEEETERRGRRL -



The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*
Professor Cheng Longdi*
Professor Tao Xiaoming*

*

Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang
and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen will retire from office by rotation
and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr. Tang
Daoping, all being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of one year
commencing from 21 November 2015, and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. Mr.
Hui Tsz Wai and Mr. Ji Zhongliang, both being executive Directors,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from their respective dates of
appointment as an executive Director, and will continue thereafter
for successive term of one year until terminated by not less than
three month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming
and Professor Cheng Longdi, all being independent non-executive
directors, has been appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then current
term, unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BHLEFEREELRR
ERH - EEZEFOT

AR L
ROKFESR L
BBt
AFERE
ERRELE
TRESEE
TERRHX -
be AR

* BMIFRITESF

AR AR ) 740460 5 72 40 B 5 108(A) % 108(B) 14 - it
KA ~ SARERER T BIBEERRESE &
ERAERLBENNERTOREBEAS LB
(T -

HITEEHARNEL RAFEERSGETFEED
EEBEARAIYLRADLD B_FT—HF+—AH
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The service contracts entered into by the Company with each of the
Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during the
year ended 31 December 2019, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the limitations
specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for the benefit of the
executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company
shall indemnify and hold harmless any Directors on demand from
and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and
expenses, including without limitation, any proceedings brought
against such Directors, arising from the performance of his duties
pursuant to or his appointment under the service contracts, so far
as permitted by law, except in any case where the matter in respect
of which indemnification is sought was caused by the default,
neglect, omission or fraud of the executive Directors. The Company
has also taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities that may arise out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no claims were made
against the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors confirmation of his independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis during
the year under review are set out in note 40 to the accompanying
financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the accompanying
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the
senior management by band is set out as follows:

Remuneration bands

yNeE

Below RMB1,000,000
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000
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AE# 1,000,000 TTIA T

AK#1,000,001 7T% A K# 2,000,000 7T
AR 2,000,001 702 A £ # 3,000,000 7T
AE# 3,000,001 7TZ AR # 4,000,000 70
AR 4,000,001 7TE A K% 5,000,000 7

AARBEEERITZRAELD(BRIEREREE =
E-NEFE+_A=+—BLFEEERHENTEK
X BEBENE622F N RGN EEFRE K
X MERE TS 468 [2 469 {5 F5IBR R E T IR HIFTIR
WAEBBAZZEA - REBEZZHC ARG EFREM
BEEEARATFBERT  RERBANTHEZER
THREMEEMEMRATAIEL R - BE &
MY - BIEETRARZESREENTEFR |
ZEEFEHBENEERFEZEZTATHEE  #
WAMITEREY B2 - BRIEFFMERMBEN
B - BIERIGR - RARMEREREFEER
B (REBEETNEEERAREBAIREELNET - R
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Number of
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Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to the legal framework, market condition and performance
of the Group and individual staff including the Directors). The
remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in the paragraph
headed “Remuneration Committee” under the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 28 to the accompanying financial statements.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 52 to 55 of
this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

AEBBEXERE  MHERRAEAKERERE
T(BRES)ZERR - TR EFHMER o #
ZESREARIASERNTESTRSREREZH
MR REFMAS  FERRAFERS [REER
WmE]—EHIHFMEES] —BRA -

REBRKERETE 2 5B R BEMT < B 75 R 3R I
128 -

BEERSREEAERAFTRBBAZEAABESHD
NEREE2EE5H o

RZZE-NAFE+ZA=+—B XRASEFRIT
BN AR AR EEEEE(EEREBEMNE
571 B &= LB RN ([EH REIEED ) FEXVE)
2y HERO RERESTHRERBEES RAE
B2 35216 - LEHENARARATFE2ERMAZ
m kR - RE ET AR BIPrE IR LT AR E
JRLAE A 75 SR AR R B R B AP 2 e am ROk R A
™

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary
associated shares
Name of directors corporation Nature of (Note 1)
of the Company rEEBREDT interest ZER#E Percentage
AATESHR HEEE AR ERME (Bfat1) Bok
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.53%
BRI E /NS corporation(s) (Note 2)
PEEHE AR (Mtat2)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000 (L) 0.59%
AN/NE]! BHEAA
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 24.03%
RoKEE R EAN/NG| iRkt e (Note 3)
(et 3)
Mr. Tang Daoping the Company Beneficial owner 2,580,000 (L) 0.28%
BT RAE PAN/NE]! BEEEAA (Note 4)
(Kfet4)
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai the Company Beneficial owner 4,500,000 (L) 0.49%
FFERE RAT] BEmBEEA (Note 5)
(Kfat5)
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Notes:

1.

2.

66

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by New Green
Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned
by Mr. Hong Tianzhu and as to 151,900,000 Shares are registered in
the name of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New Green Group
Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is a director of
Texhong Group Holdings Limited, New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is the spouse
of Ms. Zhao Zhiyang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhao
Zhiyang is interested. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments Limited.

These interests includes 2,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Tang
Daoping pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

These interests represent share options granted to Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2019, the
interests or short position of the persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of the Company:

Name of the
substantial shareholders

TERRHEEB

New Green Group Limited

Trade Partner Investments Limited

Wisdom Grace Investments Limited

Texhong Group Holdings Limited

Ms. Ke Luping
e L

Ms. Zhao Zhiyang
WEHL L

Mr. Hui Ching Lau
A

Event Star Limited

TTHARERIN AT -
ARTZ EBE -

Number of
ordinary
shares
Nature of (Note 1)
interests ZEREE
ERME (Htat1)
Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L)
EmfiE A (Note 2)
(Htet2)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L)
corporation(s) (Note 3)
FRIEHE AR (Kt5£3)
Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L)
BEnEBA (Note 3)
(Ftat3)
Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L)
EmEa A (Note 4)
(Ktat4)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L)
corporation(s) (Note 3)
P E AR (K455 3)

Interest of controlled
corporation(s)
FTiElE Az

Interest of spouse
Bo B

Interest of controlled
corporation(s)

PREHLE AR 2

Interest of controlled
corporation(s)

PRIEHNE AR 2

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

544,742,400 (L)
(Notes 2 and 3)
(Hizt25%3)

550,142,400 (L)
(Note 5)
(Kt5t5)

219,900,000 (L)
(Note 6)
(Ktzt6)

55,058,000 (L)
(Note 7)
(Htet7)

55,058,000 (L)

(Note 7)
(Htet7)
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Percentage
Aot

42.93%

16.60%

16.60%

7.43%

16.60%

59.53%

60.12%

24.03%

6.02%

6.02%
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Notes:

1.

2.

68

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Texhong Group
Holdings Limited, a company wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Hong
Tianzhu. Under the SFO, each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited
and Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by New Green Group Limited.

These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by
Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.
Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang, New
Green Group Limited and Wisdom Grace Investments Limited is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Trade Partner
Investments Limited.

These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao
Zhiyang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited.

Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO,
Ms. Ke Luping is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is interested.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

These 55,058,000 Shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Event Star Limited, a company which is 100%
controlled by Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Event Star
Limited.
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Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements which enabled the Directors (including their spouses
or children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in
note 37 of the financial statements and in the section headed
“Connected transactions” in this annual report, no Director nor an
entity connected with such director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in
note 37 of the financial statements and in the section headed
“Connected transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance has been entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
were not contracts of service with any Director or any person
engaged in full time employment of the Company were entered into
or subsisted during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of
purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 13.0%
— five largest suppliers combined 24.1%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.5%
— five largest customers combined 9.2%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers of the Group noted above.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
conducted the following continuing connected transactions which
were required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the
Listing Rules:

(1

70

Reference is made to (i) the announcement of the Company
dated 23 May 2017 in relation to the supply of utilities and
wastewater treatment services by Texhong Industrial Park
Vietnam Limited to each of Texhong Galaxy Technology
Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”) for its uses on the Texhong
Galaxy Land (as defined below) and Texhong Dyeing And
Printing Vietnam Limited (Currently known as Texhong
Winnitex Vietnam Limited) (“Texhong Dyeing”) for its uses on
the Dyeing Land (as defined below); and (ii) the
announcement of the Company dated 20 October 2017 in
relation to supply of gas by Texhong Industrial Park to
Texhong Dyeing Land; and (iii) the announcement of the
Company dated 10 May 2019 and the supplemental
announcement of the Company dated 17 May 2019.

On 10 May 2019, Texhong Galaxy, as customer, had entered
into the following renewal agreements with Texhong Industrial
Park, as supplier, for its uses on two parcels of industrial land
located at Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang
Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area of approximately
225,000 square metres and 215,000 square metres,
respectively, and the infrastructure erected thereon (“Texhong
Galaxy Land”) with effect from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2021:

1.  the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong Galaxy
Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2.  the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“Texhong Galaxy Steam
Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation
to the provision and supply of wastewater treatment
service (“Texhong Galaxy Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement”); and

4.  the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“Texhong Galaxy Water
Master Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “Texhong Galaxy Agreements”)
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)

3)

On 10 May 2019, Texhong Dyeing, as customer, had entered
into the following renewal agreements with Texhong Industrial
Park, as supplier, for its uses on a parcel of industrial land
located at Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang
Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area of approximately
123,228 square metres and the infrastructure erected thereon
(“Texhong Dyeing Land”) with effect from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2021:

1.  the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong Dyeing
Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2.  the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“Texhong Dyeing Steam
Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation
to the provision and supply of wastewater treatment
service (“Texhong Dyeing Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement”);

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“Texhong Dyeing Water
Master Supply Agreement”); and

5. the provision and supply of liquefied petroleum gas
(“Texhong Dyeing Gas Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “Texhong Dyeing Agreements”)

On 10 May 2019, as it is anticipated that there will be
additional usage, the annual caps under the Texhong Galaxy
Water Supply Master Supply Agreement, Texhong Galaxy
Wastewater Treatment Service Agreement and Texhong
Dyeing Gas Supply Agreement were being revised.
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(4)

72

On 10 May 2019, Texhong United Technology Vietnam
Company Limited (“United Technology Vietnam”), had entered
into the following agreements with Texhong Industrial Park,
as supplier, for its uses on a parcel of industrial land located
at Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh
Province, Vietnam with a site area of approximately 269,748.5
square meters and the infrastructure erected thereon (“United
Technology Vietnam Land”) with effect from 1 June 2019 to
31 December 2021:

1.  the power master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of electricity (“United Technology
Vietnam Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2.  the steam master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of steam (“United Technology
Vietnam Steam Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in relation
to the provision and supply of wastewater treatment
service (“United Technology Vietnam Wastewater
Treatment Service Agreement”); and

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to the
provision and supply of water (“United Technology
Vietnam Water Master Supply Agreement”).

(collectively, “United Technology Vietham Agreements”)

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
May 2019 for further details.

The tables below set out the actual transaction amount and
the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019 for
each of the Texhong Dyeing Agreements, Texhong Galaxy
Agreements and United Technology Vietnam Agreements.
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Texhong Dyeing Agreements

RITRENGH

Texhong Dyeing Power Master Supply Agreement
PNAR S SHE KN

Texhong Dyeing Water Master Supply Agreement
PN S SV NN

Texhong Dyeing Steam Master Supply Agreement
RELREZK T HIE BT E

Texhong Dyeing Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement
R R T57K B IR AR T W3

Texhong Dyeing Gas Supply Agreement
RATRBIRTAET 5

Texhong Galaxy Agreements

R ST 4R 5 155 5

Texhong Galaxy Power Master Supply Agreement
RSN R E =

Actual transaction amount
ERRX SR

Existing annual caps

RAEFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRXF e

Existing annual caps

RAEFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRXF e

Existing annual caps

RAEFE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERRZEH

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRZEH

Previous annual caps

SERFE LR

Revised annual caps
BETFELER

Actual transaction amount
ERRZEH

Existing annual caps

REFELR

For the year
ended

31 December
2019
BE-Z—NF
+=A=+-A8
WHFE

RMB3.6 million
A 3,600,000 7T

RMB22.4 million
AR 22,400,000 7T

RMB1.2 million
A 1,200,000 7T

RMB3.0 million
A 3,000,000 7T

RMB11.4 million
A 11,400,000 7T

RMB29.1 million
AR #29,100,000 7T

RMB1.6 million
AR # 1,600,000 7T

RMB3.7 million
A 3,700,000 7T

RMB1.5 million
AER# 1,500,000 7T

RMB3.1 million
A 3,100,000 7T

RMB3.4 million
AR 3,400,000 7T

RMB163.9 million
AR ¥ 163,900,000 7T

RMB260.3 million
A K% 260,300,000 7T
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Texhong Galaxy Water Master Supply Agreement
KA KA e

Texhong Galaxy Steam Master Supply Agreement
RUTERON 2T B A 1

Texhong Galaxy Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement
REHRA5 KB IR AR5 17 7

United Technology Vietham Agreements

B & R LR 15

United Technology Vietham Power Master
Supply Agreement
BERH B EHEARE

United Technology Vietnam Steam Master
Supply Agreement
AR Rgm R AR

United Technology Viethnam Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement

& RHE MRS KRR R HiE

United Technology Vietnam Water Master
Supply Agreement
e R K@

Actual transaction amount
ERRZ e

Previous annual caps

SERTEE LR

Revised annual caps
BIERTFE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERRZ e

Existing annual caps

REFE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERRH e

Previous annual caps

FERTFEEER

Revised annual caps
BAEFTFE R

Actual transaction amount
ERRSe8

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRS e

Existing annual caps

BEFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERX S

Existing annual caps
BEFELR

Actual transaction amount
ERRZe8

Existing annual caps

REFE LR
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For the year

ended

31 December
2019
BE-Z—NF
+=A=+-A8
IHFE

RMB2.696 million
AR ¥ 2,696,000 7T

RMB1.52 million
AR# 1,520,000 7T

RMB2.7 million
AE# 2,700,000 7T

RMB10.2 million
A% 10,200,000 7T

RMB10.3 million
A K% 10,300,000 7T

RMB3.596 million
A 3,596,000 7T

RMB2.2 million
AR #2,200,0007T

RMB3.6 million
A% 3,600,0007T

Nil
i

RMB2.471 million
AER¥2,471,000 7T

RMB53,000
AR # 53,000 7T

RMB2.792 million
ARE# 2,792,000 7T
Nil

e

RMB1.211 million
AER#1,211,000 7

RMB27,000
AR 27,000 7T

RMB661,000
A% 661,000 7T



Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman
of the Company and an executive Director and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang,
the co-chief executive officer of the Group and an executive
Director. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
Texhong Dyeing Agreements, the Texhong Galaxy Agreements
and United Technology Vietham Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditors of the Company, has issued
a letter to the Company to confirm the matters stated in Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

On 23 December 2019, Texhong Industrial Park entered into an
agreement (“Agreement”) with Texhong Knitting (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Texhong Khnitting”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, in relation to the acquisition of land use rights of a
parcel of industrial land located at Texhong Haiha Industrial Park,
Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area of
approximately 249,904.5 square meters (“Phase | Land”) for a total
consideration of around RMB106.0 million.

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of it being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Group and an executive Director and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, the
co-chief executive officer of the Group and an executive Director.
The entering into of the Agreement between Texhong Industrial
Park and Texhong Knitting therefore constituted a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2019 and
the supplemental announcement dated 3 January 2020 regarding
the acquisition of land use rights in Vietnam.
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As announced by the Company on 10 December 2018 (the
“Winnitex Announcement”), the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with, among others,
Winnitex Group Limited and Winnitex China Holdings Limited on 7
December 2018 for the purchase by the Company of the entire
issued share capital of Winnitex Holdings Limited and the entire
equity interest in Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing, Printing Co.,
Ltd. for the aggregate consideration of HK$1.35 billion (subject to
the adjustments as disclosed in the Winnitex Announcement).
Winnitex Holdings Limited and its subsidiary, together with Zhejiang
Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing, Printing Co., Ltd. (collectively, the
“Target Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of woven textile fabrics and providing a vertically integrated
service, from spinning, weaving, dyeing, to finishing for its
international clients.

As further disclosed in the Winnitex Announcement, on 7 December
2018, Texhong Winnitex Holdings Limited (a then wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (“Texhong Winnitex”) entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with, among
others, Mr. Wai Chi Kwok, Jacob and Mr. Wai Chi Wah, Nelson
(collectively, the “Subscribers”) as subscribers for the subscription
by the Subscribers of 20% of the enlarged share capital of Texhong
Winnitex at the subscription price determined based on the formula
disclosed in the Winnitex Announcement. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, a reorganisation took place upon which
Texhong Winnitex has become the holding company of (i) the
Target Group; (ii) the weaving and dyeing operations in Nicaragua
owned and controlled by Texhong Winnitex Americas Limited (a
then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) together with its
subsidiaries; and (iii) the weaving and dyeing operations in Vietnam
owned and controlled by Merit Horizon International Limited (a then
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) together with its
subsidiaries.

Completion of the above acquisition and subscription took place in
April 2019. Both the acquisition and the subscription constituted
discloseable transactions of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules, please refer to the Winnitex Announcement for
further details.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies by the Company
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under
the Listing Rules at any time during the financial year ended 31
December 2019.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming
and Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The rights and duties of the Audit
Committee comply with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 19 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao
Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong
Tianzhu. The Nomination Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November
2004. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi and the
chairman and executive Director, namely Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has rights and duties
consistent with those set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible for
formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all remunerations of
the Directors and senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made
charitable contributions amounted to approximately RMB4.40
million.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance was known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries that would have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or results of operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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According to the requirements of the Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company has prepared
this environmental, social and governance report (the “ESG Report”
or the “Report”), which sets out the performance of the Group in
terms of environmental and social subject areas in 2019. This is the
fourth ESG Report published consecutively by the Group.

The Report covers the main business segments of the Group in the
manufacturing of yarns, grey fabrics, garment fabrics and garments,
including the environmental key performance indicators (“KPI”) of
the 18 production subsidiaries of the Group that are situated in
Mainland China, Vietham, Cambodia and Nicaragua, throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2019. There are no major
adjustments to the scope of the Report as compared to the ESG
Report contained in the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group performed an assessment over the relevant subject
areas and KPIs in terms of applicability and materiality in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide. In full compliance with
the disclosure requirement “comply or explain”, this report provides
explanations as to why certain disclosure rules do not apply to the
Group, thereby satisfying the reporting principles of the ESG
Reporting Guide:

. “Materiality”: The Group determines material ESG issues by

stakeholders engagement and materiality assessment;

. “Quantitative”: The Report states the Group’s applicable
environmental KPIs on a quantitative basis;

. “Consistency”: The relevant disclosure methodology of the
Report remains unchanged and will be consistent from year
to year.
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The Group upholds the core values of “Respect for
nature and love for mankind” and the corporate mission
of “Becoming a global leading cotton textile enterprise
that emphasizes creating a wonderful life”. It adheres to
the principles of “Honest Partnership, creativity and
excellence, customer-oriented approach” and insists on
a sustainable development pattern. Just like the
integration and interaction of the three-color ribbons in
the Group logo, Texhong integrates social, economic
and environmental responsibilities into production and
operation to promote the concept of humanity,
environmental friendliness and energy conservation,
health and safety, and integrity, with a view to becoming
a socially responsible corporation.

The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing its
own environmental and social performances to maintain
business sustainability. In determining its operation
strategy, therefore, the Group considers risks and
opportunities affecting the ESG issues, which will
provide guidelines for its daily business operations.

The Board endorses the Group’s commitments to ESG
responsibility, and assumes full responsibility for ESG
strategies and reporting. The Board reviews the ESG
performance of the Group annually, identifies, evaluates
and manages important ESG-related matters, and
oversees and approves annual ESG report.

In charge of assessing and determining the ESG risk
exposure, the management of the Group also ensures
the Group establishes appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control systems and
reports to the Board the risks and opportunities related
to ESG, and provides confirmation on the effectiveness
of the ESG system.

To carry out the full-scale ESG management work, the
Group’s ESG working group, comprised of the major
functional departments of Texhong, is established, and
all responsible officers in charge of various functional
departments will directly participate in and designate
personnel to engage in the ESG management and
reporting work, the work progress of which will be
reported to the management of the Group.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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The Group attaches great importance to
communications with stakeholders and establishes
effective communication channels with key stakeholders
including shareholders, employees, suppliers and
customers, and actively responds to the demands and
expectations of stakeholders.

Stakeholders
F=AERES

Government

B

Shareholders/investors

BRREE

Employees

Expectations and concerns

HEEER

» Observance of disciplines and
laws

+ Tax payment in accordance with

laws
* Labour rights
* Environmental protection

. MR
. ORME
. BTN
.- BERE

* Information disclosure

* Investment returns

» Corporate governance

* Risk control

» Sustainable development

- EEWE
- RER®
« REPRIE
.« BRI
- AREER

»  Wages and benefits

* Occupational health and safety

» Training and development
opportunities

* Democratic communication and

human rights protection

- TENEMN

- BEREREZE

© EIEBEREE

- REBBEARRRE
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ENEMEETBEER
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Means of communication

BEAR

* Daily supervision
+ Official correspondence
+ Conference exchange
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m
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* General Meeting of Shareholders

« Company website
* Mail, telephone and fax
* Investor relations activities

* Website of the Stock Exchange

- BEAE
ENGET
. EF B ER
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« BEPFTHEUA

* Complaint E-mail and hotline

* Annual meetings, routine meetings,

etc.

* Internal publications (Texhong News)

+ Employee activities
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. REF (RETR)
. BIEH
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Stakeholders
F=AE@S

Customers

'R

Partners

BERH

Society

He

Expectations and concerns

HEEER

* Product quality and safety
* Quality service

* Product innovation

+ Sustainable development

. mEERTE
- BERS

- EmAlE

- AREER

*  Supply chain management
* Quality and price
* Integrity and compliance

. {EEEER
. EEHER
. HEAR

* Environmental protection
» Events for good causes

. BERE
. DIEB
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Means of communication

BEAR

» Customer satisfaction survey
» Visiting customers
* Handling customer complaints

. EEWEBERS
. BEED
. ERRFEE

* Project cooperation negotiation
» Visiting suppliers
* Quality communication

- HBEAFERH
- HEREES
- HERER

* Charitable donations

* Volunteer service

- ERERE

- EFEERS



In order to improve the quality of the disclosures, the
Group conducted an ESG materiality assessment to
identify key issues which concern our stakeholders, and
made targeted disclosures.

In 2019, the ESG working group conducted the
materiality assessment by taking the following steps:

. Identification of issues: Taking into consideration
factors such as the Group’s current situation,
industry situation and risks and opportunities, 20
ESG issues relevant to the Group and its
stakeholders were identified;

. Questionnaire survey: Focusing on the identified
issues, online and offline survey questionnaires
were designed and issued to internal and external
stakeholders such as management, employees,
customers and suppliers. A total of 125 valid
questionnaires were received and summarized
and materiality analysis was conducted to obtain
preliminary materiality assessment results;

. Confirmation of results: The preliminary results
were discussed, verified and confirmed by the
senior management and the ESG working group,
and the final materiality assessment results were
obtained.

Compliant and incorruptible operation
ARRREE

Supply chain management
HEREE

25

Raw materials management
FHRER
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Equality and diversification
FERZ L

Prohibition of child labour and forced labour
BREETEBHST

| Employee development and training

Impacts on stakeholders
HN= AR R

BT RHERE
S Contribution to society
It & i
E KB ER
nergy
BEREE
Waste management | | Employee interests and benefits
Packaging | BEENER B Tk BAER

DR HREE |

Water resources management
KEREE

Waste gas emissions
BERHEROSR

Response to climate change
EHRIREE

Impacts on business development of the Group
HAEEEBEROZE
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2.1.1 Product quality

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality management and strictly complies with
relevant local laws and regulations, such as the
“Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumers’ Rights and
Interests”, and “National General Safety Technical
Code for Textile Products”. The Group has
improved its internal systems such as the “Quality
assurance structure”, “Quality work manual”,
“Rules on order assessment and product
modification”, and “Rules on order assessment
and product modification” and established an ISO
9001 quality management system and obtained
third-party certification.

meranen

remssasminn

Quality Management System
Certificate of Shandong Texhong
WRRIMEEERRAAITIE

In order to ensure product quality, the Group has
established a quality assurance inspection system
and clearly defined the job responsibilities,
inspection requirements, inspection frequency,
etc. of each responsible person, and requires each
inspector to conduct inspection for the purpose of
solving problems and achieving effective control,
and to supervise rectification and ensure quality.

With increased investment in technological
instruments, the Group adopts advanced
equipment for effective control over product quality
and integrates quality management into the whole
production process.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RIS EBMARA T
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Quality assurance system inspection
HRERRE

Technology quality assurance inspection

TEERRE

Equipment quality assurance inspection
RBERRE

Operation quality assurance inspection
BEERRE

Product supervision quality assurance inspection
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2.1.1 Product quality (Continued)

The Group complies with the requirements such
as the “Quality management and shutdown policy”
and “Rules on quality issue handling”. When the
quality fluctuation reached a level that requires
shutdown, for example, failure to meet internal
control standards during raw materials inspection,
production will be stopped immediately and
relevant administrator will be notified to arrange
rectification. The production can only be resumed
once passing the inspection. Afterwards, the
Group will also impose cash and administrative
penalties on the person in charge of quality
assurance in light of the nature of the issue
according to policies such as the “Responsibility
and accountability policy for quality issues”.

The Group improved the operating skill level of our
employees, strengthened the awareness of
standard operation, and improved product quality
through monthly quality analysis meetings, internal
and external quality training sessions, operation
competitions, etc.

In 2019, all subsidiaries stepped up efforts in
quality control, enhanced the construction of
quality assurance team, organized various
relevant policies, and implemented quality work
throughout the production process:

. Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng Textile Co., Ltd.
(“Texhong Yinfeng”): Daily planning and
scheduling meetings were held every day to
review and approve product modification and
yarn sample base stations one by one, and
the quality control of each product variety
was well done. Attention was paid to the
training and construction of the quality
assurance team, so as to give play to the
role of quality assurance, and 24-hour
uninterrupted inspection was conducted to
ensure that the products were under control
all the time;

. Jiangsu Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Texhong”): Production process of
low-elasticity product varieties were refined
and organized. Analysis was conducted to
identify the crux of problems. Management
system of operation, equipment and
technology in the production of low-elasticity
varieties were revised;
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2.1.1 Product quality (Continued)

. Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited
(“Texhong Galaxy”): Product process control
responsibility system and quality traceability
system were implemented. Training of
quality assurance inspection team was
optimized. The capacity of product quality
control has been significantly improved
compared to last year.

2.1.2 R&D and innovation

Since its establishment in 1997, the Group has
been committed to creating differentiated products
and bringing forth new products constantly, and
promoted industrial upgrading and revolution in
the field of cotton textile. The Group has invested
a large amount of funds and resources in
technological innovation and technological
transformation. With our laboratories as the
technical center, the Group has developed a
number of new technologies and products with a
focus on pure cotton products, including elastic
pure cotton core-spun yarn series, high-end yarns
and garment fabrics for knitting, through
independent R&D and cooperation with renowned
domestic and international fabric developers and
research institutions. The Group expands market
share with top-notch, superb, premium and
advanced products and its product quality reaches
the level between 5% to 25% of Uster
Technologies, which is the exceptional level for
domestic standard and caters for both the
domestic and international market primarily
focused on product diversification and
sophistication.

The Group has established a national research
and development institute under Xuzhou Texhong
Times Textile Co., Ltd (“Texhong Times”). The
person-in-charge of the institute is our technical
director. The Group has established several
entrepreneur-scholar researcher joint development
bases in cooperation with major renowned
institutions and universities.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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2.1.3 Intellectual properties

The Group pays close attention to the protection
of intellectual properties, keeps in view our
patents, LOGO and trademarks, safeguards our
legal rights and intellectual property rights, and
maintains fair competition in the market. The
Group observes relevant local laws and
regulations, such as “Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Regulation for the
Implementation of Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, and
complies with internal policies, such as the
“Management Policy on Intellectual Property
Rights”, “Management Policy on Transformation of
Scientific and Technological Achievements”,
“Incentive Measures on Transformation of
Scientific and Technological Achievements” and
“Management Policy on Research and
Development Structure ”. As of the end of 2019,
the Group had 194 patents, including 44 invention
patents, 141 utility model patents, and 9 software
copyrights.

The Group requires its subsidiaries to use
legitimate software, such as IP telephony service,
SAP and OA, and prohibits the installation of
pirated software.

2.2.1 Customer relations

The Group assigns specific staff to different
customers in order to handle their enquiries in a
timely manner, including enquiries on order
quality, quantity requirement, delivery schedule
and customer feedback. In 2019, the Group and
its subsidiaries actively improved relevant policies
documents. For example, Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
(“Taltex (Zhuhai)”) updated the policy on “After-
sale Customer Service” to standardize the
handling procedures.

The business philosophy of the Group is to expand
market share with brand name and improve
customer satisfaction. Consumers’ opinions and
suggestions would be analyzed comprehensively
in order to improve the quality of products and
services constantly and boost customer
satisfaction in every possible way.
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2.2.2 Customer satisfaction

Market intelligence department of the Group
conducts biannual satisfaction surveys on major
customers who have purchased the Group’s
products and invites them to complete “Customer
Satisfaction Questionnaire”. In past sampling done
by national, provincial and city supervising
authorities on the Group, there has been no
unsatisfactory result and the objective of
“Consistent product quality to meet customers’
needs” has been achieved. In accordance with
aftersales quality management requirements,
professionals of the Group offer all-rounded
services for products sold and have been widely
recognized by customers.

In 2019, the Group’s technical director, grey fabric sales
director, grey fabric project manager, Texhong Times’s
general manager and Zhongtian Nylon Company (7 X 54&
‘A 7A])'s leaders focused their discussion on issues such as
improving customer satisfaction.

ZE-NEF AEERNEE  AMEERE  KMiTEeH
IBFIRIT R RABEIE P RIB R A ARG HIRTTEP W EE
EREEITEPHR °

2.2.3 Customer complaints

The Group strictly adheres to the relevant local
laws and regulations, such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumers’ Rights and Interests” to prepare
documents like “Flow chart on the handling of
quality feedback from customers on yarns of the
Group” to ensure speedy and effective resolution
for quality issue reported by customers. The
Group registers and records every enquiry and
requirement on quality raised by customers. For
handling customer complaints, we meet with
relevant staff to analyze the cause and identify
responsible department to devise and implement
countermeasures. Reply to customer and handling
record will be made within 20 days.

The quality department of the Group categorizes
customer feedback and analyzes pending issues,
followed by the preparation of after-sales service
report. The Group boosts its product quality
constantly to create a leading edge in the market.
Customer satisfaction and product quality also
benefit significantly from such practices. Customer
service managers of the Group are responsible for
supervising and examining after-sales services
and providing monthly and annual report to after-
sales service department at the headquarters.
Customer visits are arranged for the general
manager of the Group, if necessary.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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2.2.4 Customer privacy

Recognizing the importance of customer relations
and respecting the privacy of every customer, the
Group actively safeguards the privacy and security
of each customer. For instance, Shandong
Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Texhong”)
strictly implements “Regulation on Employee
Management” so that employees who disclose
without authorization any customer, technology
and other confidential information in relation to
business operation or internal department
operation shall be put on probation and it may
result in termination of employment contract in a
serious case.

The Group considers the enhancement of social
responsibility performance of suppliers a fundamental
task and obligation of supply chain management.
Through visits and exchange, we promote the Group’s
spirit of anti-unfair competition, respect for intellectual
property and anti-bribery to every part of the supply
chain. The Group has established guidelines such as
“Regulation on the Management of Procurement
Operation of Daily Supplies of Subsidiaries” and
“Regulation on the Procurement of Certain Supplies of
the Headquarter and Texhong China” to regulate the
supply chain system. Moreover, the Group integrates
the spirit of environmental and social sustainability into
the management of supply chain:

. Open tender for selection of logistic services.

. Logistic contract: in case of newly signed or
renewed contracts, certain clauses in relation to
the requirements of environmental and social
sustainability will be added, which is legally
binding on the cooperating parties.

. Assessment system: certain terms in relation to
environmental and social sustainability (refinement
and quantification of contract requirements) are
added to the existing assessment system of
transportation company as a regular management
tool.
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In 2019, subsidiaries of the Group conveyed the
concepts of environmental protection, energy saving
and sustainable management to suppliers through visits
to suppliers and site inspections, and encouraged
suppliers to adopt environmental-friendly products and
use energy efficiently so as to continuously improve
environmental performance:

Jiangsu Texhong: All transportation trailers and
forklifts used by transportation contractors are
required to be environmental-friendly electric
vehicles, so as to reduce pollution to the
workshop. For main and auxiliary machines to be
purchased, all motors deployed by suppliers are
required to be national energy-saving products to
meet the standards of the NDRC in respect of
reduction in energy consumption;

Texhong Winnitex Vietnam Limited (“Texhong
Winnitex Vietnam”): Suppliers are required to use
chemical products that meet environmental
protection requirements and to provide the
certificate of Bluesign Standard, the OEKO-TEX
certificate issued by the International Oeko-Tex
Association and the certificates of Zero Discharge
of Hazardous Chemicals (ZDHC) or Global
Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) etc.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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In addition to strictly complying with the relevant local
laws and regulations regarding employee health and
safety, such as the “Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, “Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health Surveillance”,
and “Design Standards for Occupational Safety and
Health for Businesses in the Textile Industry”, the Group
has introduced a series of internal rules and systems to
safeguard workplace safety and prevent occupational
diseases, strengthens the protection of female
employees and devotes its efforts to achieving the
balance between work and life of its employees.

3.1.1 Safe production
The Group attaches great importance to safe
production. All subsidiaries passed the level three
safe production standardization certification and
obtained the level three safe production
standardization certificate.

The Group has established a safety management
system and implemented a top-to-bottom safety
management accountability system:

. Marketing and production department is
responsible for management and supervision
of production process and sites;

. Each branch factory conducts inspections,
identifies and promptly solves problems as
required;

. Operators of each process operate in
accordance with operating procedures, and
often carry out self-inspection and mutual-
inspection.
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3.1.1 Safe production (Continued)

With the implementation of requirements such as
“Policy on Safe Production”, “Rules on Accident
Handling”, “Policy on Production Accidents”,
“Policy on Production Standardization”, “Policy on
Regular Safe Production Meetings”, “Policy on
Safe Production Education”, “Policy on Accident
Reporting and Handling” and “Policy on
Emergency Response”, the Group has established
the safe production accountability mechanism for
all subsidiaries and the safety responsibilities of
management personnel at all levels, and specified
accident levels and corresponding penalties;
upheld the principle of “Four prohibition” on
incomplete cause investigation, incomplete
disciplinary action for responsible staff member,
incomplete rectification measures and incomplete
training for relevant staff member to improve
safety education and implement rectifying
measures; and continued the promotion of 6S
management and backup support of the Group
and its subsidiaries.

In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries constantly
updated and improved the safety management
mechanisms and systems:

. Shandong Texhong: Safety management
standards and systems such as the
“Measures for the Assessment of
Management of Safe Production”, “Letter of
Commitment on Three-level Safe Production
Objective of the Company”, “Security
Management System and Assessment
Rules”, “Inspection and Assessment Criteria
for Hidden Dangers of the Company”,
“Implementation Plan of the Leading Group
of Occupational Health and Safety of
Shandong Texhong Textile” and
“Occupational Health Management Rules
and Regulations” were revised;

. Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian Textile Co., Ltd.
(“Texhong Yinlian”): Documents such as the
“Safe Production Responsibility for Staff
Members at Each Level”, “Management of
Fire Control and Open Fire”, “Association of
safety inspection and examination”,
“Objectives of Safety and Fire Control”,
“Association of safe operation” and
“Emergency Plan for Safe Production” were
formulated and revised.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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3.1.1 Safe production (Continued)

The Group adopts various safety precautions
throughout its daily operation. The Group and its
subsidiaries post notices and warnings in
workplaces subject to occupational hazards to
raise employees’ awareness of self-protection. In
2019, in the newly constructed factory of Texhong
Galaxy, signs of speed limits and watch for
pedestrians were displayed to restrict the speed of
external vehicles, and open-air storage are
enclosed by wire fences. Warning signs against
smoking are also placed to ensure fire safety of
warehouse. Safety groups conduct self-inspection
and mutual-inspection on fire safety of industrial
chain in the park on a weekly and monthly basis to
minimize potential safety hazards.

The Group provides training and learning sessions
to its employees in relation to workplace safety,
which primarily include the safety procedures,
management system, hazard identification skills
and a three-level safety induction program. Cases
of industrial accidents occurred in the Group and
other comparable companies would be used for
learning and discussion. Lessons are learnt
through accident analysis meetings to prevent
repeated violation.

In 2019, the subsidiaries of the Group actively
carried out various activities such as fire drills,
flood-control drills and workplace safety training to
spread knowledge of laws and regulations and
strengthen its capability to prevent workplace
accidents and save lives and safeguard its
production safety.

Shandong Texhong:
emergency drill on electric shock
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Texhong Winnitex Vietham:
fire drills
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3.1.2 Occupational disease prevention and

protection

All subsidiaries of the Group have passed the
occupational health and safety management
system certification, which is reviewed annually.
The Group has established an occupational health
and safe production committee, with the general
manager as the head, the deputy general manager
for production as the deputy head, and the factory
managers and department managers of each
branch as members. The Group diligently
implemented policies such as “Management of
Occupational Hygiene and Safety” and
“Distribution and Management of Labour Protection
Equipment” and has constantly improved the existing
mechanism. For example, in 2019, Nantong Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd. (FEBRIT4H4EHRAA]) (“Nantong
Texhong”) formulated guidelines on occupational
hygiene such as the “Management of Noise and
Dust” and “Management of Inflammable and
Explosive Dangerous Goods”, so as to enhance
its efforts on occupational health management and
occupational disease prevention;
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3.1.2 Occupational disease prevention and

protection (Continued)
In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries took
various measures to prevent occupational disease:

. Offered health and safety education to
employees and provided induction safety
training and safety retraining for elder
employees;

. Compiled Occupational health profiles and
arranged pre-job and on-the-job occupational
health checkups to prevent occupational
diseases effectively;

. Engaged third parties to conduct inspections
and issue reports on occupational hazards
at workplaces, such as noise and dusts, and
posted notices and warning signals at
workplaces where the occupational hazards
exist to raise the awareness of self-
protection;

. Regularly distributed personal protective
equipment, such a s earplugs and masks,
among our staff, who will also receive
training on use of the equipment.

3.1.3 Protection for female employees

Female employees assume a wide variety of posts
on different levels in the Group. In strict
compliance with relevant local laws and
regulations, such as the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Women’s
Rights and Interests”, “Labour Protection of
Female Employees” and “Healthcare Work of
Female Employees”, the Group protects the rights
of female employees from the sources. The Group
is concerned about the problems encountered by
employees in their work and life and constantly
improves the working environment and condition
for female employees. The Group and its
subsidiaries have put in place a “Three-period”
requirement and regular physical examination
system. For example, Nantong Texhong organizes
an individual physical examination for female
employees every year, providing care for female
employees’ physical and mental health.
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3.2.1 People orientation

The Group pays attention to building a harmonious
and stable labour relation and strictly complies
with relevant local laws, regulations and policies,
such as “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and “Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. In accordance with the
“Employee Manual”, “Recruitment Management
System”, “Employee Induction and Loss of Office
Management Requirement”, “Employee Promotion
Management Requirement”, “Performance
Management Measure”, “Measures for Job
Appraisal of Yarn Marketing Management
Department” etc., the Group regulates recruitment
process, improves the mechanism of talent
selection, and actively protects employees’ legal
rights.

The Group enters into written labour contracts with
all employee based on the principles of “Equality,
willingness and mutual agreement”, and has
established an annual leave policy according to
legal requirements. The Group provides updates
through different means to employees on recent
production and operation conditions of the Group,
as well as rules, regulations, and policies that are
closely related to their interests:

. Child labour: Recruitment of child labour is
prohibited by the Group. All candidates must
pass age verification to ensure that their
identity documents are authentic and they
meet the legal age for employment.

. Forced or compulsory labour: Use of forced
labour is prohibited by the Group. Employees
have the right to refuse and report to high
levels by bypassing their immediate
leadership for work arrangements that
violate safety regulations.

. Working hour: We comply with all the
requirements of the national laws and
regulations on working hour and overtime
arrangement for employees is on a voluntary
basis.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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3.2.1 People orientation (Continued)

Labour union and collective bargaining
agreement: We recognize and respect
employees’ right to organize and participate
in a labour union and collective bargaining.

Discrimination: Discrimination against
gender, age, ethnicity, race, color,
nationality, religious belief, disability,
personality, etc. is prohibited.

Harassment and torture: Harassment, torture
and corporal punishment are prohibited.

Dismissal: Any dismissal of employees is in
strict compliance with local laws and
regulations.

In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries worked for
continuous improvement in employment system,
including but not limited to:

Nantong Texhong: Based on the
characteristics of the company’s production
and marketing and employees’ needs in
daily work, the measures for performance
management were optimized. With the
performance-oriented principle, assessment
of individual employees was associated with
their output piece count, while assessment
of employees at middle and senior level and
those in key positions was linked to the
quantified key performance indicator work to
ensure to ensure fairness and impartiality;

Shandong Texhong: Employment incentive
policies are formulated. “Policy of Leave and
Attendance” and “Employee Retention Plan”
were revised to retain talents and strengthen
labour discipline management;

Chung Charm Textiles Limited (“Chung
Charm Textiles”): For professional and
technical staff of equipment and general
engineering, based on a combination of skill
examination and daily performance,
promotion and monthly technical allowance
were provided, which encouraged
employees to improve their professional
maintenance and techniques, and therefore
improved the diversified and extended
development of employees and
rationalization of promotion criteria.
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3.2.2 Equality and diversity

The Group emphasizes equality and diversity, and
provides equal care and opportunities for disabled
employees and ethnic minority employees:

For disabled employees, the Group and its
subsidiaries provide them with equal employment
opportunities and care so that they can realize
their potential in different positions. In 2019,
Texhong Yinlian hired 10 disabled employees and
Nantong Texhong hired 9 disabled employees.

For ethnic minority employees, the Group and its
subsidiaries actively offer job opportunities and
respect their daily habits and needs. For example,
Nantong Texhong employed a total of 98 ethnic
minority staff members in China, including Shui
people, Miao people, Dai people, and Bouyei
people in 2019.

3.2.3 Humanistic care

The Group adopts a people-oriented approach,
pursues humanistic care, focuses on humane
management, and promotes employees’ sense of
belonging and loyalty to the Company. Coffee
klatches are held monthly between general
managers, and seminars among workshop heads,
chief operator and chief mechanist as well as
after-hours meetings among employees are held
regularly to help employees maintain a positive
work attitude and enhance work enthusiasm. The
Group endeavors to support employees in need
and offers relief and condolence to employees in
difficulties and their family members.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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3.2.3 Humanistic care (Continued)

Staff activities

The Group is well-equipped with activity facilities
in workspace and living space, including leisure
room, television room, basketball court and
badminton court. In 2019, the Group and its
subsidiaries held a variety of staff activities to
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create a positive atmosphere.

Changzhou Texhong Textile Co., Ltd.
(“Changzhou Texhong”):
Chinese New Year reunion dinner
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Texhong Yinfeng:
“Celebrating National Day” sports competition
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Texhong Renze Textile Joint Stock Company
(“Texhong Renze”):
Mid-Autumn festival gala

CHAO MUNG NGAY PHUND VIET NAM 20510

Texhong Galaxy: Vietnam Women’s Day flower
arrangement competition
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3.2.3 Humanistic care (Continued)

Democratic communication

The Group has established a smooth and
democratic communication mechanism and set up
Texhong employee relations committee, which
receives opinions and suggestions from
employees through complaint mailboxes and
complaint email, in order to understand opinion,
identify problems, and actively respond to
employee demands to promote harmonious
working environment. Management personnel at
all levels stay close to the grassroots level to
understand employees’ opinions and suggestions
on the Company’s production and life and
management through daily observation and
reflection, employee discussions, regular
employee communication days, questionnaires
and other channels, and to solve problems.

All subsidiaries have also adopted various means
of communication with employees continuously:
Nantong Texhong has set up a general manager
mailbox to respond to questions raised by
employees in a timely manner; Shandong
Texhong has set up a backup committee to
conduct ad hoc visits on shuttles, canteens,
dormitories, etc. that involve employees’ lives, to
handle opinions and feedback from employees,
and to urge the management and contractors to
improve services.

In June 2019, Texhong Renze organized a seminar for
new employees. The assistant to the general manager, the
human resources department, and the union
representatives communicated with around 80 employees
who had been employed for less than six months, so as to
understand their difficulties and needs and actively seek
solutions.
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Following the continuous expansion and extension of
the Group’s industrial structure, manpower development
has become an important part of the Group’s
development strategy. The Group has formulated the
“Training and Implementation Measures of Texhong
Textile Group” and improved the structure for training,
learning course, technician, mechanist/engineer skill
assessment, mid-to-entry level training and senior
leadership. The Group puts in place a “Branched career
path” for every employee and provides employees with
a personalized and systematic development plan
through “Budding program” (for university graduates
with less than one year of experience), “Flourishing
program” (for university graduates with one to three
years of experience) and “Stratified talent nurturing
program” (for all employee with more than three years
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of experience). Through building a team of lecturers and BERRNFEBRE -
planning various career development paths, the Group
establishes back-up talent team and develop a learning
organization, with an aim to provide talents for the
development of the Group at all stages and become an

enterprise that learns and grows with happiness.

Talent training system chart of Texhong Textile Group
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Talent training system chart of Texhong Textile Group
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In 2019, in terms of manpower training and echelon
construction, all subsidiaries constantly explored more
advanced and diversified models, and continuously
enriched and expanded employee training programs
and career development channels. For example:

Texhong Galaxy: “Regulations on the Management
of Monthly Training Goal Achievement of
Management Personnel” was formulated and
outstanding employees were selected internally
and provided with additional training, in order to
cultivate reserve management personnel. An
internal enrollment-cultivation-recruitment program
was launched, under which high school graduates
were enrolled and received training on Chinese
language, rules and regulations, operations and
other aspects within three months, after which,
interviews were conducted and suitable jobs were
arranged for them. The talent cultivation program
“High School Graduates Studying in China” was
carried out;

Shandong Texhong: Based on market demand,
the Compound Talent Training Plan and Talent
Echelon Training Plan were established to
facilitate systematic training of compound talents
and cultivate outstanding management personnel
resources;

Nantong Texhong: A development and training
plan was formulated for university graduates. For
the professional and technical staff of equipment,
technology, and quality inspection, both skills
examination and work performance evaluation
were carried out to guide employees to improve
their level of skill and technique.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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In 2019, all subsidiaries of the Group launched a variety
of training activities such as production training and
training on management skills and know-how, to provide
targeted training for all types of employees, including
new hires, entry-level management personnel, middle-
level management personnel and reserve management
personnel to meet the needs of all levels.
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Texhong Textile Group: Texhong Winnitex Vietham:
Yarn Sales Manager Training Camp | Training on ISO system knowledge
RITEE : HRHERKEIIRE and internal audit method
RUTEEHRE | ISORF AR -
RE T EE

In 2019, the total training hours of employees of
subsidiary operating companies within the scope of the
ESG Report were 683,086 hours. The average training
hours of employees by employee category are as
follows:

Senior/Middle-level management

personnel
=B/ TEEEAE
Employie category General management personnel
A=A ~HEEAR

Front-line employees
—#RET

—E-NAF AREEQRFARTES
FEE - BERIT - REFNIESE
BINES  RMARET  EEEBEREA
B FEEEABNMABEEABRSES
BETRHEAAHEMEMNEI  BREE
BB FER

Texhong Yinfeng: Department core

member training

RITRE : HEEHBTHI

ZE—HFE - KESGHREHENMEE
BNFIB THTHIFE5 683,086\ -
ZEBEAESME T FZIIEEm
T

Average training hours
FHE Y BY

20.6

29.6

220
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The Group strictly complies with the requirements of
relevant local laws and regulations, such as the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, and “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery”. In order to take forward the work on anti-
corruption and anti-bribery, the Group has established
an internal control mechanism. The President’s Office
was designated as the anti-corruption department
responsible for investigating corruption, strengthening
supervision and management on key segments and key
positions where corruption is frequent and highly likely
to ensure the governance of commitment system to
prevent commercial bribery, and guiding the
management personnel of the Group to act in
accordance with the law and consciously resist
corruption and malpractices such as deception and
fraud. The President’s Office is the only dedicated
department authorized by the Group to conduct
investigations on corruption, and reports directly to the
Chairman of the Board and the President of the Group,
thereby guaranteeing the acceptance of report and the
independence and objectivity of investigation from the
governance structure.

The Group issued a series of anti-corruption policies,
including “Texhong Textile Group Anti-Corruption
Management Regulations (Trial)”, “Texhong Textile
Group’s Integrity and Self-Discipline Incentive Measures
(Trial)”, “Texhong Textile Group Whistle-blower
Protection and Reward System (Trial)”, “ ‘Texhong
Textile Group Whistle-blower Protection and Reward
Policy (Trial)) — Whistle-blowing Guidelines and
Requirements for Suppliers and Customers”, requiring
employees, suppliers, customers and other partners of
Texhong Textile to uphold integrity and honesty,
participate in the Group’s integrity management
supervision system and actively report violations such
as corruption and duty-related crimes. In 2019, there
were no legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group.

In order to create a positive internal and external
operating environment, the Group has established a
comprehensive anti-corruption mechanism: internally,
employees are required to sign an “Undertaking of
Business Integrity as an Employee”; externally, all
cooperating suppliers are required to sign an “Anti-
Commercial Bribery Agreement” in order to combat
corruption.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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The Group has specially launched the “HonestTH”
module on its official website and announced its internal
anti-corruption system and reporting channels such as
whistle-blowing hotline, email address, mailing address,
online message on the official website and appointment
visits to encourage internal and external personnel to
report corruption issues. Once the issue is verified, the
Group will immediately carry out an investigation and
give cash rewards to the whistle-blower or cooperating
units. Malicious reporting and false accusation are
prohibited.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection
of whistleblowers. The President Office prioritizes the
confidentiality of reports. There is a strict control system
and process for the acceptance and investigation of
reports, and the whistle-blower’s personal information
and all report materials provided by the whistle-blower
are kept strictly confidential. There are also multiple
strict measures to protect suppliers, partners, or
individuals who report in real names.

In 2019, functional departments, business units and
subsidiaries of the Group’s headquarter all organized
learning activities on the theme of “HonestTH”. In
response to a series of anti-corruption regulations
issued by the Group, all subsidiaries organized a series
of anti-corruption activities. Taltex (Zhuhai) refined its
business ethics code, conducted interviews and
exchanges with new suppliers to promote anti-
commercial bribery and corruption and required the
suppliers to sign the Anti-Commercial Bribery
Agreement; improved the system and procedures of
internal expense reimbursement and disbursement, held
promotion and study sessions on anti-corruption and
anti-commercial bribery for management personnel of
all departments, and required employees to sign the
“Undertaking of Integrity and Anti-corruption as an
Employee” etc.

Texhong Textile:
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Texhong Yinlong: “Professional ethics” training

RITEREE - [BEETE | 353

Learning activities on the theme of “HonestTH”
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As one of the top 10 most competitive enterprises in China’s
cotton textile industry, the Group concerns about
environmental protection with respect for nature, and
considers sincere contribution and service to the society as its
corporate mission and fulfils corporate responsibility with
wisdom and actions.

In active response to the fundamental national policy of
“Environmental protection” and the urge for accelerating the
development of a “Conservation-oriented society”, the Group
has paid close attention to internal environmental
management, organized energy management network,
clarified the responsibilities of management personnel at all
levels, and improved energy quota management and energy
inspection, analysis and implementation system. All
subsidiaries actively implemented the national laws and
regulations as well as internal policies of the Group, revised
the system and policies every year, and promoted
environmental management and energy conservation and
emission reduction to embark on the path of green
manufacturing and sustainable development.

4 Xy
L (Faam)
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Environmental Management System Certificate of Shandong Texhong
IWRRIMBRREERAIERE

The Group and its subsidiaries continuously improve their
environmental management system and conduct energy
audits regularly to assess the rationality of energy use and tap
the potential for improving energy conservation. In 2019,
Shandong Texhong obtained the certifications for
environmental management system and for energy
management system; Texhong Winnitex entered into a
contract with a third-party company for energy audit every
three years to ensure identify opportunities for energy
conservation and select and adopt plans for energy
conservation and efficiency enhancement.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

FEBEEFARSETCERHEERE I
EITEHBEIRER - SHARRRANA SR - 12
WENREDCEE S - —T—NF  IURRUES
REEEREARENMLREEBEARIESE
RUBXEFE=JRARIAR  B=FEi
—REERBRT - UHEEHBEME - B IEI RN
FIRE IR BRI ER o



The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as
reducing pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency,
and reducing material consumption, and has gained
recognition from authorities and society. In May and
September 2019, Chung Charm Textiles, a subsidiary of the
Group, was granted the “Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Corporate Environmental Leadership Award” and “Hong
Kong- Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent Partners
(Manufacturing)”, in recognition of its contributions to
environmental protection and continuous implementation of
cleaner production.

Circular economy is a new strategy of economic growth.
Developing a circular economy and building a resource-
saving enterprise are important parts of the Group’s
sustainable development strategy. The Group and its
subsidiaries comply with relevant local laws and
regulations such as the “Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, as well as the Group’s
normative documents such as the “Energy Management
Implementation Details”, “Measures for Peak-and-trough
Electricity Consumption and Management for
Management Staff’ and “Operation Standard for Cooling
Equipment in a Workshop in Summer” to enhance
resource management, facilitate integrated use of
recourses and promote waste recycling, with an aim to
become an efficient, conserving and energy-saving
pioneer.

4.1.1 Energy management
From the aspect of policies and systems, the
Group and its subsidiaries continuously improve
their energy management systems and strengthen
energy management:

. Establish the energy management policy by
installing more energy measure instrument,
set energy target and energy consumption
standard, and conducting energy efficiency
assessment;

. Step up analysis on the efficiency of the
energy-consuming equipment in order to
enhance their operational efficiency for
energy saving;

. Designate management unit and personnel
for energy conservation, build a stronger
team of energy-saving workers, and
strengthen energy-saving training;
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4.1.1 Energy management (Continued)

. Conduct analysis on the energy consumption
to identify any insufficiency of our energy
management in a timely manner with a view
to raising our energy management capacity;

. Intensify monitoring of the quality of parts
and components to improve the quality of
maintenance and repair. Identify and fix any
possible malfunction of equipment in a timely
manner to ensure that equipment is always
in good technological condition. Actively
eliminate energy-inefficient equipment to
enhance the energy efficiency.

In 2019, Texhong Yinlian issued the “Reaffirmation
of Measures for Peak-and-trough Electricity
Consumption and Management for Management
Staff”, “Operation Standard for Cooling Equipment
in a Workshop in Summer”, “Texhong Yinlian’s
Relevant Requirements on Operation of
Refrigerating Equipment”, “2019 Texhong Yinlian’s
Electricity Consumption Plan to Cut Peak
Consumption”, “Requirements to Ensure Proper
Operation of a Workshop in Winter”,
“Requirements on Leftovers Packaging and On-
Site Workshop Management” etc., formulated
corresponding energy consumption assessment
standards, undertook responsibilities at all levels,
linked the quality of energy management and the
level of energy consumption to the economic
benefits of each employee, and made certain
achievements.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.1.1 Energy management (Continued)
Technical renovation and equipment replacement
In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries continued
to invest significant resources to promote energy
saving by transforming inverter and energy-
efficient ventilator, replacing LED light and other
means:

. Changzhou Texhong: Cooling towers were
refurbished to enhance the efficiency of
cooling and reduce waste of cold source and
energy consumption of equipment. Air ducts
of R&D workshops and damaged air outlets
were renovated to ensure air-tightness and
smooth air flow. Annual power savings
reached 70,000 kWh and 60,000 kWh
respectively. Energy-saving motors were
installed on inverters of 244 spinning frames,
thereby saving 10% of power and the motors
were cooled by about 8 degree centigrade;

. Nantong Texhong: 114 inverters were
equipped for spinning frames, drawing
frames, and air conditioners, and the circuits
were remodeled, which greatly saved the
annual power;

. Shandong Lanyan Textiles Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Lanyan”): Steamed-heated
Yellow River water was replaced by steam
condensate for water supply and heating. 70
degree centigrade high temperature
condensate was added to the heating
system regularly. 340 tonnes of steam
consumption was saved.
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4.1.1 Energy management (Continued)

Green manufacturing system

In conformity with the trend of green
transformation of traditional manufacturing, the
Group promotes green manufacturing and reduces
energy consumption throughout the product life
cycle. In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries
continued to make meaningful attempt to build a
green manufacturing system, and achieved certain
results.

In 2019, Shandong Texhong issued the “Notice on
Establishing a Leading Group for Green Factory
Construction”, established the leading group for
green factory construction and designated the
members of the group and their duty and
responsibility targets to carry out daily coordination
of green factory. The green factory construction
office has formulated the “Green Factory
Construction System and Implementation Rules”,
detailing responsibility targets and performance
evaluation systems to ensure the effective
operation of the group. Plans implemented by the
green factory mainly includes the following:

. Enhancing awareness of energy conservation
and consumption reduction, and increasing
advocacy, education and training. Developing
and implementing annual advocacy and
training plans in environmental protection,
energy saving, job skills etc.;

. Strengthening energy saving management
and achieving sustainable development.
Establishing and improving responsibility
system and management system, organizing
water balance testing, energy management
system, energy-efficiency flat-key monitoring
etc. to achieve continuous improvement in
energy performance;

. Promoting advanced technology. Optimizing
process control parameters, using new raw
materials, improving product passing rate,
and reducing process energy consumption.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.1.1 Energy management (Continued)

Green office practices

In daily operations, the Group advocates green
office, truly encourages our employees to practice
energy conservation in work and life, and not only
evangelizes the practice of energy conservation
but also becomes conscientiously active in energy
conservation:

. Establish the on/off time for lighting system
in office and living areas in different time
slots and seasons. Switch off the lighting
system when there is sufficient daylight.
Switch off the lighting system at appropriate
time after use at night;

. Switch off electronic equipment not in use in
office areas;
. Implement independent control over circuits

for lighting systems and sockets in staff
quarter areas etc.

In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries actively
promoted the concept of energy conservation
through promotion and education to raise
employees’ awareness of energy saving. For
example, Texhong Yinfeng held an energy-saving
promotion week and low-carbon experience day to
promote the concept of energy conservation and
disseminate energy-saving knowledge.

4.1.2 Water resources management

To become a water-saving enterprise, the Group
actively nurtures the culture of water conservation
by encouraging employees to develop the water-
saving habit:

. Use water saving productions and implement
water recycling;

. Turn off taps after use;

. Check the water pipes regularly to avoid
water leakage and prevent any unintended
use of water;

. Install separate water metres in office, living
and production areas and assign dedicated
staff to record monthly water consumption
and analyze the data collected from each
department.
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4.1.2 Water resources management (Continued)
In 2019, subsidiaries of the Group adopted a
range of measures, such as installation of water-
saving equipment, technological innovation, self
and mutual inspections, training and education,
with remarkable results:

. Jiangsu Texhong: Floating ball valves were
installed in tanks in air conditioning
chambers and 500 cubic meters of water
were saved per day. Frequency starters
were installed in well pump motors, so that
water output could be controlled by the set
pressure of the pipe network. In shower
rooms, flow reduction control gaskets were
installed in shower valves and 30,000 cubic
meters of water were saved per year;

. Texhong Yinlian: In order to improve
employees’ awareness of water saving, the
company required each dormitory to sign a
letter of responsibility of limited water use
with excess to be paid for by the user. The
standard of water use in canteens was re-
determined, and the excess were borne by
themselves. Peak and trough Consumption
volume of power and water of the first-line
equipment in the workshop were announced
daily;

. Texhong Thai Binh Garment Company
Limited (“Texhong Thai Binh Garment”): 9
sets of imported laser technology equipment
were purchased to save water consumption.
Water-saving washing machines were also
purchased. 20-30% of water consumption
were saved.

Texhong Thai Binh Garment:
laser technology equipment
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Texhong Thai Binh Garment:

water-saving washing machines
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4.1.3 Packaging management

The Group continuously monitors the consumption
of packaging materials and recycles and reuses
the materials in a reasonable manner to facilitate
more efficient use of packaging materials. In 2019,
the Group and its subsidiaries continued to explore
the possibility of recycling packaging materials
and make efforts to reduce consumption.

The following table sets forth the Group’s resource
consumption in the past three years:
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A2 Use of Resources KPIs

A2ERERABRERER

KPIs Specific Indicator
BE AR

Energy consumption (MWh)'
BEIREFEE (JERLRE)

A1 Energy intensity (MWh/RMB million sales)
RREE CKRE B8 TARBIHERE)
Water consumption (tonne)
&= (I8
A2 FAKE (H8)

Water intensity (tonne/RMB million sales)

RKEE (i, BETARKEHER)

Packaging material (tonne)

BEMEL (HE)

A2.5 Intensity of packaging material used

Note:

(tonne/RMB million sales)
BEMBEAEE (M, BB TARKHER)

The total energy consumption of the Group was calculated based on
the use of natural gas, gasoline, diesel, and purchased electricity, and
the “Requirements of the greenhouse gas emissions accounting and
reporting — Part 12: Textile and garment Enterprises” GB/T
32151.12-2018 Appendix B Table B.1 Calculation of recommended
values for common fuel related parameters published by the National
Development and Reform Commission.
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Developing cleaner production and promoting green
operations are important issues related to human living
environment. The Group and its subsidiaries actively
adopt emission reduction measures and strictly comply
with the requirements of relevant local laws and
regulations, such as the “Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste” to strengthen prevention from the
source, process control and terminal treatment and
reduce environmental impacts arising from pollutants
such as production effluent and domestic sewage,
exhaust and wastes.

In 2019, Texhong Yinlian and Nantong Texhong met the
provincial and municipal “Cleaner production” testing
standards respectively.

4.2.1 Effluent
The Group requires separate treatment for
production effluent and domestic sewage:

. Production effluent is reused or, if not
reusable, directly discharged to the sewage
pipeline of factory zone and discharged up
to standard after passing through the
sewage treatment device;

. Processed by the biological treatment
system of the factory zone, domestic sewage
will meet the first grade emission standard
and be transported to the municipal
wastewater treatment system through the
sewage pipeline of the factory zone.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.2.1 Effluent (Continued)

In 2019, the Group and its subsidiaries took a
number of measures such as comprehensive
inspection and facility renovation to reduce effluent
discharge:

. Texhong Yinfeng: A comprehensive
inspection of the rain and sewage pipe
network in the factory area was undertaken
to stop and prevent leakage and ensure
strict separation of rain and sewage and up-
to-standard discharge of sewage. Water
supply pipes for production and daily life of
the whole factory were renovated, and pipe
network of the water supply system for toilet
flushing and fire sprinklers of the whole
factory were also renovated to use air-
conditioning backwater, which was also
applied for green spaces in the factory,
thereby greatly reducing the discharge of
sewage;

. Shandong Texhong: Internal environmental
protection facilities and emission testing
items were increased. Maintenance and
replacement cycle of pollution control
equipment were shortened, which effectively
reduced emissions.

4.2.2 Exhaust

The Group primarily produces fiber dusts and
boiler exhaust in production process. To minimize
the negative environmental impact of fiber dusts,
the Group requires workshops to close windows
during production for close operation. The Group
installs dust removal units in every workshop to
handle fiber dusts to reduce exhaust emission.

In 2019, subsidiaries of the Group actively worked
on technical renovation projects and equipment
replacement:

. Shandong Lanyan: New facilities such as
collection hoods, water spray towers, and
high-power fans were added to the finishing
workshop. Fugitive emission of exhaust gas
from the scorching and brushing process
was changed to emission from the usual
sources;

. Taltex (Zhuhai): “Coal to gas” project was
implemented. Emissions of SO2, NOx and
particulates reduced by 48 tonnes, 34 tonnes
and 4.8 tonnes per year, respectively.
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4.2.3 Greenhouse Gases

The Group is well aware that the textile industry is
an important part of industries, and textile
enterprises play an important role in tackling
climate change. The Group supports the green
and low-carbon circular development model.
Through green technological innovation, recycling
of resources, and use of environmentally-friendly
raw materials, the Group addresses climate
change in all aspects of production and operation,
so as to promote a positive interaction between
ecology and industry development.

The Group primarily produces greenhouse gases
due to energy consumption in the production
process, which include Scope 1: direct emissions
(petrol, diesel oil and natural gas) and Scope 2:
Energy indirect emissions (electricity). The Group
actively adopts energy-saving measures to reduce
energy consumption and adopts clean energy and
photovoltaic power generation for the purpose of
reducing greenhouse gas emission.

4.2.4 Waste

The Group primarily produces waste cotton, office
and domestic waste, waste equipment parts and
components and oily waste yarns in the production
process. The Group has prepared notices such as
“Notice on Enhancing Customized Placement of
Rubbish Bin and Classified Management” and
“Notice on Enhancing Management and Classified
Deposit of Industrial Waste and Domestic Waste”,
bringing classified management of domestic waste
and industrial waste into the scope of enterprise
management and requiring classified collection of
the abovementioned solid waste. According to
these documents, the Group separated the said
solid waste and stores such waste by category in
the temporary deposit zone of factory where a
banner is hanged and category, volume and
storage period are displayed. Waste from the
production process, such as cotton waste, can be
reused as raw material, while the remaining scrap
cotton and impurities are collected for sale and
integrated use. For dangerous waste produced by
the Group, these waste will undergo a
detoxification treatment by a competent
organization and general waste collection will be
handled by the local collection authority.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.2.4 Waste (Continued)
In 2019, subsidiaries of the Group reduced waste
generation through measures such as reduction of SRR - TEBE - REEF
consumables, production process modification, BIEEENIERE RO EME
facility renovation, promotion and training to g

424 BEEY(E)
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employees:

Shandong Texhong: Under the project of
waste woven bag recycling, woven bags with
cone yarn were recycled and reused on side
yarns, so as to save materials. Used gears
were recycled and reprocessed, which
reduced materials consumption by %. By
installing pre-spinning carding machines,
production rate of raw materials was
increased while consumption of raw
materials was reduced by 1.5%;

Texhong Winnitex Vietnam: Separate
collection waste chambers, including
domestic waste areas, industrial waste
areas, poisonous waste areas and scrap
material areas, were built. With the re-
established waste management system,
waste including packaging materials are
classified for disposal, and plastic packaging
barrels, cartons, paper tubes and PE
packaging film are recycled for use.
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Shandong Texhong: Reuse of raw materials
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Texhong Winnitex Vietnam: Waste classification
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KPIs

4.2.4 Waste (Continued)
The following table sets out the emission data of
the Group in the past three years:

A1 Emissions KPIs

A1 BRI RE ISR

Specific Indicator

B

A1.1

A1.2

A1.3

A1.4

ARER

Effluent discharge (tonne)

BEK B E (MR )

Effluent discharge intensity (tonne/RMB million sales)
FERBEREE (W, BBTARKHER)

Greenhouse gas emission (tonne)'
BERBHRESE (B _RREE)"
Scope 1: direct emissions (tCO,e)
BE—  EEAROE-S(LHES)
Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions (tCO e)
B pREEFR(E_atnEE
Greenhouse gas emission intensity

(tCO e/RMB million sales)
BERBUREE (B E(HE e EETARKHEESE)

Hazardous waste discharge (tonne)

BEBEZYYHE (NE)

Hazardous waste discharge intensity
(tonne/RMB million sales)

BEEEMFREE (B, BETARKIEER)

Non-hazardous waste discharge (tonne)
EEREZYYEE (ME)

Non-hazardous waste discharge intensity
(tonne/RMB million sales)

BEREZMBHEE ( umﬁ/ﬁ;%ﬁ}\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ)

Notes:

118

Calculations of greenhouse gas of the Group are presented in tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) and audited in accordance with
the “Requirements of the greenhouse gas emissions accounting and
reporting — Part 12: Textile and garment Enterprises” GB/T
32151.12-2018 published by the National Development and Reform
Commission.

The Group’s operation has no significant impact on the environment
and natural resources. Therefore, Aspect A3 (Environment and
Natural Resources) and its KPI A3.1 (Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them) are not applicable to the Group
and are not disclosed in this ESG report.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.2.4 EEY(E)

TREYNE BRI = FABER Y&
& -

2018 2017
T—N\F —E—+tF
8,760,656 6,614,207
457.3 405.6
1,272,418 1,219,903
66.4 74.8
6,630 4,850
0.3 0.3
13,035 7,722
0.7 0.5
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The Group has been committed to giving back to society over
the years. For instance, we acquired bankrupt cotton textile
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China and offered
better remuneration package and living security for retained
staff. In response to state policy of “One Belt One Road”
initiative, we proactively implemented industrial support in
Xinjiang by recruiting ethnic minority employees in order to
improve their living quality with job and education
opportunities. Being enthusiastic in social welfare, we made
donations every year and hired disabled employees so that
they can support themselves financially. The Group
established the “Charity and Social Welfare Management
System of Texhong Textile Group” for organizing charity and
welfare activities.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has actively
assisted in the fight against the epidemic and fulfilled its
corporate social responsibility. In February 2020, the Group
donated RMB5 million through the charity federation of
Jiangsu, Shandong and Xinjiang for the purchase of supplies
for epidemic prevention and control. Shandong Lanyan sped
up its production of more than 20,000 protective isolation suits
and more than 30,000 protective isolation caps to support
epidemic prevention and control work of local governments so
as to provide protection for the safety of epidemic prevention
personnel.

In April 2019, the Group and Yancheng Vocational College of
Industry and Technology (&8 35 T 3£ B 2% 4 fi7 22 B ) entered
into “School-enterprise international strategic cooperation” to
strengthen cooperation with higher education institutes in
scientific research application, cooperative education and
other aspects, and provide more professional scientific
research talents for the society.

In 2019, Texhong Times donated RMB4.0 million to Nantong
University Education Development Foundation.

In 2019, Texhong Renze actively participated in a series of
public welfare activities organized by the local government,
such as: Martyr and Wounded Soldiers Fund (Z{ L5 EE %),
Agent Orange Victims Fund (#& #| 52 # & & ), donation
activities for poor families, and helping local poor communities
build new rural projects. During Mid-autumn Festival, Texhong
Renze and Labour Union distributed moon-cakes to the
poverty-stricken children in Longshou Community of Renze
County (1= 2 % %€ 5 4t) and institutes for visually impaired
children and orphanages in Fulin (i8#£).

In May 2019, employees from Texhong Yinlong participated
in unpaid blood donation.
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In March 2019, more than 200 employees from Shandong
Texhong participated in the spring tree plantation festival and
planted more than 400 plane-trees;

In March 2019, employees from Teltex (Zhuhai) participated
in a tree planting activity in the Fushan Industrial Park ( & LU

TER).

Texhong Textile Group:

School-enterprise international
strategic cooperation

RIEE : REEBREREE

While maintaining stable production and enhancing
management standard since its establishment, Texhong
Galaxy has devoted itself to public affair and education. The
company has provided scholarships to schools such as
Quang Ninh University of Industry, Hanoi Industrial Textile
Garment University, Hue University College of Foreign
Languages and Hanoi University of Industry. Texhong Galaxy
sponsored VND22,000,000 for the undergraduate technology
innovation competition of Quang Ninh University of Industry,
the scholarship of Hanoi Industrial Textile Garment University,
school sports day of Quang Ha High School and school
football match of Hai Ha Duong Hoa High School.

In 2019, as always, Texhong Yinlong supported the local
education in Vietnam and made donation for competition fund
and scholarship to Quang Ninh University of Industry and
Hanoi University of Technology.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Texhong Renze:
Orphanage care activity

RITZZE - MR REAREE

“E-NAF=A URRIABREZRET
SMEFEMEEY  HKBEEREATNE S
]

—ToNFZR WWEBEEMBETZ2NEL
TEENEREER -

Taltex (Zhuhai):
Spring plantation festival
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Texhong Renze sponsored VND60,000,000 for “TEXHONG
Scholarship” of the Department of Chinese Language of Ho
Chi Minh City University of Pedagogy and the Department of
Chinese Language of Hue University College of Foreign
Languages. Texhong Renze also provided bases for visiting,
exchanges and internship for students from Ho Chi Minh City
University of Pedagogy, Hue University College of Foreign
Languages, The Second Industrial University of Ho Chi Minh
City, Ho Chi Minh City University of Technical Education and
University of Technology.

In November 2019, Texhong Winnitex Vietnam sponsored
VND2,000,000 for the football match of Duong Hoa High
School.

KIET{Z 2% B)6,000 & & 1E & #A 5 0A T Al &
AREFRNERIBIEIBRBERNERXED
[TEXHONG##E28% | - XIT{I2E AASHAT
XS JEEIREBERE  SFEATE T
¥X8 . HEAEmMERTAS BRIAEM
BLRESERR  BEEEM -

—E-NF+—A RUUEEMEAELNS
FERR B EERN200 8 H/E -

Texhong Renze:
Visiting and exchange from Ho Chi Minh City
University of Technical Education

RITZF : AEATEAEEMAZBERR

Texhong Winnitex Vietnam:

Sponsorship for football match
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To the Shareholders of Texhong Textile Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong Textile Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 130 to 248, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of this report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue recognition: Sales of goods
. Business combinations

Key Audit Matter
HRELEER

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

WARR  BREE

Refer to Note 2.28 to the consolidated financial
statements
B2 A B HREN12.28

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group recognised RMB22,002,943,000 of
revenue from sales of goods.

RBE_Z-NF+A=+—RHILFE "
EXEECHARMHERAR
AR #22,002,943,000 7T °

Revenue is recognised when control of the
underlying products has been transferred to
the customers.

WAREZE meY AR kB HREEET
BERHER o

We focused on this area due to the high volume
of sales generated in various locations and
from decentralised customers, and thus
significant audit time and resources were

devoted in this area, in particular relating to the

occurrence, accuracy and timely recording of
such transactions.

BB TEME RSN T FELEREE -
MEMEEUTH - TRAKREFZR R
BRI RS LEREAUISHHEL -
EHEUEREEHEEBNEE -

MR KRB

BAERZ T BRI HERBZERGMANT
c WARER : AmiHE
c E s

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMEERTNEEBERERTENG &

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
controls in respect of the Group’s process to recognise sales
transactions, including contract approval, recording of sales
based on contract terms, and reconciliations with cash
receipts and customers’ records.

B EEEERHEZ I TG ZIIEF - BESHIE
EIR G KM SHE REWER R E P o e 58k - IRAR -
A RZEEIEE -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and
different locations for selected samples by examination of the
sales contracts, invoices and goods delivery notes to
revenue recorded. We compared the delivery dates based
on delivery notes with the timing of revenue recognition, and
we also examined transactions which occurred immediately
before and after the balance sheet date for their recording as
revenue in the proper periods.

FRREHESL  BRENERRWAZEERH - HIRE
PEOBEARBATRZ P R RIMEEEHUA - RFIRE
RERES AT R HRERWARR - HAITREEEE
REEBRERARENGEE AT R EBEERETHRS -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported by
the relevant evidence that we gathered.

EREZREF  RAERESEENEREENRARER

/

BRI SRR R IR
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Key Audit Matter
BRELER

Business combinations

KA

Refer to Note 2.3.1 and Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements
B2 A M HRENE2.3.1 R :E35

On 1 April 2019, the Group acquired and
eventually held the 80% interests of bundled
companies from Winnitex Group Limited and
Winnitex China Holdings Limited (the
“Vendors”). The Group firstly acquired the
100% interests of Winnitex Holdings Limited,
Winnitex Limited and Zhejiang Qing Mao
Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Group”) from the Vendors for a total
consideration of RMB1,122,940,000 and then
contributed the Target Group, together with the
injection of the garment fabric business in
Vietnam and Nicaragua of the Group into the
enlarged garment fabric business (the
“Enlarged Garment Fabric Business”) held by
Texhong Winnitex Holdings Limited
(“Texhong Winnitex”). In the meantime, the
Vendors injected capital of RMB416,165,000
into Texhong Winnitex to acquire the 20%
interests of the Enlarged Garment Fabric
Business. As a result, the Group recognized a
negative goodwill of RMB209,019,000 as a
gain.

RZZ—NFWMA—A - AEER Winnitex
Group Limited } B 5 # Bl1Z I B R A A
(IE77 )W R REFE —ERFIH80%

#m - BEBEBHEXNUAKRE1,122,940,0007T
ZERBREFRBEEFZERERAAE -
BEBR AR NI EBXMBEARERA A
(EREE N2 ER  BHEEEEREE
EREHE BEEMERENRTER
EBHABRRILEEZERBRA A ([RIMEZE])
A EARHER(EAEAEE]) - [
B RARLEZRETAARK 416,165,000 TE &
VANS B 1 KT R 3675 2 20% #E % - B E K E
HER B BB MRS WS AR 209,019,000 7T °

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BHEERTYNEERRERSENS E

Management relied on external independent valuer to value
significant tangible and intangible assets acquired in these
business combinations. Therefore, we assessed the
competency, objectivity and capabilities of the external
valuer.

ERE GBI AEMEZEEBEHTRBNERET
NMEEEETRE - Bt - HAS T EIMBEER
BsiERe ) - TEIRE MEES -

We challenged management’s assessment of the appropriate
accounting treatment, the identification and valuation of
tangible and intangible assets and the allocation of
consideration for the acquisition to the assets and liabilities
acquired. We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
Group’s valuation model.

BMEEATEBYEESHRE SNBERELEER
HEELRBRBERESKE THRKRENEERAE
BMEAREREAERENEMNERE -

We involved our own valuation specialists to assist us in
critically assessing the key assumptions in the valuation of
the identified tangible and intangible assets, including the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the key
valuation parameters, by reference to market practices.

HFERASNEEZER BRI ETISEHIEBTEE &
ABEENELEENGENBERERR  BREMGENDER
AR LEZE -
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEBLER

We focused on this area due to the significant
amount of negative goodwill recognized from
the acquisition and in determining the
accounting treatment for the acquisition, the
acquired intangible and tangible assets need
to be valued and the acquisition consideration
needs to be allocated to the assets and
liabilities being acquired, which involves a
number of significant judgements and
assumptions.

BAZFEL T E  ARABEERENSENE
HELETRENETRE FEEHENDHK
BEELMBEVERENFTESRTHRKE 2 EE
REEHKRBRE  PREBEAAE KRR -

RMEFLTNEERREREANS X

We challenged management’s key assumptions within the
model and compared these key assumptions to externally
derived data.

BPEREEENEREANBERRKRR -
ERHNERERAS H) BB LE B ©

I #7% F B B R

We have also considered the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in respect of the business combinations
in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
BMITEZRESBNGE MWK T ISR EBRE G

BERERD -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
accounting treatment for the business combinations and the

Group’s disclosures in respect of the business combinations
in Note 35 were supported by the relevant evidence that we

gathered.

REZMNBLRF  RMABRREKEREBAHOET
BRI N B R EEME IS R A G EER PR

MHERES R -

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the 2019 annual report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

128

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Arthur Chi Ping Kwok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-—hF+=ZA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Freehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital: nominal value

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Note
HtaF

12
12
13

14
20
15
15

16
16
18
18

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETFTT

1,011,183
7,716,921

70,728

204,707
96,391
236,102

9,336,032

5,211,292
226,058
1,783,774

867,899
145,220
145,019
1,054,721

9,433,983

18,770,015

96,709
433,777
712,893

5,495,258

6,738,637
98,185

6,836,822



As at 31 December 2019
RZE-hFE+ZA=+—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Long-term payables

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments
Lease liabilities

Finance lease obligations

Long-term payables due within 1 year

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 130 to 248 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2020 and the
consolidated balance sheet was signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu
Director

Zhu Yongxiang
Director

2018

—E-N\F

Note RMB’000
HtaF AREFIT
19 4,875,187
8 —
23 161,690
22 122,893
5,159,770

24 3,522,714
88,272

25 727,219
70,077

19 2,252,547
20 89,468
8 —
21 831
22 22,295
6,773,423

11,933,193

18,770,015
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NAF+-_A=1+—BLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Net (accrual)/reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets

Other income
Other gains/(losses) — net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

Share of profits less losses of
investments accounted
for using the equity method

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to owners of
the Company

— Basic earnings per share

— Diluted earnings per share

The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2018
—E2-N\F
RMB’000
AREFT

19,155,709
(16,009,884)

3,145,825

(685,124)
(721,025)

553
214,198
(58,953)

1,895,474

18,371
(511,863)

(493,492)

21,918

1,423,900

(255,957)

1,167,943

1,163,092
4,851

1,167,943

RMB AR#1.27 T

RMB AR#1.27 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NGF+-A=1t—BLtFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/
(losses)
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation of buildings
— gross
— deferred income tax
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December
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2018
“E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETFT

1,167,943

5,180

1,173,123

1,168,272

4,851

1,173,123
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NGF+-A=1t—BLFE

Balance at 1 January 2018

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners
Non-controlling interests arising
on business combinations
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests
Transactions with non-controlling
interests
Dividend relating to 2017
Dividend relating to 2018
Employee share option scheme
Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation reserve
to retained earnings
— gross
— deferred income tax

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share
capital

A
Note  RMB'000
Mt ARETIT

R-B-N\F-A-ANELH 96,709

2E
R -

Hih 2 EWRE -
SEREREE 18 -

FEZENEAH

EREFEAZRS
EBAGEENIRHIEER

ARSI R 2 RS

IR 5

T+t ERE 33 =
—T-N\ERE 33 =
EEERE 2 17 -
EREETRE 18 =
AEGREBEEEZREER

—E -
— BRAREH =

BRESAAZRZAE -

R-Z2-NE+=A=+—H
oFeg-3 96,709

The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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ANRIER N
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
premium reserves earnings interests equity
FEEIE
RIVEE  EbREE  REEA s ERER

RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL ARETIT ARETT ARETIL

433,777 616,374 4,763,267 65,586 5,975,713

- - 1,163,092 4851 1,167,943
- 5,180 - - 5,180
- 5180 1,163,092 4851 1,173,123
_ _ - 4,717 41,717
- - - (6,469) (6,469)
_ - - (7,500) (7,500)
- - (156,160) - (156,160)
- - (184,102) - (184,102)
- 500

- - 500
- 94,873  (94,873) - -

(6,362) 6,362 - -
- 2,328 (2,328) - -

91,339 (431,101) 27,748  (312,014)

433,777 712,893 5,495,258 98,185 6,836,822
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

Balance at 1 January 2019

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Surplus on revaluation of buildings
— gross
— deferred income tax
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners
Non-controlling interests arising
on business combinations
Excess of consideration paid
recognised in the transactions
with non-controlling interests
reserve within equity
Dividend relating to 2018
Dividend relating to 2019
Employee share option scheme
Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation reserve
to retained earnings
— gross
— deferred income tax

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2019

Note
izt

R-B-hLF-A-ANELR
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i0EE S

The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-A=1+—BLLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of joint-ventures
Acquisitions of associates
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of land use rights
Purchases of freehold land
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Payments on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalents acquired
Purchases of financial instruments
Net proceeds from settlement of
financial instruments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Principal elements of lease payments

Repayments of finance lease
obligations

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

Interest paid

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash generated
from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

The notes on pages 137 to 248 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December
Z+=-A=1+—HLFE
2018

—N\F
RMB000

AEETT

942,689
18,371
(194,376)

766,684

13,241
200

(1,319,988)
(189,691)

44,518
(320,673)
(55,964)
6,457
(1,821,900)

5,924,712
(4,511,376)

(6,629)
(340,262)

(6,469)
(7,500)

(340,807)
(68,450)
643,219

(411,997)

1,466,718

1,054,721
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NGF+-A=1t—BLtFE

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of yarn, grey fabrics and garment
fabrics as well as garments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
July 2004 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 9 December 2004.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 16 March 2020.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

138

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(a) New standard, amendments and interpretation of
HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2019

A number of new standard, amendments and
interpretation to existing standards became
applicable for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2019 and the Group had to change its
accounting policies as a result of adopting HKFRS
16 ‘Leases’. The other new amendments and
interpretation did not give rise to any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements. These
new standard, amendments and interpretation are
set out below:

(i) HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
‘Leases’ is disclosed in Note 2.2 below.

(i)  HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 23 ‘Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments’, explains how
to recognise and measure deferred and
current income tax assets and liabilities
where there is uncertainty over a tax
treatment. In particular, it discusses:

. how to determine the appropriate unit
of account, and that each uncertain tax
treatment should be considered
separately or together as a group,
depending on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty;

. that the entity should assume a tax
authority will examine the uncertain tax
treatments and have full knowledge of
all related information, i.e. that
detection risk should be ignored;

. that the entity should reflect the effect
of the uncertainty in its income tax
accounting when it is not probable that
the tax authorities will accept the
treatment;

. that the impact of the uncertainty
should be measured using either the
most likely amount or the expected
value method, depending on which
method better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

New standard, amendments and interpretation of
HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2019
(Continued)

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Contlnued)
that the judgements and estimates
made must be reassessed whenever
circumstances have changed or there
is new information that affects the
judgements.

While there are no new disclosure
requirements, entities are reminded of the
general requirement to provide information
about judgements and estimates made in
preparing the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 regarding
prepayment features with negative
compensation enable entities to measure
certain prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation at amortised cost.
These assets, which include some loan and
debt securities, would otherwise have to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify for amortised cost measurement,
the negative compensation must be
‘reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract’ and the asset
must be held within a ‘held to collect’
business model.

Amendments to HKAS 28 regarding long-
term interests in associates and joint
ventures clarify the accounting for long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture,
which in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture,
but to which equity accounting is not applied.
Entities must account for such interests
under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
before applying the loss allocation and
impairment requirements in HKAS 28
‘Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures’'.
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(a) New standard, amendments and interpretation of
HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2019
(Continued)

(v)  Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle which were finalised in
December 2017

HKFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ —
clarified that obtaining control of a
business that is a joint operation is a
business combination achieved in
stages.

HKFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ —
clarified that the party obtaining joint
control of a business that is a joint
operation should not remeasure its
previously held interest in the joint
operation.

HKAS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’ — clarified that the
income tax consequences of dividends
on financial instruments classified as
equity should be recognised according
to where the past transactions or
events that generated distributable
profits were recognised.

HKAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ — clarified
that, if a specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or
sale, it becomes part of general
borrowings.
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

New standard, amendments and interpretation of
HKFRSs adopted by the Group in 2019
(Continued)

(vi) Amendments to HKAS 19 regarding plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, clarify
the accounting for defined benefit plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.
They confirm that entities must:

. calculate the current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the
reporting period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
by using the updated assumptions
from the date of the change;

. recognise any reduction in a surplus
immediately in profit or loss, either as
part of past service cost or as a gain or
loss on settlement. In other words, a
reduction in a surplus must be
recognised in profit or loss even if that
surplus was not previously recognised
because of the impact of the asset
ceiling;

. separately recognise any changes in
the asset ceiling through other
comprehensive income.

New standard and amendments of HKFRSs

issued but are not effective for the financial year

beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not been

early adopted by the Group

(i) HKFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021 (but likely to be extended).

(i) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
regarding definition of material, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

(i) Amendments to HKFRS 3 regarding
definition of a business, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

(iv) Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) New standard and amendments of HKFRSs
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

(v) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 regarding interbank offered rates
(IBORs) reform and its effects on financial
reporting, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

(vi) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
regarding sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or
joint venture, originally intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The effective date has
now been deferred/removed.

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 ‘Leases’ on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ from 1 January 2019, but has not
restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as
permitted under the simplified transition approach in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing standard are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January
2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note
2.29.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 ‘Leases’. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.67%.
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For leases previously classified as finance leases the
Group recognised the carrying amount of the lease
assets of RMB17,409,000 and finance lease obligations
of RMB831,000 immediately before transition as the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability at the date of initial application. The
measurement principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied
after that date. The remeasurements to the lease
liabilities were recognised as adjustments to the related
right-of-use assets immediately after the date of initial
application.

(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

. the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

. reliance on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous;

. the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;

. the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application, and

. the use of hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17
‘Leases’ and HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 4
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease’.
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(ii)

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease (ii)

liabilities

Operating lease commitments

(excluding leases relating to land use rights)

disclosed as at 31 December 2018

Less:

Short-term leases to be recognised on
a straight-line basis as expenses
Low-value leases to be recognised on
a straight-line basis as expenses

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial
application, representing additional lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

Add:

Reclassification of lease assets recorded
under property, plant and equipment in
relation to finance lease obligations

Reclassification of land use rights

Right-of-use assets recognised as at
1 January 2019
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The right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid rental expenses relating
to that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at
1 January 2019. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment
to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial

application.
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(iii) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet
on 1 January 2019
The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the balance sheet on 1 January
2019:

. property, plant and equipment — decrease
by RMB17,409,000

. freehold land and land use rights —
decrease by RMB877,045,000

. right-of-use assets — increase by
RMB1,077,084,000

. finance lease obligations — decrease by
RMB831,000

. lease liabilities (current portion) — increase
by RMB34,309,000

. lease liabilities (non-current portion) —
increase by RMB149,152,000

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1
January 2019.

2.3.1 Consolidation

(@) A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the group has
control. The Group controls an entity where
the group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is also required according to Note
2.11.
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carry amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the consolidated income statement.
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Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’'s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in
joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Committee of Executive Directors
of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance costs — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net'.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but
at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. All other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged to other comprehensive
income; all other decreases are charged to the
consolidated income statement. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset charged to the
consolidated income statement and depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings’.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs or revalued amounts to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 15 to 40 years 2.5%—6.7%
— Machinery and equipment 6to 15 years 6.7%—16.7%
— Furniture and fixtures 3to10years 10.0%-33.3%
— Motor vehicles 5to7years  14.0%—-20.0%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.11).
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
machinery pending installation, is stated at cost, which
includes construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, interest capitalised and other direct costs
capitalised during the construction and installation
period, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction-in-
progress until the construction and installation work is
completed and put into use. On completion,
construction-in-progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

Freehold land is not amortized.

The premiums paid to acquire land use rights are
recorded as prepayment for operating lease, and are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period
of the land use rights of 45 to 50 years.

As disclosed in Note 2.2, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ from 1 January 2019, but has not
restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as
permitted under the simplified transition approach in the
standard. The reclassifications from land use rights to
right-of-use asset arising from the new leasing standard
are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet
on 1 January 2019.
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(i) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3.1.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

(ii) Customer relationship
Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

(iii) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a
limited useful life using the straight-line method
over the following periods:

Customer relationship 15 years

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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21241

2122

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2123 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of

a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2123 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other losses in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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2124 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
13 for further details.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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Grants/subsidies from government authorities are
recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants/subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to assets are
presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to compensation
for relocation are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period when
the relocation takes place.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes
into account the price ultimately expected to be realised,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade and other receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at
call with banks.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill and deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations (defined contribution
plans)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonuses
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).
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Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells yarns, grey
fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments in
the market. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the
customer has inspected and accepted the
products. The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location.

If discount is granted to customers, revenue from
these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. No significant financing component is
deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of less than 90 days to its customers in
Mainland China and 120 days to its customers in
other countries, which is consistent with market
practice.
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(a)

(b)

Sales of goods (Continued)

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue
recognised as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

If the payments exceed the value of the goods
sold, a contract liability is recognised.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Interest income
is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income
is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the
impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were
retained by the lessor were classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group had substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases.
Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment was allocated
between the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
were included in finance lease obligations. The interest
element of the finance cost was charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases was depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability, and

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

. by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, when appropriate.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain of its risk
exposures on changes in interest rates.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China and Vietnam. Most of the Group’s
transactions, assets and liabilities are
dominated in RMB or United States dollars
(“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant group
entity. It manages its foreign exchange risks
by performing regular review and monitoring
of its foreign exchange exposures and
purchase of foreign currency forward
contracts (Note 20). In 2019, the Group has
entered into the forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap contracts
to manage the expected depreciation of
RMB against USD or HKD.

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 1.6% (2018:
5.0%) against USD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB36,976,000 (2018:
RMB137,760,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of USD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings.
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(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 2.2% (2018:
4.8%) against HKD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB114,963,000 (2018:
RMB162,859,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HKD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price
risk because of the volatility of the price of
main raw material, cotton. The management
of the Group analyze the trend of raw
material price on weekly basis. To manage
its price risk, the Group has entered into the
cotton future contracts and decide to enter
long term contracts to mitigate the impact
from raw material price changes, and
diversify the suppliers if they expect
significant fluctuation in the future.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Except for pledged bank deposits and cash
at bank (Note 15), the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from
changes in interest rates on interest bearing
assets.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. As at 31 December 2019, approximately
22% (2018: 27%) of the Group’s borrowings
were at fixed rates and the remaining were
at floating rates.
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(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)
The Group manages certain of its cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk by purchasing
cross currency swap contracts. Such cross
currency swaps have the economic effect of
converting borrowings from floating rates to
fixed rates. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group in substance converted
majority of its borrowings from floating rates
to fixed rates through purchasing cross
currency swap contracts. So there is no
significant interest rate risk for the Group.

Credit risk

The Group has more than 5,000 customers and
does not rely on the orders from certain
customers. So the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. The carrying amounts
of pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally grants credit terms of less
than 90 days to its customers in Mainland China
and 120 days to its customers in other countries.
The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure
that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group places
deposits with major banks in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, to limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institution.

Trade and bills receivables, and other receivables
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

To lower the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request 5% deposits from certain of
their customers before delivery of goods. In
addition, 100% (2018: 100%) of the bills receivable
of the Group are endorsed by banks as at 31
December 2019.
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(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group has trade receivables from sales of
products that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
from initial recognition. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the ageing days. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 36 month before 31
December 2019 and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. On that basis,
the loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018 was determined as follows for
trade receivables:

At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&
+=A=+—-H

Gross carrying amount RHAE

Expected loss rate HEBEX

Loss allowance BB
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(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

At 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\F
T=A=t-H

Gross carrying amount RE4E

Expected loss rate RHEBEE

Loss allowance EERE

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During the year, losses of RMB3,638,000 (2018:
gains of RMB553,000) are recognised in net
(accrual)/reversal of impairment losses on financial
assets.

Within

180 days
180 HIAR
RMB’000
ARETFT

771,762
0.05%
386

(b) FERRE)
JEWE SRR E ()

181 days
to1year  Over1year Total
181BZE1F BBR1F st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFT ARETT

10,614 4,731 787,107
25% 75% 0.84%
2,654 3,548 6,588
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(c)

176

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available. Details of the undrawn borrowing
facilities available to the Group are disclosed in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E
+=B=t-H
Borrowings BE
Interest payable on borrowings 12 & fE {5 &
Derivative financial PTEERMIA
instruments

ENESERERE
IRE ML E MR RN

Trade and bills payables
Accruals and other payables

(excluding non-financial (TeEFEERAR)
liabilities)

Lease liabilities HERRE

Long-term payables REERNTIE

At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\F

“A=t-

Borrowings g

Interest payable on borrowings %E JERTFIE

Derivative financial fTEemIA
instruments

ENE SRR ERE

Trade and bills payables |
BRE AR EMENER

Accruals and other payables

(excluding non-financial (T efEFEERAR)
liabilities)
Finance lease obligations ~ FiETHE 7??)*
Long-term payables REEMA T
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Less than
1 year
DPR-F
RMB’000
AREFTT

2,252,547
223,175

89,468
3,522,714

413,160
885
29,329

6,531,278
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Between Between More than
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—FEME WMEEREF EFENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
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142,120 58,125 -
67,012 63,666 -
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet), finance lease obligations
and long-term payables less pledged bank deposits and
cash and total equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘total equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet
less non-controlling interests plus net debt.

AEEERECHERRREAZE R
BRENREN  RRRTREHERRE
ST A AT - WHEFIEEE
REBIAR DB AR o

REFIABELGERE  ~AEEAEH
ERARRNRE SBHETHRD
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The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZE-—NERZZF-NFT=ZA
are as follows: =t+—HBZFEEBELERMT
2018
=—N\F
RMB’000
AREFT
Total borrowings (Note 19) BERTE(MF19) 7,127,734
Lease liabilities (Note 8) ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%) -
Finance lease obligations (Note 21)  RY &M E&IYE (ff:F21) 831
Long-term payables (Note 22) REARE R I (B et 22) 145,188
Less: pledged bank deposits and b Eﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ e
cash and cash equivalents REFEW (HE15)
(Note 15) (1,199,740)
Net debt BEFR 6,074,013
Total equity excluding non-controlling  #8RXERAE %S - TN FEFEHIMERE RS
interests 6,738,637
Total capital BAN4EER 12,812,650
Net gearing ratio FEREEAMBLE 47%

The net debt to equity ratio increased from 47% to 48%
following the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases. Both net
debt and gross assets increased following the
recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on
1 January 2019. See Note 2.2 for further information.

KRB B REEAF16REER
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Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

0 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
held forward foreign exchange contracts, cross
currency swap contracts and cotton future
contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward
exchange rates that are quoted in an active
market. Cross currency swaps are fair valued
using forward exchange rates that are quoted in
an active market and interest rates extracted from
observable yield curves. Cotton future contracts
are fair valued using forward cotton price that are
quoted in an active market. The effects of
discounting are generally insignificant for Level 2
derivatives.
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(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2019 and 2018:

At 31 December 2019

Assets
Derivative financial
instruments

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments

At 31 December 2018

Assets
Derivative financial
instruments

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments

Valuation techniques used to determine fair

values

R-ZE—hF

+=A=t-"

BE
TEERTA

R-E—N\F

+=A=+-A

aE
ITEEMTIA

a8
TEERTA

Level 1
F—R
RMB’000
AREFIT

Level 2 debt investments are fair valued using a
discounted cash flow approach, which discounts
the contractual cash flows using discount rates
derived from observable market prices of other

quoted debt instruments of the counterparties.

() 2FEERE)

TERBSIAEER B —NFR=
T N\F+-A=+—BRATHE

HECEERARE:
Level 2 Level 3
FE_4R E=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT
145,220

89,468

Total

M5t
RMB’000
AREFIT

145,220

89,468
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values and consequently the
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change as a result of technical innovations and
competitors action in response to sever industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives, and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic reviews could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore changes in depreciation expenses in the future
periods.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations,
changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date.
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The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based
on the expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade, bills and other
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. Management uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Committee of Executive Directors of the Company. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The Committee of Executive Directors reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.
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The Committee of Executive Directors considers the business
from both a product and geographical perspective. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
from sales of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments. The operations are further evaluated on a
geographic basis including Mainland China (and Hong Kong),
Vietnam, Turkey, Macao, Cambodia, Nicaragua and North
America.

The Committee of Executive Directors assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on revenue
and operating profit.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2019 is as follows:

Total revenue ELUN

Inter-segment revenue AERRA

Revenue (from external WA (REABEE)
customers)

Timing of revenue recognition U A iE325

— Atapoint in time — RE AR
Segment results PEEE
Unallocated profits ROWER
Operating profit fgER
Finance income FBIA
Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of 7

investments accounted for
using the equity method

Income tax expense i
Profit for the year FEER
Depreciation and amortisation /&
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
 E—E-AE+_A=+—HLFE

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

2018 is as follows:

Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Revenue (from external
customers)

Timing of revenue
recognition
— Ata point in time

Segment results
Unallocated profits

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses
of investments accounted
for using the equity method

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Depreciation and
amortisation

B

LN
ERBA

E

P

=5

BACREABEF)

WARERER

— REMEERE

FRRE
AAEHEH

- eal]

B
HHER
AL

KA

FERRX

EEER

TEREE

Mainland
China and
Hong Kong
HEAER
B
RMB'000
ANRBFR

13,134,158

(4857%4)

12,648,364

12,648,364

750,414

(281,750)

Yams
FES

Vietnam

i
RMB000
ARRFR

7,666,199

(7241.428)

424,171

424,171

529,542

(318,370)

Mainland

China and

Macao  Hong Kong
PEAER

i &R
RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT  ARBFR
13,700,098 2,258,937
(11,219,063) =
2481035 2,258,937
2481035 2,258,937
366,718 3892

(16)  (28857)

AR

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\FT-A=1-ALER

Garment fabrics and Garments
[EEyEiEd

Mainland
North ~ China and
Cambodia Vietnam  Nicaragua Macao America Hong Kong
HEAER
RER #E  EmEd | pES | E
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEBFT  ARETT  ARETT AEEFT  ARETT  AREFR
170,720 562,993 30379 50,057 480,337 822,851
(162,323)  (529,674) (30,379) (48,462) (38,248) -
8,397 33319 - 1,595 442,089 822,851
8,397 33319 - 1,595 442,089 822,851
(9,388) (28,150) (3,526) 627 (771) 53,400
(22,839) (43,169) (8,257) - (4,450) (14,880)
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Grey fabrics
7

Vietnam Macao
#E 27
RMB000 RMB000
NEEFT  AEHTR
531,139 331876
(528.277) (300,387)
2,862 31489
2,862 31489
36922 1,021
(30,614) -

—E-NEFER

BE-T—\F+-A=+—AILEEZHH

Total
2%

RMB'000
AEBFT

39,739,744
(20,584,035)

19,155,709

19,155,709

1,700,701
194,773

1,895,474

18371
(511,863)

21918
(255,957)

1,167,943

(753.202)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

184

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019
are as follows:

Total segment assets HELEE
Unallocated assels ~ £AREE

Total assets rE@HEE
of the Group

Total segment HEARE
liabilities
Unallocated liabities 78 %

Total liabilties AEMEAR
of the Group

Addition to BEERBEE
non-current assets

The Group planned to develop real estate and has purchased
relevant land use rights with lease terms of 40 to 70 years of
RMB227,580,000. No construction had started till 31
December 2019, such land use rights were recognised in
unallocated assets.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

AEBEHEAEEHEYEBERNE40E
704F KB [EE b FA#E A R #227,580,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

Yam

E4:3
Mainland Mainland
China and China and
Hong Kong Vietnam Macao Sub-total  Hong Kong
PEAER FEAER
R HE B Nt Bt

RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
AEBFT ARBTT AEETT ARBFT ARETZ

Total segment assets SEBEE 8,639,123 5575259 27768 14442150 1,599,261
Unallocated assets FPREE

Total assets of the Group AEEMUEE

Total segment liabilities SEBER (6,148,083)  (887,929)
Unallocated labiliies FARARE

Total liabilities of the Group ~ AEWAEE

Addition to non-current assets  FEFREEE 995,553 695,662 8 1691223 42,813

The Group planned to develop real estate and has purchased
relevant land use rights with lease terms of 40 to 70 years of
RMB226,058,000. No construction had started till 31
December 2018, such land use rights were recognised in
unallocated assets.

The adoption of the new leasing standard described in Note
2.2 had the following impact on the segment disclosures and
profit in the current year.

R-_ZE—NF+_A=+—BZHBPEEKRE
BT

As at 31 December 2018
RZE-\F+ZA=1+-H

Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
HRRE biin .t
Mainland
China
North and

Cambodia Vietnam  Nicaragua America  Hong Kong Vietnam

EAE

REE R LM RER BF
RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
AREFL ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARETT AEETR

220,583 548,605 143,851 359,266 362,660 440,756 18,117,132

652,883

18,770,015

(28243)  (402800)  (1867) (219895)  (36505)  (3453%) (8070,718)

(3,862.475)
(11,933,193)

7401 85,491 41,126 3,083 20,684 111,594 2,008415

AEEFERBREHEYCEERNR0E
70F HYARRA L b {0 A #E A R ¥6226,058,0007T °
BHE_Z-)/\F+_A=+—HRARFARIE
T - tiaz Lo AR R 2D BCE BE AR o

Ry E E R (P eE2.2) ARFEH 5 E
BROSMELIATHE -

For the year ended
31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2019
BE-F-NFT-A=1-HLFE R=2-hF+t=-A=t-H

Increase

i
Segment
profit
2 A
RMB’000
AREFT

Yarmns Wiz 2,277
Garment fabrics and [EIREN
Garments 791

3,068

Comparative segment information has not been restated. As
a consequence, the segment information disclosed for the
items noted above is not entirely comparable to the
information disclosed for the prior year.

Increase
&

Segment Segment
Depreciation assets liabilities
e PHEE PHMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
26,409 134,213 136,051
9,550 34,605 35,105
35,959 168,818 171,156

L&D REREARESY - Eit - #8 ElER
KEND I ELRBEFERENERL T T
AL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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186

Freehold land
Land use rights

Opening net book amount
Adjustment for change in accounting
policy (Note 2.2)

Restated opening net book amount

Additions

Reclassification to properties under
development

Amortisation (Note 27)

Disposal of subsidiaries

Currency translation differences

Closing net book amount

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

KAERLH
T3 {sh A

FYIRREFE

S BRBEORE (HiF2.2)

BIIFREFE

NE

BN BRERTYE

834 (Hj12.27)
L
A 3
R HE

A
Bitin

BREFE

The Group’s freehold land cost is analysed as follows:

Freehold land
— In Cambodia
— In Turkey

— In Mexico
— In Uruguay
— In Nicaragua

IKAEREL
— RIS
—REEH
— REEF
— RER=E

— RIEHNRL I

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBF T

134,138
877,045

1,011,183

2018
—T-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

863,083

863,083
189,691

(25,391)
(19,632)

(3,356)
6,788

1,011,183

1,096,299
(85,116)

1,011,183

REBZKAERT MBI AT ¢

2018
—E)\F
RMB’000
ARMTFT

116,257

10,073
7,808

134,138



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

At 1 January 2018

Cost or valuation

R=ZZ2-N\%F
—A—H
ARG E

Accumulated depreciation ZitiE

Net book amount

AR (E

Year ended 31 December BZ=F— N\ F

2018 +ZA=t-H
Opening net book amount F#IEEEHE
Additions NE
Acquisition of subsidiaries 8% Ki B2 7]
Transfers ELE
Disposals (Note 34) & (Bt 34)
Depreciation charges ~ #TE&EXH (#iF27)

(Note 27)

Disposal of subsidiaries & HfE A Al
Currency translation ERERZR
differences
Closing net book amount  EREEEHE
At31December2018 R=-ZF—N\%
+=A=t-H
Cost or valuation ARG (G B

Accumulated depreciation ZitifE

Net book amount

AR E

Buildings
BT
RMB’000
ARETT

2,776,499
(341,134)

2,435,365

2,435,365
57,397
2,312
174,288
(4,878)

(130,592)
(2,206)

10,698

2,542,384

3,015,122
(472,738)

2,542,384

Machinery
and
equipment
HERRE
RMB’000
AREFT

6,070,051
(2,329,475)

3,740,576

3,740,576
150,826
5,819
927,405
(41,222)

(583,460)

3447

4,203,391

7,082,672
(2,879,281)

4,203,391

Furniture
and
fixtures

BRREE
RMB000
ARETT

79,281
(36,236)

43,045

43,045
8,207
728
1,107
(462)

(10,709)

1,035

43,041

86,769
(43,728)

43,041

Motor Construction

vehicles
AE
RMB’000
ARETFT

45908
(21,995)

23,913

23913
6,376
106
32
(574)

(6,978)

1"

22,886

50,683
(27,797)

22,886

in-progress
EEIR
RMB’000
ARETT

417,223

417,223

417,223
1,590,828

(1,102,832)

905,219

905,219

905,219

Total

@it
RMB’000
ARETT

9,388,962
(2,728,840)

6,660,122

6,660,122
1,813,724
8,965
(47,136)

(731,739)
(2,206)

15,191

7,716,921

11,140,465
(3,423,544)

7,716,921
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

Machinery Furniture

and and Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles in-progress Total
BF HERRE HARERE AE HEIR @t

RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
ARETT AREBTL ARETT ARBFL ARETT AREFIL

Year ended 31 December EE—ZF—h &

2019 +=A=t+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount F#18R A FE 2,542,384 4,203,391 43,041 22,886 905,219 7,716,921
Adjustment for change in &3t BURZBH AR
accounting policy (Hiz2.2)
(Note 2.2) - (17,409) - - - (17,409)

Restated openingnet ~ EJ|FEHREFE

book amount 2,542,384 4,185,982 43,041 22,886 905219 7,699,512
Additions RE 21,115 319,100 16,928 5353 1575630 1,938,126
Revaluation Eff 210,988 - - - - 210,988
Acquisition of subsidiaries KB A 7

(Note 35) (Hr7£35) 331,642 184,739 6,928 3,839 = 527,148
Transfers BE 331,162 811,488 8,062 1,200 (1,151,912 -
Disposals (Note 34) HE (BizF34) (129) (19,562) (206) (128) = (20,025)
Depreciation charges WEZH (fz27)

(Note 27) (154,245) (681,001) (14,702) (7,247) = (857,195)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~E%[EH =% (57,027) = = = = (57,027)
Currency translation HERBATF

differences 2,308 1,265 655 (30) - 4,198
Closing net book amount 4 K BRI/ (E 3,228,198 4,802,011 60,706 25873 1,328937 9445725

At 31 December2019 R=Z-L&F

t-A=t-H
Cost or valuation A (B 3,847,420 8,300,346 115,139 59205 1328937 13,651,047
Accumulated depreciation 2347 (619,222)  (3,498,335) (54,433) (33,332) - (4205322
Net book amount AR EFHE 3,228,198 4,802,011 60,706 25873 1328937  9,445725
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. As at 31 December 2019, buildings
with net book amount of RMB3,228,198,000 were stated at
fair value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2019 was
determined using the depreciated replacement costs
approach and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Current gross reproduction costs of the buildings are adjusted
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimization.

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income tax
liabilities, was regarded as other comprehensive income and
credited to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 18).

If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts
would be as follows:

Cost BN
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE
Net book amount BREFE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation of
RMB785,213,000 (2018: RMB675,427,000) was included in
cost of sales, RMB5,432,000 (2018: RMB5,448,000) was
included in selling and distribution costs and RMB66,550,000
(2018: RMB50,864,000)was included in general and
administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no finance cost
was capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment
(2018: Nil) (Note 29).

As at 31 December 2019, property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB709,529,000 (2018: RMB834,894,000)
were pledged as collateral of the Group’s bank borrowings
(Note 19).

BFRBIIMBLEEMER(ERIE=F
—RVETOHERAFEREENTESRE -
REIZE-NAF+-A=+—H KREFER/A
FR#3,228,198,000 7T 2 FIR A TETIER

“E-AFT A=t BETZHETRA
TESERNEEE  UBARTERRE=
BN - BFEANBRERKNACHERZL
KFrERE RBCAREAE A E LA -

EERBNREROETAEHAR - (AR
i 2 T it O 2 AR i P ) 2 6 (B 22
18) -

18 F AR L RAVESIRR - SBHOT

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
ABREFTT

2,915,831
(455,749)

2,460,082

REE-ZE—NE+-A=+—HILFEE ' A
R #785213,000c( —FE — \E: ARK
675,427,000 7T) ITEEF ABERE - AR
#5,432,0000(—F—/)\F : AR¥5,448,000
)M EEFAHERSHAIRARE
66,550,0007t( — T — )L F: A R #
50,864,000 ) ITEE T A — M RITHFAS °

REBE-Z-hF+-A=1+—HLFE &
BEWHER(ZT-N\F: B)EXMAME -
R K itz — &by (£ 29) ©

R-ZE-hE+-A=+—R0 9% HER
L AR 709,529,000 T (ZE—\E : A
834,894,000 70) DA AARNEBIRITEE
R IR R (PFIRE19) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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190

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets ERAREE

Land use rights b A A

Buildings and warehouses EFREE

Equipment and others R R E A

Current lease liabilities BEifEafE

Non-current lease liabilities JEENHAHEBE

Total lease liabilities HEAERRE

Representing: (A

Additional lease liabilities recognised B FERHFEINAE A &

Reclassification of finance lease BEREAESENIBE
obligations to lease liabilities HEAE

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019
financial year were RMB320,294,000.

The Group leases various machinery and equipment
under finance lease agreement. The original lease
terms are 3 to 4 years. Under the terms of the leases,
the leasors transfer ownership of the assets to the
Group by the end of the lease term.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

HEEHENERINEREERER
LU

2019 1 January 2019

=F-NF —E-NF
—A—AH
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETIT

1,178,793 877,045
115,422 142,020
50,097 58,019
1,344,312 1,077,084
35,770 34,309
135,386 149,152
171,156 183,461
182,630

831

183,461

—TNFHRFEFREEELIMA
R 320,294,000 7T °

AEBREREREHAHESEERW
wiE - RNEEHRRIZAF - RIFHE
S A A RS HR E WA
BEENMARERGAEE -



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use  {FAEEEITEEH
assets

Land use rights 3 s A

Buildings and warehouses BFREE

Equipment and others = R EHA

B GIAMBER)
(KzE29)
BRI HE SR

Interest expenses (included in
finance costs) (Note 29)

Expenses relating to short-term leases
(included in selling and distribution
costs and administrative expenses)
(Note 27)

Expenses relating to leases of low-value
assets that are not shown above as
short-term leases (included in cost of
sales and administrative expenses)
(Note 27)

TERFEX) (AfeE27)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
RMB157,060,000.

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
None of the extension option was exercised during
2019.

RAWERIITIATERBEENIA

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

19,632

19,632

(FEASHE K 0 $HFI STA K

BRAARSIR R LR EEEN
EEERENFX GTAHE
A RITHRF ) (HfaE27)

—E-NFHNHERSRLBBEAAR
157,060,000 7T ©

AEEHERBHMAET BEERERE -
BH—RAEES - BEHRRIRMERIE
WA S Z B TRGER &GS - A
B EE TR EREEE
TEREERERR

AEBENETYERREEER S LY
RERIDEEE - ZEERTARMER
BHRSEEEERNERXL - FIANK
BRI R AR DR R E N AR ETT
& N SHREHELEATE - X8
—NEHRE  METEEMEHRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE
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At 1 January 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2018

Opening net book amount

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Amortisation charges (Note 27)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018

Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

At 1 January 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December
2019

Opening net book amount

Amortisation charges (Note 27)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019

Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

R=®-N\F-A—H
BN
Rt e

FREHE

BE-_Z—N\&F
+ZA=+—HILEE
FHEREFE

U BEFT B A A

A (Wax27)

FARREFE

R-E—N\F
+=—A=+-—H

AR 1B
RET#EH

R FE
R-ZFE—-hh&E—H—H

PR
REtinE

R FE

BEZ-ZT—h&
+=ZBA=+—HIEE
FYIREFE

BER (Bt 27)

FRIREFE
R=FB—-N&
+t-—RA=t—8”
PRAKETE
Kt HE

FREFE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of
RMB3,661,000 (2018: RMB1,831,000) was included in
general and administrative expenses.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Goodwill
e
RMB’000
AREFIT

17,641

17,641

17,641
17,641
17,641

17,641

17,641

17,641

17,641

17,641

Customer
relationship
EF@#%
RMB’000
ARETFT

54,918
(1,831)

53,087

54,918
(1,831)

53,087

54,918
(1,831)

53,087

53,087
(3,661)

49,426

54,918
(5,492)

49,426

Total

st
RMB’000
AREFIT

72,559
(1,831)

70,728

72,559
(1,831)

70,728

72,559
(1,831)

70,728

70,728
(3,661)

67,067

72,559
(5,492)

67,067

BE-_ZT—NFE+_A=+—HBIEE - #4
ARB3661,000T(ZE—NE: ARK
1,831,000 7T) B st A — AR RATEL RS, ©



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
are as follows:

NTRERGEEEREBERERNTH

2018

=— N\F

RMB’000

AR F T

Associates ik l/NE] 200,831

Joint ventures SR 3,876

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 204,707
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income T RERGEE NG RERNEHE

statement are as follows:

2018

—N\F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Associates ik l/NE] 21,248

Joint ventures B 670

For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=1t—"HILFE 21,918

2018

—N\F

RMB’000

ARKEFIT

Share of net assets of unlisted associates P15 3F F il S A 7l & E/FE 200,640

Goodwill EES 191

200,831
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Movements of shares of net assets attributable to the Group
are as follows:

Opening amount e
Acquisition g1
Share of profits based on equity held

Closing amount HREH

On 29 July 2019, the Group acquired 30% interest of Henglun
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an investment holding
company in Hong Kong, for a consideration of
RMB10,464,000. The Group’s share of the fair value of net
assets acquired at acquisition date on aggregation was
RMB10,464,000.

On 8 October 2019, the Group acquired 45% interest of
Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited, an
investment holding company in Hong Kong, for a
consideration of RMB8,000. The Group’s share of the fair
value of net assets acquired at acquisition date on
aggregation was RMB8,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in the associates.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2019 which, in the opinion of the directors, are
individually immaterial to the Group. The associates as listed
below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held directly by the Group; the country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of
business.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

AR P s MO A a5 PR A5 7

AEBEGEEEFEZFHNT

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETFT

179,392

21,248
200,640

RZZFE-NFLA-+IR  AEEREER
B (F8) BRARZ30% e » ZRAIRE
BREZEKRAR - RERAK%10,464,000
T AEEA RSB EEFENKER
Z N FER AR 10,464,000 7T ©

R-ZZ—HAE+ANB  AEBWBERED
M (EE)ERAR AT Z45% R - X AT A
EBREERAR  REASARKS,0007T -
AEBAEESHAMKEEEFENKER ZA
FEAARS,0007T °

IS 3

i)

REE QAN B EFRARE -

WTABR-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H EFR
AEFEAEBRITTAEBE 2 AEEB L QG
THEE AR 2 RAER T RRAER - WHA
E@MEEES  HEfMAISaMBERAAH
TEEEMmI



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Nature of investments in associates as at 31 December 2019:

Name of associate
NG R

Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

MRS BEREESEAERAR

Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited

BB EERER AR

Henglun International (Hong Kong)
Limited
BmER (FE) BRAA

Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh)
Holdings Limited

ENEuE (B2 ERERA

Subsidiaries of Hongyan Vietnam
Holdings Limited

TERE SRR AR LD A 2B AT

— Lanyan Denim Garment Vietnam
Holdings Limited
— WS REBEERERA

— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments
Limited Company
— & (BE) REEEERA

A subsidiary of Henglun International
(Hong Kong) Limited
Henglun International (Hong Kong)

Limited 2 fT B2 A)

Henglun Textile Vietnam Company
Limited

Henglun Textile Vietnam Company
Limited

Place and date of
incorporation and form
of legal entity
AR EHR B AR
ERERER

Nantong, Mainland China,

11 September 2002,
limited liability company

PEARERR —TT_F
NA+—R  AREEAR

British Virgin Islands,

2 July 2015,
limited liability company
EERZES  —ZT—hF

YA-B ERELAT

Hong Kong, 11 June 2019,
limited liability company

BE ZE-NERAT—H-
BREERA

Hong Kong, 16 November 2018,
Iimited Iiability company

BB
ﬁ@f&

Hong Kong, 2 June 2015,
limited IiabiIity company
Nk ﬁiﬁﬂ:ﬁv

ﬁ@ E

Vietnam, January 2016,
limited liability company

HE - —T-RF-A
BREAR

Vietnam, November 2019,
limited liability company

a2 7A_n¢+ A
BREER

)\iﬁ' A+RE

RZZE—AF+=ZA=+—8" 'R
&

,MEE
Particulars
of issued
Principal activities share capital
TEXH BRITRAFE
Manufacturing and RMB
sales of top-grade 116,375,000
textile knitting
products and
garments
HERRERRHBER NS
Rk 116,375,000 7C
Investment holding in RMB
British Virgin Islands 166,167,000
REBRZESETT ARE
REER 166,167,000 7T
Investment holding in usbD
Hong Kong 5,000,000
REBETREER 5,000,000 7T
Investment holding in HKD20,000
Hong Kong
REBETREER 20,0007 7T
Investment holding in HKD100
Hong Kong
REBETREER 100/87T
Manufacturing of VND

garments in Vietnam 39,870,000,000

NEESIEKK 39,870,000,000
BEE
Manufacturing of USD5,000,000
garment fabrics in
Vietnam
R B RUEE R 5,000,000 7T

Interest held

Frisfss

48%

48%

45%

45%

30%

30%

45%

45%

45%

45%

45%

45%

30%

30%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

2018
—ZT—N\F
RMB’000
AEREF T
Aggregate carrying amount of &l Bl FE B KB & A IR AR B
individually immaterial associates 200,831
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEREATSIBLEE -
share of:
Profit from continuing operations FREE & A 21,248
2018
—E-)N\F
RMB’000
AEEFT
Opening amount )&= 3,206
Share of profits DEERT 670
At 31 December Rt—A=+—~ 3,876
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s REFRALDPENESTETAKAEE -
interests in the joint venture.
Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 LNTAR-_ZE—hE+-—_F=+—H 5%
December 2019 which, in the opinion of the directors, is ABEBESARERY TEE AEFBLLDE
immaterial to the Group. The joint venture as listed below has THEEPEZIRANERLFEIRAR - WHA
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are EBEEEE HiIMkvaisazMBERINAE

held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or FEEEME -
registration is also its principal place of business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

Nature of investment in a joint venture as at 31 December RZE—NF+_A=+—HESELENK
2019: BEME :

Place and date of Particulars

incorporation and form of issued
Name of the joint venture of legal entity Principal activities share capital Interest held

LAk S 3 B & B IR
RELXAR ERERER FERK EBRITRAFHE JEsy 3
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Vietnam, 30 June 2016, Cargo transportation by VND 50%

Stock Company limited liability company land and sea; other  20,000,000,000
assistant services;

cargo landing-over,
storage, management

consulting
RAFEYRBR D 2 7] HE —T—REF BEEYER : Hft 20,000,000,000
NAZTH BREAAR BT &Y BEE
HE - #F
ERAHA
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company is a REIFEDRRD 2B RILARE - HRGH I
private company and there is no quoted market price available ETIHME -
for its shares.
2018
—ZT—N\F
RMB’000
ARETT
Carrying amount of the immaterial TEREANEGEEENREE
the joint venture 3,876
The Group’s share of profit from REBSERHBEKE X
continuing operations BE A A A 670
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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198

31 December 2019
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and bills receivables (Note 13)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 20)
Deposits and other receivables (Note 14)
Pledged bank deposits and cash

and cash equivalents (Note 15)

Total

31 December 2019

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings (Note 19)

Derivative financial instruments
(Note 20)

Trade and bills payables (Note 24)

—E-hFE+ZHA=t—H

BEEERFMIIEE

[EAE 5 R EEFA (K171 13)

AL BT A (K20)

Be R AWK (7t 14)

BERBRAGREES R
ReSEM(H215)

st

—E-AFE+=A=1+-H
BEEBRAIEE

&8 (K1 19)
TSR A (KF20)

R E S REBRHA (M 24)

Accruals and other payables excluding T2 &/ & E e (iR 3%

deposits and statutory liabilities
(Note 25)
Lease liabilities (Note 8)
Long-term payables (Note 22)

Total

(T eERERAEE) (H:25)

HERAEMKZS)
REEMNESR (AriE22)

st
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

31 December 2018

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and bills receivables (Note 13)

Derivative financial instruments
(Note 20)

Deposits and other receivables
(Note 14)

Pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 15)

Total

31 December 2018

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings (Note 19)

Derivative financial instruments
(Note 20)

Trade and bills payables (Note 24)

Accruals and other payables
excluding deposits and
statutory liabilities (Note 25)

Finance lease obligations (Note 21)

Long-term payables (Note 22)

Total

—E2-N\E+=A=+—H
EEABRMIEE
FEUE 5 R ZHEFRIE (M7 13)
PTHES BRI A (F:F20)

e K EA AR (et 14)

BEBBEIERERE R
REZEY (A 15)

=
FEE

—E-N\E+=A=+—H
BEEEERMIEE

B8 (#aE19)

PTES R IT A (B:£20)

BN E 5 MR (et 24)
TRIRE AR EMEMRR
(TEEREREERE)

(K1a£25)

BEMEAE (Har21)
KBRS (e 22)

N
FEE

Assets at

fair value
through the
profit and loss

BATEE A
RiEMEE

RMB’000
ARETFTT

145,220

145,220

Liabilities at
fair value
through the
profit and loss

BAFAERA
Rz AE

RMB’000
ARETFTT

89,468

89,468

Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R SHR AR
HIER 2
HEMorEE
RMB’000
AREFIT

1,783,774

40,965

1,199,740

3,024,479

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
g |
A5 BR 2
HEmeorad
RMB’000
ARMTF T

7,127,734
3,522,714

413,160
831
145,188

11,209,627

Total

Bt
RMB’000
ARETT

1,783,774
145,220
40,965

1,199,740

3,169,699

Total

et
RMB’000
ARETT

7,127,734
89,468
3,522,714

413,160
831
145,188

11,299,095
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

Raw materials R
Work-in-progress fE& M
Finished goods LUK

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB14,913,453,000 (2018:
RMB13,068,997,000).

In 2019, the Group made an inventory provision of
approximately RMB8,957,000 (2018: RMB4,445,000). These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
consolidated income statement (Note 27).

As at 31 December 2019, inventories with a total net book
amount of RMB66,580,000 (2018: nil) were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 19).

Land use rights T AR

As at 31 December 2019, land use rights of RMB227,580,000
(2018: RMB226,058,000) were in Mainland China with lease
terms of 40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2019, no construction had started yet,
and no finance cost was capitalized as part of properties
under development (2018: nil) (Note 29).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

2018
—T-N\F
RMB’000
AREFT

3,473,769
338,350
1,399,173

5,211,292

BRABRAINATHEERN] HTFERES
A AR 14,913,453,000 0 ( — 8 — )\
AR#13,068,997,0007T) °

R-ZB—IE AEEAREEBRBHEOARE
8,957,000t ( —Z — )\ : AR 4,445,000
T0) c ZESHOAGARER ZEEKA ]
M (KIRE27) ©

R-ZE-hE+-A=+—80 REFEHA
AR#66,580,000C(=ZF—/\F : E)NTFE
EEEH - MEARNEBIGETEE 2 KT
& (PFEE19) ©

2018
—2-N\F
RMB’000
ARBTFIT

226,058

R-ZBE—hE+-A=+—8 EPEAKEH
+ s A A R # 227,580,000 7T (—Z— )\
£ AR#226,058,0007T) © FHEHR A40
2704 -

R-E-AF+-A=+—H ®mAKHKEHE
I HMEMBEER(CT-N\F: B)EXLR
BRAPYMEZ B (FFE29) -



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

Trade receivables FEURE 55818
Less: provision for impairment o RERE
Bills receivable FEUR IR FRIE

As at 31 December 2019, no trade receivables was due from
related parties (2018: RMB5,131,000) (Note 37).

The fair values of trade and bills receivables approximate
their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2019, no bills receivable was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings (2018: bills
receivable with a total net book amount of RMB97,526,000
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings)
(Note 19).

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90 days
to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days to its
customers in other countries. The ageing analysis of the trade
and bills receivables (including amounts due from related
parties of trading in nature) based on invoice date is as

follows:

Within 30 days 30HA

31 to 90 days 31£90H

91 to 180 days 91£E180H

181 days to 1 year 181HE1F

Over 1 year 15 E

Less: provision for impairment R ORERE

Trade and bills receivables — net B E 5 R EHBFIE — FR

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and bills receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT

787,107
(6,588)

780,519
1,003,255

1,783,774

RZE—hE+-A=+—8  HEEWEHE
FRESHE(ZZT—NF : AR¥ 5,131,000
7o) (BI3E37) ©

W E 5 M EEHIAZ AP EZIEREE ©

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—0  BIEEKER
BB - AMEAREERGRITIER 2K
m(ZZ2E-N\F: REFERFTARE
97,526,000 THYEWZ B FER - UEAXR
SEMGRITEE 2 ER M) (HFE19) -

AEERTHERBEAERP 2EEH KRS0
B MRTEMEREF ZEEH/120R
Ne BRESREEFRA(BREERERE
ZEET 2 FIR) REZAHZRE DT

2018
—ZE-N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT

1,099,220
592,707
82,290
11,414
4,731

1,790,362
(6,588)

1,783,774

HRAEEREREARLEF  HEKEIRERE
REEETHEERR °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the
Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

usD ETT

RMB AR

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) B (&l
Vietnam Dong (“VND") M s ([EEE])

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January ®n—H—A8

Accrual/(reversal) of provision for SHE(BE) EWE H K
impairment of trade receivables BB

At 31 December R+Z_A=+—H

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in net (accrual)/reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets in 2019 and 2018. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are written off when there
is no expectation of receiving additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

B E 5 FIE
AEBERAEEMBRELENLORELITR
AERHERER  RAERKEZKERE
HEERBREFERANTERES -

BHERKRESFERAEEMEERNEER
B - SNE R RN R AR B B R EE 3.1 o

FEWE 5 R EB SRR AT ERFHE

2018
ZT-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

863,614
849,057
59,966
17,725

1,790,362
FEUWE SRR R EREE BT
2018
—E2-N\F
RMB’000
AREFIT
7,141
(553)
6,588
ARG ERERRKBREN "S-
R=Z—NFEIAGHR) BOcREEZ

BEEBERFE - ERAAREERBEIREE -
TR AR P A0 BR B OB A M3

RHERH  ARBEEHNKAEERRBE
WE 5 ;EBEFRREE °



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

Value-added tax recoverable fERIZER
Prepayments for purchase of

raw materials

Prepaid expenses A
Prepaid income tax TERTETEHL
Deposits for operation BEES
Compensation receivables FEW R E S
Other receivables HAth e U AR 3K

The fair values of deposits and other receivables approximate
their carrying amounts.

Pledged bank deposits BHERRITIFER
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED
— Cash at bank and in hand —iRITERFERE

As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average effective
interest rate on pledged bank deposits and other deposits
was 3.2% (2018: 2.9%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, pledged bank deposits with a total
net book amount of RMB8,001,000 were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s bank borrowings (2018: RMB68,450,000)
(Note 19). Pledged bank deposits with a total net book
amount of RMB9,452,000 (2018: RMB76,569,000) are used
for issurance of letters of credit for purchase of raw materials,
with maturities of 90 days at inception (2018: 90 days).
Pledged bank deposits with a total net book amount of
RMB4,025,000 (2018: nil) were pledged as collateral for
utilities.

BEREMEEENFR

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
AREF T

363,802

401,836
51,418
9,878
12,082
27,235
1,648

867,899

BE M EMERRRN A FEZOERAE -

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

145,019

1,054,721
1,199,740

RZE—-hE+=-A=+—B 2ERETE
REREMERZ NEFEHEERINERESF3.2%
(ZZE—\F :2.9%) °

RZE-hE+-_A=+—8 REFEHAE
AR #8,001,000 THEEFRITHERCIEL
o UEAREEREETEEZRBR(Z
ZT— \F : AR#68,450,0007T) (FzE19) °
BREFEEL A ARBKI452000T (= — N
F: AR 76,569,0007T) H 2 IR 1TE K
AREZEHEAEREERME - 573 A 8
OB (=ZZ—N\%F:908) 7 - REFE
HAEAR®A4,02500c(ZE—\F:F)E
EIRITFROAED IR - MEAZ N RREZ
IR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are EHEMRITERARRS RRSZEWIRUAT
denominated in the following currencies: EHEHE -

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARETFIT

RMB AR 699,239

uUsD ETT 328,063

HKD BT 33,229

VND M A 129,696

European Dollar (‘EURO”) BT ([ BT )) 5,302

Others HAh, 4,211

1,199,740

Majority of the cash and cash equivalents are deposited with AEHRe MR EEMEFRFTBEARENES

banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of RITc MARBECEBRLBAHMEREA

the RMB denominated balances into other currencies and the K5 & S B AP B K BE 7838 <7 A B9 K B BT 7R
remittance of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the 1578 B IINE B il 2 5 B KR 28 631

rules and regulations relating to foreign exchange controls
promulgated by the Mainland China Government.

Number Ordinary
of shares shares
BHAEHE LB
(thousands) HKD’000
(Fh) FEITL
Authorised: JRIE
Ordinary shares of HKDO0.1 each BEROABLZER
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZE—NFRZZT-NF
+=-—A=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Number Ordinary Share
of shares shares premium Total
gnig 4= TR B RE Hat
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FR) AREFT ARYFT AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: BEBEITRAR
Ordinary shares of BROABIZER
HKDO.1 each
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\FxK
and 2019 —E-NF
+=-—A=+—H 915,000 96,709 433,777 530,486
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 7 April
2014, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
Share Option Scheme”), which will remain in force for a period
of 10 years up to April 2024. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Company’s directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to
any employee, director, supplier of goods or services,
customer, person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholder and adviser or consultant of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price of not less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of the offer of grant; or (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the
Group from time to time must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the ordinary share of the Company in issued from time to
time.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, share options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company were granted to two executive directors of the
Company on 23 March 2015. The subscription price is
HKD8.7 per share. 1,670,000 share options are exercisable
over the period from 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025,
1,670,000 share options are exercisable over the period from
1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 and 1,660,000 share
options are exercisable from 1 January 2018 to 22 March
2025. On 28 December 2015, share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 1,500,000 ordinary share of the Company
were granted to one executive director of the Company. The
subscription price is HKD5.7 per share. 300,000 share options
are exercisable over the period from 1 January 2017 to 27
December 2025, 300,000 share options are exercisable over
the period from 1 January 2018 to 27 December 2025,
300,000 share options are exercisable over the period from 1
January 2019 to 27 December 2025, 300,000 share options
are exercisable over the period from 1 January 2020 to 27
December 2025 and 300,000 share options are exercisable
over the period from 1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the above options in cash. No options
have been exercised since the date of grant to 31 December
2019.

BR-_Z—NENAELABBZRERE
CARR B — BB T B ([ AR
1) REE =T —POF A I+ +F RS0
BAEN - RIFERETS - AARESA 2
BiEREMAEES 25  ERRGHER -
BEFE - AASBEREMET  AEKEMREMNS
BEOEARETE BREMNEBEEMSGHRA
REEBRE  ARBARQBMRG - EEETE
RTIEEE  (\RNREBEHAPEBRINE
HIRERATHARDWTE (i) RBEER
HENRHITAERS BNBIAMEERER
F%I B AR D 39 (B ¢ R (i) B (D R E & ©
1BTHEZENRERENRHBRER -
FERB I B R AN E B R T b g
MEREETBILA TR R L B 1T E BRI T
Brim A TETHRMOEE S TEBBAA
A)NE B 31T L AL A 30% ©

il

Bt

REERESSE AR2RKR_ZE—RF=A
“tZHRAMZRTEERE A LURE
5,000,000 & 2N 2 &) i % B BE AR A - REB(E
AEFHE8.78 7T © 1,670,000 BRRERI N T
—RNFE—A—BE-_ZEZ-_RAF=A=-+_-AH
17 : 1,670,000 EREAI N T —EF
—A—HE_FE_RAF=A-_+_-_HH#METT
f# : 11,660,000 ERETR =T — N\F—
A—BE-—ZE-_AF=A-+_-_BHRBTE -
KRR _E—RAF+-_A-+/\BE—ZH
TEERHA HATRH 1,500,000 B A A7) X
BRHOERE RBEASRSTE T
300,000 BB EIN =—"ZE—+F—HA—HB=Z
—E-_AFt+ A=t tHBEBEITE:
300,000 BRETNR-_E—NE—F—BF
—TE-_ARAF+ AT tEtHBEBITE:
300,000 BBREIR -_Z—ALE—A—8B=
—E-_ARAFt+_A-t+tHHEBEITE:
300,000 sl RN _TF—HA—H=:
—E_AFt+-_A=-t+tEtHBEETE K
300,000 BEREINR-_E-_—F—HA—HB=F
“E-AFt+ A+t BERETE - AEE
WEEAERHEETETUNRESELSEE kg
B ARt AP E_—_E-NE+-_A=+—
B - BHEERR T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T--NGF+-_A=t—HBLEE

206

The fair value of options granted on 23 March 2015 was
determined using the Binomial Option-Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model included the share price of
HKD8.7 per share at the grant date, exercise price shown
above, expected annual risk-free interest rate of 1.582%,
expected dividend yield of 1.45% and volatility of 49.80%. The
total fair value of these options at grant date was
RMB17,154,000 and no expenses was charged to
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: nil).

The fair value of options granted on 28 December 2015 was
determined using the Binomial Option-Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model included the share price of
HKD5.7 per share at the grant date, exercise price shown
above, expected annual risk-free interest rate of 1.623%,
expected dividend yield of 3.42% and volatility of 50.94%. The
total fair value of these options was RMB3,171,000 and
RMB298,000 was charged for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB500,000).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

RZE—AF=A=-t+=BRLZEREZA
FEDEB-EAPETERAET - ZER
ZERGABBERERRH B ZRESRKS.7
B LT EE BHFEERRF X
1.582% - T8 HA A% B K 1.45% N R 18 49.80% o
WEBREASD AR AFEREAARE
17,154,000 ¢ * MW ERSIREE T —LF
+ A=t BLFEZTHAINR(ZZ
—N\F )

RoE—RE+-A=-+)\BEH 2 EREY
AFEDEA-EARECEENETE - ZE
AZERBASELEAREBHZREGR
57870 LiliiT{E(E BHFEERKRFIX
1.623% - 8 B A% B 2K 3.42% K2 % 18 50.94% ©
I EBE AT ELRE A ARE3,171,000
T MREE_TE—NhEF+_A=+—HLF
ERIHIB ARBE 298,000 (ZE—N\F : AR
#500,000 7T) °



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Share- Translation

based with non-

Capital compensation  Statutory Revaluation  Translation  controlling
reserve! reserve  reservest reserve reserve interests Total

NRGBAER E 3]

ARREY  RRREG  LEREY  EAREG  EXRR  ERER it
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBUOO
ARBTL  ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETZ

At1 January 2018 R=E-\F-R—H 162,041 20,498 379,175 69,441 (14,781) - 616,374
Transfer to statutory reserves EAZAF = = 94,873 = = = 94,873
Employee shareoption ~ [EEBRIE: 2
scheme (Note 17) (Wi 17) - 500 - - - = 500
Currency translation ERREES
differences - - - - 5,180 - 5,180
Transfer from revaluation  FEFEFNHERER
reserve {o retained eamings  EEEAZRBET
for buildings revaluation
— gross — a5 - - - (6,362) = = (6,362)
—deferred income tax ~~ — BEEFHEHR
(Note 23) (H#23) - - = 2,328 = = 2,328
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=1+-H 162,041 20,998 474,048 65,407 (9,601) - 712,893

At1 January 2019 RZE-NE-f-A
Transfer to statutory reserves EEZEF i
Employee share option (S EERIE: 2

scheme (Note 17) (Ht17)
Currency translation SHAEEE
differences
Surplus on revaluationof BT ERERH
buildings
— ross — 8
— deferred income tax — BRMER
(Note 23) (Hs223)

Transfer from revaluation ~ FLEFEM(EEMER
reserve to retained eamings  FEEETREET
for buildings revaluation

— gross — 88
— deferred income tax — REMEH
(Note 23) (Hiit23)
Translation with Jeim RS E i

non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-R=+-R
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Notes:

(®

(ii)

The capital reserve represents the difference between
the amount of share capital issued and the net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired under a group
reorganisation in 2004.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to
statutory reserves, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. Such transfer is not
required when the amount of the statutory reserve
reaches 50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’
registered capital.

Statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses
of the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the
corresponding subsidiaries’ production operations, or to
increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries.
Upon approval by resolutions of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings, the
corresponding subsidiaries may convert their statutory
reserves into registered capital and issue bonus capital
to existing owners in proportion to their existing
ownership structure.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

At -

(i)

ARFERERTRABEEN _—ZTNH
FEESATRENBARNEEFEN
ER o

RIEPBEABERMB RO AAREHEH
RERIREEZWBRARARESEE
EEMER L) RE—BOBRBRE
MREHBEFEEBR) DEERHB - M
EERENSHESERBNEARZME
AH)50% - BT VEH BLBGK

EEREER ARKHEAREME R RS
18 - EFTARRIM B & R AL & S A
B RRRA - ERSHEENEARR
RINBRAE LARER BB - AR E
RERNA AR E R EMER
WAZR B R AT PRI E B TAIAL -



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

RMB’000
ARBTFIT
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-NF—H—H 4,763,267
Profit for the year FEHF 1,163,092
Transfer from revaluation reserve to HEGREEREREHEN
retained earnings
— gross — @B 6,362
— deferred income tax (Note 23) — BIEFTIS R (F15%23) (2,328)
5,930,393
Dividend relating to 2017 “E—tFIEER (156,160)
Dividend relating to 2018 —FE-NFZRE (184,102)
Transfer to statutory reserves [0 el (94,873)
At 31 December 2018 R_ZB—\F+_A=+—H 5,495,258
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 5,495,258
Profit for the year FE%F 883,726
Transfer from revaluation reserve to HREGHREERERBET
retained earnings
— gross — 1% 6,470
— deferred income tax (Note 23) — REFTISTL (AL 23) (2,212)
6,383,242
Dividend relating to 2018 ZE-N\F2RE (158,936)
Dividend relating to 2019 —E-NFEZRE (148,230)
Transfer to statutory reserves EEREETRE (38,125)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—hF+_A=+—8H 6,037,951
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Current
Unsecured bank borrowings
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a))
Other bank borrowings (Note (b))

Non-current
Unsecured bank borrowings
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a))
Other bank borrowings (Note (b))

Total borrowings

Notes:

B8
EIRMRITRE
BERRITEER (M (a)
HiRITIEE (K3 (b))

a2

FFENSY
ERMIRITRE
BEMRTEE (HiE @)
HiRITIEE (K3 (b))

of
I
N
CR
o

(a) Asat31 December 2019, bank borrowings of RMB520,797,000 (a)
(2018: RMB877,404,000) were secured by the pledge of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment with a net book amount
of approximately RMB709,529,000 (2018: RMB834,894,000)
(Note 7); pledged bank deposits with a net book amount of
RMB8,001,000 (2018: RMB68,450,000) (Note 15); and
inventories with a net book amount of RMB66,580,000 (2018:

nil) (Note 12).

In addition, bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 were
also pledged by bills receivable with net book amount of

RMB97,526,000 (Note 13).

(b) Other bank borrowings of RMB6,066,926,000 (2018: (b)
RMB4,649,427,000) were secured by cross corporate
guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries of the Group as at

31 December 2019.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

436,273
414,138
1,402,136

2,252,547

1,164,630
463,266
3,247,291

4,875,187

7,127,734

R-ZZE—-AE+_A=+—HB' AR
520,797,00070(=F—N\F : AR%877,404,000
T RRITEBEAAESEI L T SEEER : K
EFEL B AR 709,529,000 7T (ZZF— /\F :
AR 834,894,000t ) By % - M5 &t (KT
7)) BREFEAARYS,001,000T(=ZF—/\
4 1 68,450,000) A & K #8 4R 17 17 3 (B 5£15)
5 % E A A R #66,580,000 0 ( =& — )\ :
) NFER (ME12) -

N RZB-NF+-A=+—HZRITEE
TRABRTEDH E 23 AR ¥ 97,526,000 T ) & 45
BRAVEHRIR (PHRE13)

HaRITIEEUASEE THEARREMNR =
T-NF+_A=+—"BHBAARE
6,066,926,0007t( = T — /L F: AR ¥
4,649,427,000 7T.) ) 3X XN B FEREHE A -



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGE+-_A=1+—BLEE

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

RMB AR
HKD BT
UsD =

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum at
year end are as follows:

Bank borrowings 8175 &

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 16K
Between 1 and 2 years 122F
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The Group has undrawn floating rates borrowing facilities of
approximately RMB4,400,070,000 (2018: RMB2,967,823,000)
which will be expired within one year. These facilities are
subject to review at various dates during 2020.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the 2019 and 2018 reporting period.

EENREERATERE

2018
—N\F
RMB’000
ARETT
1,860,122
3,911,405
1,356,207
7,127,734
RELEBINEFHERFEFERNT
2018
—\F
usD RMB HKD
ZETT AR BT
3.7% 4.5% 3.3%

R=B—NFT=A=+—0  AEBEHEL
BT -

2018
T—\F
RMB’000
ARETT

2,252,547

2,455,826
2,419,361

7,127,734

BRTR FEMTRE  REER  BEZ
N EEEREERS

REBMABAZ ZHEREEREODARKE
4,400,070,000T( — & — )\ F: AR
2,967,823,00070) B —F NEIH - ZE/ME
ER_ZE-ZTFNE A HESEE -

REZFB-NAFER_FT—/\FREHHE - ~E£EH
B EEERE MR
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Assets: BEE

Forward foreign exchange contracts

(Note (a))

Cross currency swap contracts (Note (b))
Cotton future contracts (Note (c))

Liabilities: BE:
Forward foreign exchange contracts REAINES XY (M5E (a))
(Note (a))

Cross currency swap contracts (Note (b))
Cotton future contracts (Note (c))

Non-hedging derivatives are classified as a current asset or
liability.

Notes:

(a)

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December
2019 comprised nineteen contracts with notional principal
amounts totalling RMB4,756,373,000 (2018: thirty-one
contracts with notional principal amounts totalling
RMB5,292,117,000).

The cross currency swap contracts as at 31 December 2019
comprised fifty-one contracts with notional principal amounts
totalling RMB9,658,644,000 (2018: twenty-six contracts with
notional principal amounts totalling RMB4,622,139,000).

The cotton future contract as at 31 December 2019 comprised
five contracts with notional principal amount of USD35,583,000
(2018: eleven contracts with notional principal amounts totalling
USD24,263,000).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

EHISNES X (it (a))

R EWEME A (HaE (b))
IRIEEE & %) (HaE (c)

KX BG4 (15 (b))
RIEEE &% (Hat (c)

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

125,609
17,946
1,665

145,220

18,562
68,235
2,671

89,468

FEHITETRADBARBDEERERE

Bt -

(a)

(b)

R-ZT—hEFE+-_A=+—8 2HINESHE
BEtAmEed BE2X2BLTAARE
4,756,373,000 L(—Z—N\F : =+ —HAH -
HEASBEET BARYS5,292,117,000 7T) °

RZBE-NF+ZA=+—8 AXEHiEHE
HERRAT—0NEK  ZELASHEMTR/ARE
9,658,644,000 7T (—F—N\F: —+RMHEH
EBERSEATRARK4,622,139,0007T) °

RZZE-AF+ZA=+—8 WEHEEHE
BRMEK  ZHEARLFAE/R35,5683,000% T

—E-N\F DA BEAEREFR
24,263,000 7T) °



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-T-NGF+-_A=t—BLEE

The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the lessor in
the event of default of the lease liabilities by the Group.

Finance lease obligations were reclassified to lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 in the process of adopting the new leasing
standard. See Note 2.2 for further information about the
change in accounting policy for leases.

Gross finance lease liabilities BEREAERE
— minimum lease payments — XEEERNK
No later than 1 year 1FR
Later than 1 year and no later 1FRESFN
than 5 years
Less: future finance charges on B BMEREZARBER

finance leases

The present value of finance lease BMEHEAGBCRENT :
liabilities is as follows:

No later than 1 year 1FER

Later than 1 year and no later 1FEESFA

than 5 years

HWAKEBRAERE - HEEEZEE
SR AN o

ERAMBEERENRER  EHEAER
T NF—A—BHE¥F»EAEHEAE A
HHRESTRREHNE—FSER  F25W
2.2

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
AREF T

885

F

(54)

831

831

831
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No later than 1 year —FNKN
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —f %4 EZ RFER

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBF T

29,329
130,678

Less: future finance charges on W REAERNERERZRKBEEA

long-term payables

The present value of long-term payables KHIEMNBRRZIBEMT -

is as follows:
No later than 1 year —F R
Later than 1 year and no later —FRERFR

than 5 years

As at 31 December 2019, included in the long-term payables
were amounts due to third parties for purchasing machinery
and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB238,784,000
(2018: RMB145,188,000).

Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from long-term
payables are set out in Note 3.1.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

(14,819)

145,188

22,295

122,893
145,188

MR-ZE—hE+=-B=+—8 " JIARBEN
AR RBERBERE IR EENE=ZFR
H{EAARK238,784,0007T (= —\F : A
R #145,188,000 7T) °

ERAEE R K IENERTERNRBRES
ThE A KIRE3. »



For the year ended 31 December 2019
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The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered

after more than 12 months

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered

within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities:

— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled

after more than 12 months

— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled

within 12 months

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during

the year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

At 1 January 2018

Charged to the consolidated

income statement

At 31 December 2018

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(Note 35)

Credited/(charged) to the

consolidated income
statement

At 31 December 2019

BEHBEERNEEREEBGE 2 MAT ¢

2018
—N\EF
RMB’000
ARBFT
FEETR I A E -
— B 128 A& E Z FEE
HIBEE 25,862
— E12@ A Rk E 2 EE
HIBEE 70,529
96,391
FEEFHIBAE -
— BiB12E A BN 2R
MIERE (155,824)
— E12AA AR ZEE
MIEAE (5,866)
(161,690)
RERNBECEHBEEERBEESHOT
RIEFT SR EE ¢
Temporary
Tax losses differences Total
BEER HERER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T ARBTF T
RZZE—-—N\F—HF—H 52,152 55,406 107,558
RirE R mTx Mk
(9,795) (1,372) (11,167)
RZZE—N\F
+=—A=+—8H 42,357 54,034 96,391
WEgRKT B A=) (KaF35)
RirelERER
(30B%)
RZZT—NF
+fﬂ_+ S|
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BIEFSTHALRE

Withholding

tax relating to

unremitted

Revaluation earnings of
of buildings subsidiaries Total

ERNEAR

RER
BRTEMR BRORIB -
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETT ARETT
26,827 79,848 149,172
(2,328) 1,568 (3,957)
- - 16,475
24,499 81,416 161,690

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Fair value
adjustments on
assets relating
to business
combinations
BRER
EHEEY
AVERE
RMB’000
ARETFIL
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\$—H—H 42,497
Charge/(credit) ng/ (&)
— to consolidated income —MralkaE
statement (3,197)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AR 16,475
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+_A=t—H 55,775
Charge/(credit) ng/ (&)
— to other comprehensive —REM2EkRE
income
— to consolidated income — A ER
statement
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35)  URE&HIB A & (A1 35)

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+-A=1+-H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the Group has recognised the
deferred income tax assets for all tax loss carry-forwards.

Deferred income tax of RMB2,212,000 (2018: RMB2,328,000)
was transferred from other reserves to retained earnings. This
represents deferred tax on the difference between the actual
depreciation on buildings and the equivalent depreciation
based on the historical cost of buildings.

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB113,601,000 (2018:
RMB81,416,000) have been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payables on the earnings of subsidiaries
when remitted to the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries is RMB2,272,020,000
(2018: RMB1,628,320,000). There are no unremitted earnings
with no deferred tax liabilities recognised (2018: nil).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

REFESREED S 2 FIBERER - f
LAB A REB B B 1R 2 FER TS EIR G RETHIA
FMEABR RZTE-hLFER_ZT—-N\F+=A
=t+—8B AEBERAELE BB ER
RIELFTSTREE -

AR #2212000c( — T — \F: AR
2,328,000 7T ) RYIEE FT1S B2 T A E 4ib (o 5 o ¢
EREEF - WREREFHERITELREE
FHESKATENERITE 2 BN ZBNE
MERIE o

AEBERHBAREAKRRRNEF ENTE
MR ERIEEMEH A E AR 113,601,000
T(ZE—\F : AE¥81,416,0007T) - A=
E-NE+-A=+—0 HBRAFTKREMNR
MAANRE2272020,000T(=—ZE—\F : A
R #1,628,320,000 7T ) ° I % KRR IELEF
BRBENRENER(ZZ—N\F: &)
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Trade payables FETE 5 5/18
Bills payable JET BB IR

As at 31 December 2019, included in trade payables were
amounts due to related parties of RMB13,975,000 (2018:
RMB5,871,000) (Note 37).

The fair values of trade and bills payables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables (including
amounts due to related parties of trading in nature) based on
invoice date is as follows:

Within 90 days 90 HA

91 to 180 days 91HZE180H
181 days to 1 year 181 HE1F
Over 1 year 1FE

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT

693,210
2,829,504

3,622,714

RZZE—NEF+-_A=+—H EBHESHA
FEESRERNBEITNRBERETARE
13,975,000t ( —ZF— )\ F : AR% 5,871,000
TC) (FIEE37) ©

RNESREBEFIBZ A VERIERAE -

RBNBEZEREZEFR(BREEAENE S
B 2R REZAMZRiRONMT

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

2,356,142
1,155,029
8,003
3,540

3,622,714
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Trade and bills payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

ENE 5 MEBRFIBRATERE

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARMTFT

UsD ET 3,038,529

RMB AR 195,277

VND WA 143,986

Mexican Peso BEFHER =

HKD BT 144,702

EURO B TT 220

3,522,714

2018

—FE-N\F

RMB’000

AREFT

Accrued wages and salaries FEET T & I % B 281,152
Payables for purchase of property, BEWHE  BERREZEAERER

plant and equipment 208,821

Accrual of operating expenses JERHEE R 142,682

Tax payables other than enterprise FERTTRIE (R EPRISTRSN)

income tax 32,907

Interest payable FERTAIE 11,169

Other payables HAth FE AT BR K 50,488

727,219

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s accruals and other payables
approximate their fair values.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

RoP-AF+-A=+—AR-F—N\&
+=A=+—R - ARBGHEREDRIMLE
3R 3RO BR T SR L A B4R -
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Other income
Subsidy income (a)

Other gains/(losses) — net
Gains on acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries
Gains on disposal of joint-ventures
Derivative financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss:
— Realised losses
— Unrealised profits/(losses)
Net foreign exchange losses (Note 30)
Others

Total other profits/(losses) — net

HAsdg A

=L ONE))

Hebless, (B18) — %%

Yo B b B 1 B Mz (a2 35)

HEMB ARz e
HESE DR e
B E ARG Z
TESRmTA :
—EERER
— RBRHEM(BE)
bE 5 51803 58 (/2 30)
Hity

HAg A, (B18) %8 — F8

(@) The subsidy income were mainly related to incentives (a)
for development in Xinjiang, Jiangsu, Shandong,
Zhejiang and Shanghai of Mainland China provided by
municipal governments based on the amounts of value
added tax and income tax paid. The Group has received
all the subsidy income and there was no future
obligation related to these subsidy income.

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
AREF T

214,198

7,679
200

(3,601)

(12,992)

(65,925)
15,686

(58,953)

AR AETZRRE N B RFEHE -
LER - IWR IR EBBERAESZ
BT BT RIEC (G EN LS RS
RHZEE - AEECD RN B K
A AR A EBABEZEBIEBAZRK
BfE-
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Raw materials and consumables used

Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress

Employment benefit expenses (Note 28)

Depreciation and amortisation

(Note 6, Note 7, Note 8 and Note 9)

Losses on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (Note 34)

Office expenses

Utilities

Transportation costs

Auditor’s remuneration

— Annual audit services

— Non-audit services

Rental expenses for buildings and
machinery (Note 8)

Net accrual of provision for decline in
the value of inventories (Note 12)

Other expenses

FER M R RO FER
RRRRERSFEED

EERMA (KaF28)
e ks
(Hist6 - Bizt7 - MisE8 KKt 9)
HEDE  BERREEER
(H1:+34)
AR
EpAPST YS!
BRI
=B BN &
— FEEZRTE
— BRI
BFEREEES A (F:E8)

FERERE TR (ME12)
HAnFIx

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution $5& A7 - $56 K& 2 B X

costs and general and administrative

expenses

AR —RR R AT 2 45

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBF T

13,068,997

(506,319)
2,193,451

753,202
2,618
99,190
1,036,364
386,939

4,000
1,430

62,038

4,445
309,678

17,416,033
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2018

—FE-N\F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - HMRED 1,954,530
Pension costs — defined contribution BIREHRA — R ERRETE

plans (Note (a)) (K17t (a) 132,106

Other welfare benefits (Note (b)) H A &R (M7 (b)) 55,125

Other employment benefits HiniE 817 51,690

2,193,451

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group has participated in state-sponsored
defined contribution retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group and the eligible
employees are required to contribute 14% to 22% and
7% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’ basic salary
(subject to a cap) at rates as stipulated by the relevant
municipal governments. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group contributed approximately RMB81,736,000
(2018: RMB73,253,000) to the aforesaid state-
sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the
Group contributes to stated-sponsored employees’
social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam.
The Group contributes to the scheme at a rate of 20%
of the employee’s salary. The stated-sponsored social
insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
obligations payable to retired employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group contributed
approximately RMB64,715,000 (2018: RMB56,819,000)
to the aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance
scheme.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in other countries
and regions, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group contributed approximately RMB8,957,000
(2018: RMB2,034,000) to the social insurance scheme
of those countries and regions.

REBEEAEPEAERELERRE
B R EEREBARAE - AEBEAEE
WEEBEDAMEEEATFEHN14%E
22% R 7%E 8% EH R (FTH LR -
LR BT EATRE © Rt EFEH
BN REBHETMRERERRE S H
SRR EEF B ABIETAAE- - R
KEEMAAERKESZIHBHBERER
BREHEFEE - REZE-_T—hhFE+=
A=Z+—HBLFE A&EER ERBER
EHERRKRFEDHHEHROARE
81,736,000t( =T — NF: AR ¥
73,253,000 7T) °

RIBEERAUEERRTE  AEEE A
HBmEEAERENIEE LSRR
EERER - AEBREEHFEN
20% A& TSR - RINEBMWATA X
H R ERE LSRG BIEE -
REE-_Z—hhEF+-_A=+—"HItF
B AEERRERENEERE
SFEIME O AR B64,715000C( ==
—N\FE : AR#¥56,819,0007C) °

BIEE MBI i@ AR B SOER IR TE
AEBREZE-_ZT—hAhE+_A=1+—
BLEFERZEERRIBEZ LS EF
sFEH RN AR S957,000L( —F
—)\%F : AR¥2,034,0007T) °
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All of the Group’s employees in Mainland China
participate in employee social security plans, including
medical, housing and other welfare benefits, organised
and administered by governmental authorities. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
contributed approximately RMB67,776,000 (2018:
RMB55,125,000) to these plans and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of these plans.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2018: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2018: two) individual are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances
Bonuses

Interest expenses

— borrowings

— long term payables

— lease liabilities (Note 8)
— finance lease obligations

Net exchange losses on financing
activities (Note 30)

Finance costs

Finance income — interest income on
bank deposits

Net finance costs

BEARF & Mo2ph
14T

MEFX

—f&E

— R ERSK
—HERE (HiF8)
— BMEHEEAE

BMERBASELEREER
(H1zE30)
IR dit

TGN — RITERABUA

B8 R
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AEBRPBERNENMEREEHSEHE
BHeREFE - ZsHE 235 HBUTE
BEINETNERE EERHEMET -
REBEE-T—hhF+-A=+—HLF
B AEEGRLERFEHFOARE
67,776,000t ( — T — NF: AR
55,125,000 70) R A EEZERFNE
BRI mE— P BT -

REAFE AEELUSGEHMALHE
RO (ZE-N\F: =) REF H
B & OB FE 40 B9 2 AT R S BR © JE A T 8R
TR (ZF-N\F: M) ALz
W

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARETFT

1,006
2,564

3,570

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREFIT

346,813

250

347,063

164,800

511,863

(18,371)

493,492
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The exchange differences included in the consolidated RiFeWERTAZEL ZHEAEATIER ¢
income statement are as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR®TT
Finance costs (Note 29) WsER (Kit29) 164,800
Other losses — net (Note 26) HAEsiE — S8R (Wit 26) 65,925
Net foreign exchange losses b 5B 18 55 230,725
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated PRSI RINB AR mT
income statement represents:
2018
—FE-N\F
RMB’000
AREFT
Current tax on profits for the year FE w2 BNERRE 18 262,064
Adjustment in respect of prior years BEFERE (13,317)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) RIEFTS T (H7223) 7,210
255,957
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Subsidiaries established in Hong Kong are subject to
profits tax at rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%).

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
established in Mainland China are required to determine
and pay the EIT in accordance with the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law”) as
approved by the National People’s congress on 16
March 2007 and Detailed Implementations Regulations
of the New CIT Law (the “DIR”) as approved by the
State Council on 6 December 2007. According to the
New CIT Law and DIR, subsidiaries established in
Mainland China are subject to EIT at rate of 25% during
the year (2018: 25%).

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Mainland
China, four subsidiaries established in Jiangsu, one
subsidiary established in Xinjiang and two subsidiaries
established in Guangdong respectively are entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% during the year (2018: one
subsidiary established in Jiangsu, one subsidiary
established in Xinjiang and two subsidiaries established
in Guangdong respectively are entitled to a preferential
tax rate at 15%). Such preferential tax treatments
require annual assessment on meeting the stipulated
conditions and re-application to maintain the lower tax
rate status every few years.

The income tax for the major subsidiaries in Vietnam
are as below:

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Vietnam,
Texhong Renze Textile Joint Stock Company
established in Vietnam in 2006 should separately
calculate income tax on its initial supplementary
investments. The initial investment of the subsidiary is
entitled to three years’ exemption from income taxes
followed by seven years of a 50% tax reduction and is
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for 12
years. The first supplementary investment of the
subsidiary is entitled to three years’ exemption from
income taxes followed by five years of a 50% tax
reduction based on the income tax rate of 20% (2018:
20%). The second supplementary investment of the
subsidiary is entitled to two years’ exemption from
income taxes followed by four years of a 50% tax
reduction based on the income tax rate of 20% (2018:
20%).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

RRABREBRILZHBRQAER
16.5% (—Z— \fF : 16.5%) Z Tt R4
FIEH -

“EENF—A—HR RPBEKE
M ZzMBAR  BRBEEZBEARKRR
ARER-_ZBET+F=A+BRBZ+H
BE¥MERE(THOEMERED
MEKRER-_ZZLF+ - ANABHiE
2 ERMBBIAEHE AR ([EH)
EHAA ) BELHBMSERMEH -
RIEBEFEEMBEE IR E R
R B R RER S 2 B A RN FENER
MEEMBR MEAE25%(ZF— )\
F 1 25%) o

RPBEAEAREBSBIE - MKRAET
BB LR —REHBKILA
P /B8 2 B K M 3R A R SR AK AL Y BT /B A B
RENBERZE1S%NNEERE(ZF
—N\F —RETEHKIZONERF -
—RIEFBA B D B MR &
RRZWKBRBREEZTE15%NES
BEK) o LB W EBBOR B R F G
ERTARERN L ASBREFEN
FRER AT BRI TR K -

EHENEEMB AR ZAFHAT

SHEMRBRERIE  RILIC 24
BIRDARATIN _EZNEEBEK
N AMENMSHETIREBYTEMNE
o ZMIB RNV L RE B EREFT
BH=F HELFRERRRELE
B OUVEEZZEEMESRBEERA5%E
+oF - ZMBRARMNEBEMTIRES
BREEHR=_F  HERAFRIE20%
(ZZ—N\F : 20%) NPT SRR R & -
AIEHRERREER - ZMBRRMNE=
BRI EERCHNTERME &
BINERE20% (T —)\F : 20%) K
FRERmER TSR REER -
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As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Vietnam,
Texhong Yinlong Technology Ltd., Texhong Galaxy
Technology Limited, Texhong Winnitex Vietnam Limited
and Texhong United Technology Vietham Company
Limited established in Vietham in 2014, 2016 and 2018,
respectively are entitled to four years’ exemption for
income taxes followed by nine years of a 50% tax
reduction, commencing from the first profitable year
after offsetting the losses carried forward from the
previous years, and are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 10% for 15 years, commencing from the first
year generating income from the operation.

The applicable tax rates for all subsidiaries in Vietnam
range from nil to 20% during the year (2018: nil to 20%).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands were incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts or the Business Companies
Acts, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly,
are exempted from payment of British Virgin Islands
income tax.

The Company’s subsidiary established in Macao is
subject to income tax rate of 12% (2018: 12%). No
provision for Macao profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Macao during the year (2018: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in Uruguay is
subject to income tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%). No
provision for Uruguay profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Uruguay during the year (2018: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in Turkey is
subject to income tax at the rate of 22% (2018: 22%).
No provision for Turkey profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Turkey during the year (2018: nil).

SHEORERERIE R=F—ND
F T RNER_T-N\FHRER
FIRK M HREL SR BERI AR A R] « K4
AR ARAR KU EXBEAR
DEIRKIBAREBEAER AR A #E
RIEEBTEFELENEBEEEER
FER  REMEHRNE  HgAF8
AERRREER  WEERESEE
WAZEEFEREZERMBHRB X
10%ZE+HF o

FR - EMERAERBRRMNERT
ENTFTE0%(ZF-N\F: TE
20%) °

ARARREASHERARDERHAERS
AR AERRBERAR - HitESR
BREREMEH

ZA/NCISES ) o=zl v i) = U]
TR E R B LB S BN X R ADASK
—EEMEFHERARPAEMKL - Bt
KRHRBELEBFIEH

RRBIRBFIR 2 M B A RIZEKZ 12%
(ZZE—N\F : 12%) 2 TR BB FEH -
AR AEBERNF AR EERMIEE K
RPN E R BOR T o MU TR PR
SBREEBB(ZE—N\F:T)-

ARABRNSRENLZHERRAR
25% ( —F— )\ : 25%) 2 T R @A
B MERSNENSHZEE -
RAAREERFALENRSREELERK
ERRRBEMN(ZE—N\F &) -

ARAREEERZ ZHERRER
22% (=T — )\ : 22%) 2 TR RSP
B AR AEERFARBEELTER
EARNTEERBUERBEF - #U5
B L HEEMSRIELBEF(ZF N
F:F)
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The Company’s subsidiary in Cambodia acquired in
2017 is subject to income tax at the rate of 20% (2018:
20%). No provision for Cambodia profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profit arising in
or derived from the subsidiary during the year (2018:
nil).

The Company’s subsidiaries in Nicaragua acquired and
established in 2017 and 2018 respectively are subject to
income tax at the rate of 30% (2018: 30%). As approved
by relevant tax bureau in Nicaragua, the subsidiaries
are entitled to exemption from profits tax during the year
(2018: exempted).

The Company’s subsidiaries in Samoa acquired in 2017
are exempted from profits tax during the year (2018:
exempted).

The Company’s subsidiaries in the USA acquired in
2018 are subject to income tax rate within the range
from 27.5% to 30% during the year (2018: 27.5% to
30%).

The Company’s subsidiaries established in Mexico are
subject to income tax at the rate of 30% (2018: 30%).

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities, as follows:

Profit before income tax, after
excluding share of profits of
investments accounted for using
the equity method

BR P 1S A A g 1) (REHIBR FE 48 A
AR IR EEH)

ARAR T —tFERBEEEZH
BABIZAEZ20% 2 R EHMNAEHR(Z
T—\F : 20%) - AR AEEF AL E
mRZMT B A REERITERERTUEN
WHERRBENSRIEL BB/ (=F
— N\ ) e

ARBR-_ZF—EFER_FT-N\FEE
Anhz UK B8 B A S22 [ B & B 22 30%
ZHREENAEGER(ZF - NF:
30%) ° RE NN MA BREBIA » %
EM B RN FABEREBNMER (=
T—)\F:#HR) -

ARBR T —FHEEED KRB M
BRRANFARRBENNEHR(ZT—N
Fo#R) -

ER- ARBTR T NFEEBEFFFIK
BB ARAENF27.5%E30% 2
FRIBRMREF (T — N\F : 2715% %
30%) °

ARARERBATFTKIZHE A RBE
0% ZMEBMNAER(ZE—NF:
30%) °

AR ER B B P A5 15 A ) 0 B SR B AR B E
ARGE EREN N INE IR ERAE
ZERETEIR - ZR2WT

2018
—T-N\F

RMB’000
AREFT

1,401,982

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates  ZEBAREEN B AR 2 @55z

applicable to profits of the respective  E i Rt & 7§18

subsidiaries
Effect of tax exemption RS- 7%
Expenses not deductible for A% 2

tax purposes
Adjustment in respect of prior years B FEEFHE

Withholding tax relating to unremitted 7 B8t B A &1k FE {2 K| &9

earnings of subsidiaries TR
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344,149
(78,385)

1,942
(13,317)

1,568

255,957
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The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.3%
(2018: 24.5%).

10% withholding income tax is generally imposed on
dividends relating to any profits earned in PRC
commencing from 2008 to foreign investors, while for
some PRC entities held by companies incorporated in
certain places, including Hong Kong and Singapore,
preferential tax rate of 5% will be applied if such
companies are the beneficial owner of over 25% of
these PRC entities according to PRC tax regulations.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (RMB’000) (AR#FT)

Weighted average number of ordinary 2277 & @ A% hniEE 15 £

shares in issue (thousands) (LAF&F)
Basic earnings per share BREREF
(RMB per share) (BRAR%T)

Z/NIE 2SN il

BEAMNMNETEIREF223% (ZF—N
£ 1 24.5%) o

TECEMEHREFEINEERD IR
ZRNFR 2 ERBMOFBAORE —R
BI10% FBIRFIEH - MELE TR (2
BEB LI EMKLZ ARIFFA
MPEERMNS  MzEQERED
Z A IGD R % B B BB B 25% HE
B BBHEBA - BIZBE%HEERE

FRERBMARRRGEE ARIEET
BR CAF B 317 F B2 hnAE T BiET
o

2018
—F-N\F

1,163,092

915,000

1.27
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Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. For the Company’s share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined
as the average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

Profit attributable to owners of the NATEE ANEE &R
Company (RMB’000) (AR#FT)
Weighted average number of ERITEERMETIIH
ordinary shares in issue (K F&t)
(thousands)
Adjustments for: R
— Share options (thousands) — BERREE (LA F5F)

Weighted average number of

S BN 2 TR

ordinary shares for diluted I E (A FET)
earnings per share (thousands)

Diluted earnings per share BikEERF
(RMB per share) (BIRAR%T)

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

FREERNTEBABRRITHEINNE
BRINEFOHEE - ARKRMAE RS
BRE BT ERRESER B ARF
ZBBREMS  AARERERITEE
PAEMI 2 R 2B E - SHEERZ
ANHE(BERERRRN 2 FIEOFET
B)WBNRNEE - Ll EMS 2
BB BEREBRERTENERLT
EETHRMBALE -

2018
—ET—N\F

1,163,092

915,000

1,799

916,799

1.27
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The dividend paid in 2019 were RMB307,166,000 (2018: RZE-—NFEITHRESEAARE
RMB340,262,000), being HKDO0.38 per ordinary share (2018: 307,166,000c( = & — J\ F: AR %

HKDO0.44 per ordinary share).

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018 of HKDO0.20
(2017: HKDO0.21) per ordinary share

Interim dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 of HKDO0.18
(2018: HKDO0.23) per ordinary share

340,262,0007T) * B EBAR0.38BITL(=F
—\F : FREBROA4ETT) °

2018
—E—N\EF
RMB’000
ARBTFT

BT/ \F+-_A=+—H

LEFE KRR B R RAR

0208 L (ZE—+t%F:

0.21%7T) 156,160
HE-_ZE—hF+=-_A=1+—H

IEFEH R B SR T AR

018 L(Z&E—\F :

0.23%7) 184,102

340,262

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—RHLEFEZHEK

December 2019 of HKDO0.15 (2018: HKDO0.20) per ordinary KRB AERLEAER0ASEIT(ZE—/N\F

share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB122,949,000 0.20/%870) - B AL E AR 122,949,000

(2018: RMB160,345,000) is to be presented for approval at TT(ZZF—)\F : AR%160,345,0007T) © #5

the annual general meeting of the Company on 8 May 2020. RARBZEEFHANBZRRBEFRE

These financial statements do not reflect this as dividend EREHE - HEMBHRERL TR UL IEARE
payable. RIS o

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

AREFT

Proposed final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2019 of HKDO0.15

(2018: HKDO0.20) per ordinary share

HE—_Z—hF+=-A=+—8

IEFERRRIRE SR EBR
0158 L (ZZE—N\F :
0.207%7T) 160,345
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The reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash FRPTISEL AN F| B EERIR SR
generated from operations is as follows: mr
2018
—ZE-N\F
RMB’000
ARETFT
Profit before income tax BRET1S IR &R F 1,423,900
Adjustments for: LR
— Amortisation and depreciation — B RITE 753,202
— Share of profits less losses — ERAEREARCRE
of investments accounted = F R 18
for using equity method (21,918)
— Amortisation of share option — AR 2
scheme 500
— Losses on disposal of property, — HEWE - BEKEE
plant and equipment (Note 27) E18 (a2 27) 2,618
— Finance costs — net — B ERTE 493,492
— Fair value (gains)/losses on —TEeRITAREE
derivative financial instruments DNEEWR),EE
and assets (Note 26) (Bt:E26) 12,992
— Settlement on derivative financial — T4 &R T E
instruments (Note 26) HHE (MaE26) 3,601
— Gains on disposal of joint-ventures — HE& LMY 7 IS
(Note 26) (Bf3%26) (200)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ — H&—RNBR 7z Wz
(Note 26) (KtaE26) (7,679)
— Gains on acquisition of — WEHRE AR 2 Was
subsidiaries (Note 26) (Htat26) -
— Costs related to acquisition of — EMB AR AR ZEA
subsidiaries (Note 35) (K17£35) 240
— Net exchange differences —ENERFEE (18,284)
Changes in working capital LEEREH(FaKRAEZ

(excluding the effects of exchange BE X Z AT ERIN) ¢
differences on consolidation):

— Inventories —FE (1,379,581)
— Properties under development — BEREAPYE (200,667)
— Trade and bills receivables — EWE S REEFIE (21,913)
— Prepayments, deposits and — TENRIE - e REM
other receivables JE i BR K (215,486)
— Trade and bills payables — ERE S RERFIE 132,872
— Contract liabilities —&HEaE 88,272
— Accruals and other payables — ERER M EMERIE (114,952)
— Pledged bank deposits — BERRITHER 11,680
Cash generated from operations KEFEENRS 942,689
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In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment include:

Net book amount — property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)

Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 27)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of plant and equipment
by means of long-term payables
(Note 22)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the years presented.

Net debt

Cash and cash equivalents
Pledged bank deposits
Borrowings

Finance leases

Lease liabilities

Long term payables

Net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged bank deposits

Gross debt — fixed interest rates
Gross debt — variable interest rates

Net debt

WEEBEERERTHENE BER
RENERIERIE
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARKET T
BREFE — % -
s K w5t (KTt 7) 47,136
HEWE  BEREEBR
(KriE27) (2,618)
HEWME  WEREEMERE
44,518
2018
—Z-)N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT
AR HARE BR300 T\ U B
i Kt (Fiat22)
145,188

RE®

Be RE2FEY
EEMRITFRK

&K

MEHE

R RRK
AR

B RASEEY
BRI

e ER — EEFE
BIEG — 2BHFE

FERS

RENET S E 25 FRAFEF DR

FEGEE -

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
ARETT

1,054,721

145,019
(7,127,734)
(831)

(145,188)
(6,074,013)

1,054,721
145,019

(2,105,995)

(5,167,758)

(6,074,013)
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Net debt as at 1 January R=ZZ-NE-H—-H
2018 HFER
Cash flows BEn
Foreign exchange adjustments 51\E 5%
Other changes (i) Hib 28 ()
Net debt as at R-E-N\F
31 December 2018 +=ZA=+-H
HEER
Recognised on adoption of  FAAA B 5 REER|
HKFRS 16 (see note 2.2) E16 K ER
(Rht2.2)
Cash flows Rem
Acquisition — leases Wi —HE
Foreign exchange adjustments §ME 3%
Other changes (i) Hib 28 ()
Net debt as at RZB-hE
31 December 2019 +=ZA=+-H
HEES

U]

Other assets

HitEE
Cash Pledged
and cash bank
overdrafts  deposits
RER BEART
ReEX S
RMB000  RMB’000
ARETT AEEFT
1,466,718 88,249
(411,997) 56,770
1,054,721 145,019
1,054,721 145,019

Other changes include non-cash movements and

reclassifications.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Finance
leases

MEHEE
RMB’000

Liabilities frol

m financing activities

RERETDZAE

Lease Longterm

liabilities

HEAE
RMB’000

payables Borrowings

&
BRRR
RMB’000

fER
RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(7,210)

6,629

(250)

(831)

831

(183,461)

(183,461)

- (5,549,598)

- (1413336)
- (164,800)
(145,188)

(145,188) (7,127,734)

(145,188) (7,127,734)

Total

EH)
RMB’000
ARETFT

(4,001,841)

(1,761,934)
(164,800)
(145,438)

(6,074,013)

(182,630)

(6,256,643)
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On 1 April 2019, the Group acquired and eventually held the
80% interests of bundled companies from Winnitex Group
Limited and Winnitex China Holdings Limited (the “Vendors”).
The Group firstly acquired the 100% interests of Winnitex
Holdings Limited, Winnitex Limited and Zhejiang Qing Mao
Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd. (the “Target Group”) from
the Vendors for a total consideration of RMB1,122,940,000
and then contributed the Target Group, together with the
injection of the garment fabric business in Vietham and
Nicaragua of the Group into the enlarged garment fabric
business (the “Enlarged Garment Fabric Business”) held by
Texhong Winnitex Holdings Limited (“Texhong Winnitex”). In
the meantime, the Vendors injected capital of RMB416,165,000
into Texhong Winnitex to acquire the 20% interests of the
Enlarged Garment Fabric Business.

The particulars of the Target Group are set out as follows:

Name of companies Place of incorporation

NCIEZE AR 3L 4tk B
Winnitex Holdings Limited BVI
BEZERER AT RERUES
Winnitex Limited Hong Kong
BEXERAA BB

Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Mainland China

Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd.

HLE XA EEIRER AT B At

Gains arising from negative goodwill was mainly due to the
fact that the Vendors had the intention to cooperate with a
leading textile enterprise, which is experienced in overseas
markets and vertical integration of industry chain, and bring in
industry expertise.

With the acquisition of the Target Group, the Board believes
that the Group will be able to increase its annual production
capacity in woven garment fabric. This combination will allow
quality-driven flexibility to the fast-paced apparel and technical
workwear businesses and will create synergy benefits for the
Group by leveraging on the well-established customer base
and brand reputation of the Target Group. The Group’s
capability to produce high quality woven garment fabrics in
the PRC, Vietnam and Nicaragua and its profitability will be
significantly enhanced.

The Group recognized gains of RMB209,019,000 from the
acquisition primarily arising from fair value gains on the
underlying land and buildings and the gains are included in
‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RZZE—NAFMWMA— B K% E [ Winnitex
Group Limited X BEF HIER AR AR E
B DWERZEEE AR 80%HEZ o A
EEE L IAARK1,122,940,000 7T 2 2K (B
MEHWEBEZIERABRAR BEEXBRAA
M TE RS EENAERAR([BIZEE ] M
s BEZBEZREEREHBTZA
@M N EEHFHARRIESE
TRERAR ([ RILEXE)FHA ZBAERIE
BBAEMEAES]) - R BEHRKRITER
SEAAR 416,165,000 7T & £ VA U B 18 K E
BT 2 20% FEZS o

BB EEBEFBRHIINT

Principal activities
FTEXK

Investment holding company
REER AR

Sales of woven garment fabrics

SHE R E R

Manufacturing of cotton and cotton
blend yarns, greige, dyed and
finished woven fabrics

BUEMRATORRAAR - 0 -
BRI R

ERBELANPRIEZRRAABEIERE M
EBIMEREXBRTEEAT@ASELR
HRBEMBEREIFAEIITEERREEME
H o

EELRBEREE  EFEMREASEREE
B2 FERMZIEM - A EEREREZFBRM
ABURERIZEEELRE S RSE 2R
KEEMTIERER  XHEZBREEZEKR
BEFBEEmEEE  BAKBESRGRMER
AEBPHE - ke NEESERK
BEBZENREBNENSERE LT -

AEEBZERBEETERARZARE
209,019,000T ' EEREHBE L REFZ
ANTFEWZ  BERFZEAABE_T—NEF
T A=+ BLFEZHEARER [HiWK
%/ (EE) — B8R -
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The details of the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities RUEEEE 2 WIERH - B WIBEE RFTRE
=]

assumed at the acquisition date of the acquisition is
summarized on an aggregate basis as follows:

Total consideration:
— Cash

— 20% interests of Vietnam and Nicaragua business

Recognised amounts of identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed

(100% of Target Group)
Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
Right-of-use assets (Note 8)
Deferred income tax assets
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Trade and bills payables
Accruals and other payables
Income tax payables
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets

Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders

Non-controlling interests’ 20% share
Gains on acquisition (Note 26)

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired
Capital injection in cash from non-controlling

shareholders

Consideration for acquisition settled in cash

Cash paid on acquisition

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

EAFEABZFIFHANT

Fair value at

acquisition
date
W B2 ARE
RMB’000
ARMTFT
wRE:
— 34 1,122,940
— M R e iR I Z 7589 20% HE zx 110,881
1,233,821
BB EERFAEEEZCRR
SHE(BEEE100%#ER)
RekIREEFED 446,154
Y% - B RS (7)) 527,148
FRAREE(KZ8) 191,842
BIEFTSTREAE 894
=& 441,191
EUWE S K EERIE 143,314
AR - ke REMEKERK 41,102
BB S REBERIEA (89,939)
TEIRE A R EAM R IR (197,203)
FE S AR (24,042)
aHEaE (8,673)
HERE (712)
BIEFTIST AR (83,691)
AR EELABEFE 1,387,385
IR R T E 416,165
1,803,550
FE4% Il 1 R 25 A9 20% 1D 58 (360,710)
W B B A Ay M s (22 26) (209,019)
1,233,821
RETKENB AR 2R RREEEY 446,154
IR RAIFEIFE
416,165
WEEBENRESEMN 2 RE (1,122,940)
HUWEEBEIN RS (260,621)
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Acquisition related costs of RMB890,000 have been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement
from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 contributed by the
bundled companies was RMB1,210,399,000. The bundled
companies also made profit of RMB152,263,000 over the
same period.

Had the bundled companies been consolidated from 1 January
2019, the consolidated income statement would show pro-forma
revenue of RMB22,381,757,000 and profit of RMB974,039,000.

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date that have not
been incurred are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE

Contracted but not provided for BRI#EREE
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERETL

Total capital expenditure commitments & B A YE 4858

As at 31 December 2019, the capital expenditure
commitments for property, plant and equipment mainly
represent the expansion plan and investment budget in
Mainland China of RMB39,202,000, in Vietnam of
RMB87,161,000, in Nicaragua of RMB9,157,000 and in
Mexico of RMB42,762,000.

U B E B AR A A R ¥ 890,000 TERNEE
—E-NAF+_A=T—HILFENZEEKEE
RZITHBA PR -

BE-_ZE—-NFNA—HEZE-_ZEZ—hLF+=A
=+—B - BZEARRMEMZE AZEK
HEROUWA B AREA1,210,399,000 7T ° 3% 48
NE) IR R HAEX S R FI A K 152,263,0007T ©

WA ARIA—F—NEF—A—BE&Ea ALK
AEE  REBEREREHEZRAARS
22,381,757,000 7T K ji ] A K 5 974,039,000
JC ©

REBEHNEARR (BEREL)NT :

2018
—E-N\F

RMB’000
AREFIT

591,010
780,177

1,371,187

R-ZE-hhE+-A=+—10 9% HER
RENEAATEETERREPHAE - B
MO RRAETNETTERIEETRE
g 53l A AR 392020007 AR
87,161,000 T * A R ¥ 9,157,000 7T f A R #&
42,762,000 7T °
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Related parties are those as defined under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 24 and include key management of the
Group. General speaking, parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

The Group is controlled by New Green Group Limited
(incorporated in BVI), which directly and indirectly owns
59.5% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 40.5% of the
shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is
Texhong Group Holdings Limited (incorporated in Cayman
Islands). The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr.
Hong Tian Zhu.

The related parties that had business transactions with the
Group are as follows:

B REREHERNE24%MEREE - LA
BEREAEETIEEEE - RBWME » MEH—
TREEERRERESN S — T RENTE REER
ETEHR—TIIRERZEN  RIBR S
B3 o RS LRS- KRR -

N5 E /B New Green Group Limited (R B &
ZEEFEMA ) EH - EEEREEEER
A APEAD 2 59.5% ° A Q AN ER T 2 40.5%
W FEA o AN E 2 &4 & A F] /R Texhong
Group Holdings Limited ( 7 59 2 8% & & fit Ak
) o REREZ BKIEHT AERMELE o

EAREEETIZNEHOLT

Name of related party
BT AR

Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.
MEGEHIERER S ELER AT

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company
REFFA RN A R

Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited

RO TX¥ERBEERAT

Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited Company
EHZE(BE) REEEERAA

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Relationship with the Group
A1 R BAR

Associated company
/N

Joint venture
AP

A company controlled by the chairman of the Group

mAKEEFEAES 227

Associated company
i /NC]
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Sales of goods
— Hualida (Vietham) Garments
Limited Company

— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

Purchases of land use rights
— Texhong Industrial Park
Vietnam Limited

Purchases of goods

— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments
Limited Company

Purchases of utilities
— Texhong Industrial Park
Vietnam Limited

Purchases of services
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics
Joint Stock Company

A

HEEm
— M= (R REEE
BRAA

— FBA TR SR A A

BRAT]

BEE i iF
— R TEEE#E
BRAT

\u:u[Y

BEEm®

BRAA
— N (B RERE
BRAT]

BB R
— R TR EE
HRAT

BERTS
— REFE IR 1 7]

In the opinion of the Company’s directors and the
Group’s management, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of
business, and in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements and/or the invoices issued by

the respective parties.

a
R R S B A A

2018
—F-N\F
RMB’000
ABREF T

1,898

16,809

18,707

133,707

17,505

9,311

26,816

129,173

51,411

ARBEERAEENEEERAS L
HEMTHR SN ATEEKBIEL A
REBAEBEOGERE KO BEEES
BHAMBRETT
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Trade receivables FEWNE S FIR
— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. — FEBMHEIERE B
BRAE
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments — ERE (W) REETE
Limited Company ARATA
Trade payables FENE BFIA
— Texhong Industrial Park — R TEEEBEH
Vietnam Limited BRAF]
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint — KHL & 457D A 7
Stock Company
— Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. — FRATAE IR S B A A
BRAE
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments — ERE (M) RESE
Limited Company BRAF]
Salaries, wages and bonuses e ITENIEA
Pension costs — defined contribution BIREHK A — FEHKETE
plan
Other benefits EhtEF

238 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

2018
—TNF
RMB’000
ARBETIT

3,147

1,984

5,131

3,751

2,106

14

5,871

2018
—T-N\F

RMB’000
AREFT

20,646

364
77

21,087
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After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the country/region. The Group’s factories in China
have gradually resumed production since 10 February 2020
and implemented strict internal management to implement
epidemic prevention work. Based on the Group’s
assessments on the market and economic environments in
which the Group operates in, the Company expects that the
impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s production and operation
is temporary. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group. As at the date on which this set of financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of
material adverse effects on the financial statements as a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE R
Investments in subsidiaries NS NGIE SR § =)
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE
Current assets REBEE

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

FEWE 5 N RIZFIA

BNRE B2 R
HoAth & W BR K

& W Bt B8 1 B KIR

ITEEMTA

RBehReFED

BEEMAME

RoE-—BEYEE - NFEBRES
(fCoOVID-19% 1B ) 2% 28 R &W
BEEHR—RYIPIEEE NEBEFEMNT
BE—_ZE-_TE-A+ABRERSMELE I
BB HE RS K R B IR LA AT R TIE o 1R 1%
AN 52 B 3 AN SR B 4 4 TR TH 45 AN S B IR SR A AT
&+ N2 F1FE 5 COVID-19 ¥ 7N £ [F 4 7 f A&
ERTEBERE - AEEH =Y E T
COVID-19 & 1B B R - Wit (A HEH AL @ et
ERRA MG EEENTE - PEETIZ LS
BHmEZH BALEEAA  COVID-19% 15
WS SV RFTIERERTFZE -

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBTFIT

28
4,836,603
236,102

5,072,733

14,953

33,094
3,107,245
60,009
19,740

3,235,041

8,307,774
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EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital: nominal value

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities

Bills payable

Accruals and other payables
Due to subsidiaries

Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

B R
ROFHES AEGEER

B E{E
B i (8
HitbfE
TR B8 i A

EEAE

&8f&
FRBEME

E

REBAE
FEN RIBFR

AR E A M AR

ANLOPNCIESE
fBE

TEEHMTA

RmEfE

HMESRERE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 16 March 2020 and was

signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu

Zhu Yongxiang
Director Director

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—~H
2018
—FE-N\F
RMB’000
ARBTFT

96,709
433,777
193,317

1,574,817

2,298,620

3,902,769

3,902,769

1,430,247
15,075
18,577

639,815
2,671

2,106,385
6,009,154
8,307,774
ARREEABRER T _ZTF=R

TRBEEESHE YATIESEK
REFERE

HERH KRR
EE EE
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Other Retained
reserves earnings
Hinf# REB R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 192,817 1,019,227
Profit for the year F [ 5 - 895,852
Employee share option scheme & B i AR iRt 2 500 -
Dividend relating to 2017 “E—+FRE - (156,160)
Dividend relating to 2018 ZE-N\FZRE - (184,102)
At 31 December 2018 R-_ZB-\F+_HA=+—H 193,317 1,574,817
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H
Profit for the year FEEF
Employee share option scheme & B B AR iRt &
Dividend relating to 2018 ZZE-N\F2ZRE
Dividend relating to 2019 ZE-NFZRE
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—-—hNF+_-_HA=+—H
The Group does not have a chief executive who is not REERETNRKARRAREETNITH
also a director of the Company. HE -
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BRNTEBUEENMESHOT :
For the year ended 31 December 2019, emoluments BE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a IEABEESRERS (THRARFH
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary HIF@E AR B ENIS -
undertaking:

Estimated ~ Employer's
money value  contribution

Discretionary Housing of other to benefit
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme Total
Bspg He e WA 2l HtERz  ETEAE Eby

fhEHEE BftR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARETT ARETR ARBFT ARETT ARETT  AREFR

Executive Directors: BIES:
Hong Tianzhu N
Zhu Yongxiang R
Tang Daoping BT
Hui Tsz Wai TR
JiZhongliang ERR
Independent non-executive ~ BUFFRITES :
Directors:

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Cheng Longdi BER
Tao Xiaoming & e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, emoluments
paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking:

Name of Director Fees Salaries
EENE e o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT
Executive Directors: HIES:
Hong Tianzhu HAR = 1,009
Zhu Yongxiang Rk - 587
Tang Daoping LIRS = 1,045
Hui Tsz Wai FFE - 3312
Ji Zhongliang HERR - 888
Independent non-executive B FHTEE :
Directors:
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T R1& 263 =
Cheng Longdi R 131 -
Tao Xiaoming L] 158 =

552 6,841

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year.

The Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services during the year.

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made
available in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by or entities connected with such directors
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Discretionary

bonuses
EiETEa

RMB’000

AREFT

1,836
960
4,500
307
900

8,503

BE-_ZE—-\E+t-_A=t—HIEE -
TEAZTESRERE (THAQFK
HEBAR) BfIERNEE

Estimated  Employer's
money value  contribution

Housing of other to benefit
allowance benefits scheme Total
FE2E  HtEflz  EEEA wast

fBRtEE  FEER
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT

- - 1 2,846
- 16 16 1,579
= 16 16 5,577
= = 331 3,950
- 22 - 1,810
= = = 263
- - - 131
- - - 158
- 54 364 16,314

FA- BEEEEIHESETMAEMER
MR LB ARER o

FAAEEMERREHRESRB AT
ME=FXNZRE -

BERFERIFATABEBEFELINE
= EXIEREBEERARHEA
ZEF  BEEFREMRS o
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No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

The following is a list of the Group’s principal subsidiaries, all

of which are unlisted, at 31 December 2019:

Name of subsidiary
MEAR BB

Directly held:
HEREH:

Texhong Textile Holdings
Limited

R R AT

Sunray International
Holdings Limited

FHBEBFIER AR AR

Texhong Viethnam
Investment Limited

RABFRREER QA

Prosperous Time
Holdings Limited

FRERARAT

Texhong Winnitex
Holdings Limited

RITEFERAR AT

Place and date of
incorporation and
form of legal entity
HEMR R AR
EEERER

British Virgin Islands
26 May 2004,
limited liability company

KERZHE

—ZETWFRAZ+TARE

BREMERT

British Virgin Islands
21 January 2005,
limited liability company

KBRS

—EERF-A=+—H"

BREMERT

British Virgin Islands,
6 September 2006,
limited liability company
HBREAZHS
—ETAFNAKRE
BREFERAT

British Virgin Islands,
12 May 2015,
limited liability company
REBREALHFE
“ET-RFRAT=H"
BREMERE

British Virgin Islands,
December 2018,
limited liability company

REBRLEE
—Z-N\F+=A-
BREMERA

NN BV E RN SETE S ool ]
ARPEFTERARMEEREAERE
RERKFARETAERFEZIEARS
ZHRAK

TRINFAEER - E-NF+_HA=+—H

MEAKBAR (BRIELM)

Principal activities and
place of operations

FTEXRBREEBI

Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands

REBELRSREER

Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands

RRBEEL RS REER

Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands

KRB R LR S RAEER

Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands

MNEBRELHSREER

Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands

NEBRELHSREER

Particulars of
issued share capital

or paid-in capital Interest held

ERTRADR

AR AFE ¥R

100 ordinary shares 100%
of USD1 each

100 IR &R 13ETT 100%
=Rl

1 ordinary share of 100%
USD1 each

1RER1ETTERRK 100%

50,000 ordinary 100%
shares of USD1
each

50,000 iR &% 13T 100%
=g il

uUsD1 100%

17T 100%

uUsD1 100%

17T 100%
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Name of subsidiary
MEBARERE

Indirectly held:
BEEH

Jiangsu Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd.

LR A R B R A A

Nantong Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd.

EREIEERPRARYE 21 NG

Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng
Textile Co., Ltd.

IRINRILER LA R AR

Xuzhou Texhong Times
Textile Co., Ltd.

IRINRILES KA EEE R A

Texhong (China) Investment

Co., Ltd.

RI(PE)REBR QA

Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian
Textile Co., Ltd.

IRINRIALEREG A AL E R A A

Place and date of
incorporation and
form of legal entity
B R B R
ERERER

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
6 June 2000,
limited liability company

FEAN
—FETERARE
EREEAR

Nantong, Mainland China,
7 June 2002,
limited liability company

B i
—EE_FXALER
BREFAH

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
12 May 2004,
limited liability company

AR BRI
—TEMERA+=A -
BAREEATF

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
29 December 2004,
limited liability company

B RN
“ZETMFE+=—A=+NH "
BREMEAT

Shanghai, Mainland China,
21 June 2005,
Limited liability company

hE
—EEREAA-t+—8 -
BREEAT

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
30 March 2006,
limited liability company

AR
—EEXRFEZA=1H"
BREMEAR]

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Principal activities and
place of operations

TERERREEMT

Manufacturing and sales
of yarns, grey fabrics,
dyed clothes and
dress; processing of
cotton in Mainland
China

NP BRRERLE MIHE
W~ 0 0K
AR ARIEIT

Manufacturing and sales
of yarns, grey fabrics
and dyed fabrics in
Mainland China

PR B R BEBLE K SHE
U A N e i)

Manufacturing and sales
of yarns, grey fabrics,
clothes and dyed
fabrics in Mainland
China

PR B R EBLE K SHE
Wi - B -k
L

Manufacturing and sales
of top-grade yarns,
thread, grey fabrics,
textile knitting products,
and garments in
Mainland China

A B R B E M H &
DR R B
A R E KRR

Investment holding and
trading of textile
products in Mainland
China

BB R 7 B R RE
BESBER

Manufacturing top-grade
yarns, thread, grey
fabrics, dresses, in
Mainland China

A B R RERGE S R
W 5 B RARE

Particulars of
issued share capital

or paid-in capital Interest held

SEBITRER

BARAFE PR
USD15,000,000 100%
15,000,000 37T 100%
USD5,500,000 100%
5,500,000 37T 100%
USD7,800,000 100%
7,800,000 37T 100%
USD43,000,000 100%
43,000,000 7T 100%
USD100,000,000 100%
100,000,000 37T 100%
USD20,500,000 100%
20,500,000 37T, 100%
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Name of subsidiary
MEBLARARE

Sunray Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited

MERPIBE R ERS
BRATE

Changzhou Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd.

BMRLHBERAF

Texhong Renze Textile Joint
Stock Company

RIEFH BN B R DA
(#r)

Texhong Renze
Technology Limited
RICCERAR AR

Weishan Texhong
Technology Limited

PRI RIS AR A A

Texhong Yinlong
Technology Ltd.
RITRBERRBR AR

Shandong Texhong Textile
Co., Ltd.

IR RI A BB R A

Texhong Galaxy
Technology Limited

RACEFARHRER R A

Place and date of
incorporation and
form of legal entity
B R B R
EERERER

Macao, 19 December 2005,
limited liability company

P
—EERF+_A+HAE -
BREFERT

Changzhou, Mainland China,
1 January 1979,
limited liability company

BN
—hthF—H—R"
BREMERT

Vietnam, 24 October 2006,
limited liability company

e
—ETRFHAZTHEAE
BREMERT

Vietnam, 11 April 2013,
limited liability company

215
—ZT-=Fm@A+—8 -
BREMERA

Shandong, Mainland China,
12 April 2018
limited liability company
HEILR
—E-N\FEA+=H
BREMERT

Vietnam, 11 April 2012,
limited liability company

21
—ZT——Fm@A+—8H -
BREMERT

Shandong, Mainland China,
1 May 2004,
limited liability company
PEILR
—ZETMFERA—H -
BREMERA

Vietnam, 13 September 2014,
limited liability company

HiFED
“E-mFEAA+=R -
BREMEAF

Principal activities and
place of operations

TRERREEMH

Trading in Macao

RIEPIE 5

Manufacturing and sales
of textile, decoration
and garment in
Mainland China

PO B R B B 3 e 4K
Bt -~ #mm KR

Manufacturing of yarn in
Vietnam
NEERED R

Manufacturing of yarn in
Vietnam
NEERED R

Manufacturing and
sales of yarns in
Mainland China

TEFR B A P B3 T2
HEDL

Manufacturing of yarn in
Vietnam
NEERED R

Manufacturing and sales
of yarns in Mainland
China

AP B B B E
HEDL

Manufacturing of yarns,
grey fabrics,garments
and dyed fabrics in
Vietnam

R BLE R -
N E Y E il

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Particulars of
issued share capital

or paid-in capital Interest held

EBITRER

BAKRAFE PR
MOP$100,000 100%
100,000 R P #& 100%
RMB32,145,000 100%
AR M 32,145,000 7T 100%
USD30,000,000 100%
30,000,000 7T 100%
USD9,850,000 100%
9,850,000 37T 100%
RMB50,000,000 100%
AR # 50,000,000 7T 100%
USD40,000,000 100%
40,000,000 7T 100%
RMB700,000,000 100%
AR # 700,000,000 7T 100%
USD120,000,000 100%
120,000,000 37T 100%
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Name of subsidiary
MEBARERE

Shandong Lanyan
Textiles Co., Ltd.

IR B REA SR AR A A

ChangZhou Texhong Grand
Textile Co., Ltd

YNRTBESHAERAT

Foshan Ruhong Textile
Co., Ltd.

BRI AT B PR X A)

Shanghai Hongrun Textile
Co.,Ltd

EEBIEESER QA

Taizhou Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd.

TN LRI AEEER AR

Xinjiang Texhong Foundation
Textile Co., Ltd.*

MBRIEXSHBARRE

Nantong Texhong Yinhai
Industrial Co., Ltd.

FRRIIREEEARAA
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Place and date of
incorporation and
form of legal entity
B R B R
ERERER

Shandong, Mainland China,
21 August 2015,
limited liability company
PEILR
—Z-RFNA=+—H"
BREMERA

Changzhou, Mainland China,
August 2016,
limited liability company
AR E N
ZE—XRENA -
BREFERT

Foshan, Mainland,China,
August 2016,
limited liability company
B b1y
—ZE-RFEN\A
BREERA

Shanghai, Mainland China,
7 January 2009,
limited liability company
HE EE
—ETANF—ALR
BREFERAT

Taizhou, Mainland China,
23 April 2002,
limited liability company

HEIZ=)N
—ZEE_FWOA=-+=H"
BREFERT

Xinjiang, Mainland China,
4 July 2015,
limited liability company
IR
e T s L =
BREMEAA

Nantong, Mainland China,
20 May 2004,
limited liability company

R Bl
—ETNERA-+E
BRELAT

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

Principal activities and
place of operations

TERERREEMT

Manufacturing of yarns,
grey fabrics, garments
in Shandong

RINREED LR -
A R AR

Trading of yarns in
Changzhou

REMNBLED &R

Manufacturing of yarns in
Foshan

R BLE R

Trading of textile products
in Mainland China

R BIA M B B9 B

Manufacturing and sales
of industrial-use textile
products and top-grade
blended-spinning in
Mainland China

NSIEPN GRS S E S
TERF#Em R

p=N TN =P
=i & A aa

Manufacturing of yarns in
Xinjiang

RITBR B R

Manufacturing and sales
of garment, textile
knitting products and
yarns in Mainland
China

B RRERIE K HE
FXIR - BB R DR

Particulars of
issued share capital

or paid-in capital Interest held

CRITRAR

AR ATEE iR
USD3,000,000 100%
3,000,000 & 7T 100%
RMB131,528,883 100%
AR#131,528,883 7T 100%
RMB20,072,400 100%
AR#20,072,400 7T 100%
RMB5,000,000 100%
AR # 5,000,000 100%
USD13,000,000 100%
13,000,000 7T 100%
RMB398,700,000 90%
AR 398,700,000 7T 90%
USD3,500,000 100%
3,500,000 & 7T 100%
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Name of subsidiary
MEBLARARE

Shandong Lanyan
Jeanswear Co., Ltd.

IRBESFREBRAF]

Taizhou Texhong Yintai
Textile Co., Ltd.

FMRILIRFH AR A A

Xuzhou Texhong Intelligence
Textile Co., Ltd.

IRINRILE B ER AR

Hongan Textile (Huaian)
Co., Ltd.

R4 O %) BER AT

Twin Dragon Marketing, Inc.
Twin Dragon Marketing, Inc.

Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving,

Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd

LB SEN R AR A E]

Winnitex Limited

EXER A

Place and date of
incorporation and
form of legal entity
B R B R
EERERER

Shandong, Mainland China,
21 August 2015,
limited liability company
HEILR
—EZ-aFNA=t+—H"
BREMERA

Taizhou, Mainland China,
26 May 2006,
limited liability company

e EIN
—ETAGERA-+AR
BRELAT

Xuzhou, Mainland China,
25 May 2017,
limited liability company

H BRI
—E—+FRA=-+HA "
BEREAEAT

Huaian, Mainland China,
27 October 2017
limited liability company
FEER
—ET—+F+HA=++tRH"
BREERT

USA, incorporated company
EB - RNBARAF]

Shaoxing, Mainland China,
1 October 2002
limited liability company

R B 48
—ZTE-F+A—H "
BARETAR

Hong Kong, 24 January 2003,
limited liability company

B
—EE=F—HA—+WA -
BREERA

Principal activities and
place of operations

TRERREEMH

Manufacturing of yarns,
grey fabrics, garments
in Shandong

MRIREEA LR -
A R K

Manufacturing top-grade
garment and special
textile for construction
in Mainland China

AR B A b B 3 1 AR
B AX A4 B4 Ak m

Manufacturing of yarns in
Mainland China

AR B RFEBLE A AR

Manufacturing and sales
of yarns in Mainland
China

AR B B B3
HED R

Sales of denim fabrics
and apparel
HEFFEM RRE

Manufacturing of cotton
and cotton blend yarns,
greige, dyed and
finished woven fabrics

BUE MR A RORIRAOLE
AT - BT

Sales of woven garment
fabrics

SHE R

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Particulars of
issued share capital
or paid-in capital

Interest held

EBITRER

BAKRAFE PR
USD1,000,000 100%
1,000,000 37T 100%
USD6,500,000 100%
6,500,000 37T 100%
USD100,000,000 100%
100,000,000 37T 100%
USD1,500,000 100%
1,500,000 £ 7T 100%
USD4,063,000 65%
4,063,000 % T 65%
USD51,000,000 80%
51,000,000 37T 80%
HKD1,000 80%
1,000 7T 80%

—E-NEFER
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

* represents sino-foreign equity joint venture. All other
subsidiaries established in Mainland China are wholly foreign
owned enterprises.

Texhong (China) Investment Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign
owned investment holding company incorporated in Mainland
China.

None of above subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China represent the best effort by the Group’s
management to translate their Chinese names, as they do not
have official English names.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

RN EERRIBEFEARBEELEE
MAKEHBAR c EFRARBEMMEL
AINERBERFRBRILE

* ERINEEDRE A RMERBIARBER ZH
BRAIRBINELRE -

R (P E)REBR AR RAH B AR
T2 BINEREERAT]

(E B -NEFT A=+ BILFEREM
R B DB A REAEM D EITEE
BRE(ZF-NF:F) -

BT AR 2 KB AR EIEARX
2 ERNERAAREEREEESAS
1 EL AR XX A R R RE R B SUZ AR
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